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INTERIM COMMITTEE ON SUBSISTENCE 
Nels A. A:1d~rson, Jr., Chairman 
P. 0 . Box 234 
Dilllnghom, AK 99576 Tel· 84?.5970 

OCTOBER 4, 1977 - FAIRBANKS PUBLIC HEARING 

Representative Nels Anderson call ed the Subsistence meeting to order at 

this time. For those of you that may not know me, my name is Nels 

Anderson, I represent District 16, I come from Dillingham, Alaska, and 

I would like to at this time introduce people on the panel with me . To 

my irm1ediate right is Representative Joe Hayes from Anchorage; Represen­

tative Steve Cowper I think most of you know, and sitting at the end of 

the table is Dorothy Larson our Staff Assistant . At this time I would 

like to very briefly state the purpose of our meeting tonight, and may-

be before we get into that I would like to acknowledge our Representatives 

that we have here and have them make introductory statements or whatever 

they wish to state to the public at thi s time . 

Representative Joe Hayes : Nothing in particular, I am just happy to be 

here, I enjoy being on this Conmittee. I think it serves a very useful 

and timely purpose, particularly when we are faced with the present D-2 

Legislation and I am very interested in hearing your testimonies here 

this evening. 

Representative Steve Cowper: I have nothing to say . 

Representative Nels Anderson : We may as well get right into it, r think 



for· the study on subsistence this year is to make sure that the hunting, 

f1Shf ng an~ ga,thering activities ofi Al,ask.a 'a residence are guaranteed and 

p:·otected by not only State Law, but Federal Law and I think that most 

people know that Representative Cowper and Representative Hayes are both 

on the 0-2 Steering Conmittee for the State of Alaska and they are going 

t~ be making statements to the Federal Government in the State of 

Washington at a later time, and any comments that the public can give us 

regardin~ subsistence, how they feel about it , whether or not the term 

subsistence ought to be defined and what the State ought to do about pro­

tecting subsistence in Legislative activity are our concern. We would 

like to know how you feel about that and what you think we ought to do 

about those particular issues. Another use that is becoming more and 

more evident and that is the subsistence use of our resources, and in our 

State we have very few rules and regulations that guarantee or in any way 

regulate the subsistence take of any of our fish and game resourced in 

the State of Alaska . I think probably the only resources that we have 

at this time that has any kind of regulation is the Salmon fishery and 

there are alot of other resources that we are looking at now . The purpose 

of our Co1T1T1ittee is to take a look at the rules and regulations that exist 

today to see whether or not they fit with the Alaskan 1 i festyl e, and if 

they don't what we should do to make sure that lifestyle is protected, and 

to make absolutely sure that Federal Legi slation does not pre-empt or in anyway 

preclude subsistence hunting and fi shing of any of the resources that the 

State of Alaska has within i ts boundries. 

At this time, I would like, if the public does not mind, and I would 



testify this evening, he ~oes have another conlnitbnent ton~ght, but I would 
l • .t 1 

• ' ~ I 

11ke if people have a public statement to .~ke either in writing or or.ally, . . , . . ;\ 

we are. going to be r.ecording statements and they w11~ ~e entered into 
' ' 

public record and any statement that is made will 
1' 

in our deliberations 'in the Legislature in 1978. 

Mr. llarold Gillam, Mayor: Representative Anderson, I appreciate your al­

lowing me to speak first. The item of subsistence is becoming more so 

than before and somewhat being given little more emphasis than it should be. 

I think the partial solution lo the problem is a little bit simpler than 

we think, as I mentionerl before in one of the Congressional hearings I think 

that Subsistence hunting and fishing can be handled better on a variable 

bag limit than any other way, in other words somebody around the North 

Slope as until just these last few years did not have a viable source of 

income or had a greater dependency on subsistence hunting and fishing, and 

because of no roads and limited access the variable bag limit in the par­

ticular area was appropriate. More of the villages that have a greater 

demand on the wild life for subsistence I think can be better serviced by 

the variable bag limit, and then around the more populated areas a lesser 

bag amount. I believe that subsistence should be just that, if you need 

the game for subsistence then you should be allowed that game. 

I disagree very strongly with how some of the subsistence hunting and 

fishing, primarily fishing has evolved that subsistence under the guides 

of subsistence fishing some people have been using it as a colllllercial 

game, and this I think is wrong. I heard more stories from the Fish and 



Wildlife, one man down the ''·1kon River some 40,000 fish under the subsistence 

fishing allocation and the only thing he was doing was stripping the fish 

through the throat and wasting the rest of it. Of course this was the . 
failure of the Fish and Game to prosecute that individual for want and 

waste. I think that individual should have been, but I think that anytime 

you do define subsistence that it should be individuals own use and or 
I 

a minor amount for whoever friends he's got, but nothing on the magnitude 

say 40,000 fish that amount is c0f11nercial. I don't believe that subsistence 

should be based, as Congressman Seiberling pointed out, on a racial bases, 

I don't. I think that is completely wrong. If man needs the use of a 

wild life it doesn't make any difference what his color is or what his 

background is, if he needs subsistence off the land then he needs that just 

as much as the other person. I don't think it should be on a racial bases 

in fact I think that is completely wrong . I was very distressed with 

Congressman Seiberling and Morris Udall' s statement that they would write 

into the new 0-2 Legislation of subsi stence on a racial bases . I made the 

charges before the Congresses that this i s some of the height of hypocrisy . 

We in the Fairbanks area, we just ran into the sn~ll problem which I just 

hope does not evolve in the future years . The Fairbanks di strict, the 

Tanana River the only one with sufficient game decided that after the com­

mercial limi t of fish was taken that they would also close the subsistence 

fishing. The conmercial limit was set arbitrarily i n the Tanana Valley of 

15,000 f ish, which is a ridiculously low number of fish to be taken in thi s 

particular area because that did extend down below Manl ey Hot Springs be­

cause that took in quite a few fish wheels . More contnercial fishermen in 

the local area down in the Manley, Nenana area with the upshot that the 

conmercial ff shennen in the inmediate Fairbanks area only got just a, I 



think, a total of less than 20 days of fishing through the whole sumner 

of actual fishing before they were shut off. And the subsistence f.isher­

men, this was the only area that the rule applied that they would cut off 

the subsistence the same time they cut off the cormiercial. Also the 

subsistence fishing was cut off. I have raised protest of this to the 

Governor and to the Fish and Game and they say they think there isn't 

anything they can do about it this year. I'd hope that they would at 

least extend it, the season, since it was a banner year run for all fish 

this year . 

We had a strong run of silvers and I was hoping they would extend the 

season for the next couple of weeks anyway, but apparently that's not 

going to happen . But I do hope that is not the policy in the future years, 

that co1T111ercial fishing should be, if you are going to issue a conmercial 

license that man should be entitled to catch as many fish as corrmercial 

fishermen anywhere else. 

Subsistence, they did place a limit of fi sh in this particular area, 

of 7- ftJ h per fndividual. I have no quarrel with the limitation placed on 

that . I have no quarrel wi th the variable bag dependent upon the area that 

you are in. In fact I would say in the Fairbanks area, 75 fish is a 

reasonable area. Probably down in the lower Yukon if they are still run­

ning dogs, they might use a thousand fish . In essence, t hat is my testimony. 

Representative Nels Anderson : Thanks, Mr. Gillam. Mr . Cowper do you have 

any questions, conments? 



Representative Steve Cowper: Yeah, Harold, if I take it you do ~ot have 

any problem with the subsistence preference, bUt the definition is what's 

in question, okay. 

Mr. Harold Gillam: No, I don't have any quarrel at all with the need for 

subsistence. In fact, I think that Alaskans should be entitled the first 

use of their land. 

Representative Nels Anderson: Mr. Hayes, do you have any questions? 

Representatives Joe Hayes: No, I don't have any questions. 

Representative Nels Anderson: Mr. Gillam, I would just like to get just 

a little bit more clarification on the variable bag limit. Could you just 

give me a little bit more of an idea of what you're shooting at, when you 

make that proposition, please. 

Mr. Harold Gillam: Well, like I said, probably the best example is right 

here in subsistence fishing. The allocation is 75 fish per subsistence 

license. Well, in another area there are no limitations. Now, (do think 

that there should be some reasonable limitations. This is where the 40,000 

fish figure came from, where an area had no limitations whatsoever. There 

should be, I mean that there should be a reasonable limitation. Like I 

said if a person is dependent upon his circumstances, if he needs he's 

running dogs, he is going to need 1000 fish, 1500 fish to feed the dogs 

through the winter. I have no quarrel with that whatsoever. I do have a 

quarrel when a guy takes 10,000 fish, 40,000 fish and starts in under the 



guise of subsistence. And then sells 1t cOftlllercial, or wastes the product, 

and just strips the fish of the roe. Now I think that's wrong. 

wants to use it, I don't care how 1111ch game he takes himself, if he has 

got the full use o~ that game and no waste. I have no quarrel. 

Representative Nels Anderson: Another question that I would have; you 

stated that you requested some kind of action from the Governor and the 

Conrnissioner of the Fish and Game. You had made a request, would you 

elaborate a little more on that please? 

Mr. Harold Gillam: Okay, this is on the arbitrary l imit of cutting off 

the conrnercial fisheries after the conwnercial fishery had taken 15.000 

~ 

fish in this particular area. In the Fairbanks area, I'll define the 

Fairbanks area as the area above the Wood River. The Wood River comes into 

the Tanana about 20 miles above Nenana . But in thi s particular area, pro­

bably from Wood River up subsistence hunting , pardon me, subsistence fishing 

also ceased at the same time as comnercial fishing ceased . The area be-

low the Wood River but still in the Tanana drainage subsistence fishing 

was still allowed to go on. I felt that the 15,000 fish since this was a 

banner run of fish this year was arbitrarily set to low because that was 

set a year ago when they were anticipating a smaller harvest of fish. 

The fish ing ended here on September 4th, very early here and so I 

had appealed to both the Governor and the Co11111i ssioner of Fish and Game 

to examine this thi ng, which I felt was a grave injustice to the people 

of Fairbanks area . They did and felt i t was too late to do anything about 

it this year. I do disagree I think there wa s time they could have opened 



the season up but didn't do any irrepai,,rable dama,ge. iTo me it was just a 
4 

matter ofinjustice more than anything else. 15,0CO fish ~r the number 

of conwnercial fishennen in this part~cular area was unr.easonable just tiMY 

to low. 

Representative Nels Anderson : What was the Governor's response? 

Mr. Harold Gillam: Well the Governor's response was correct in that he said 

he did not -\·ant to use his influence in Fish and Game matters . And he 

referred me to Mr. Skoog and I di~ talk to Mr. Skoog. And I think Mr. Skoog 

will be an excellent Fish and Game 111an I am very much impressed with him. 

To say that he did give me complete satisfaction at this point and time I 

am not going to try and say that but I do think this is an injustice and 

should be corrected. 

Representative Nels Anderson: I would like to introduce Senator P~t Rody 

from Anchorage. He's also a member of our subsistence col111littee. Senator 

do you have any cOfTITlents to make or questions to ask of Mr . Gillam? 

Senator Patrick Rodey: Not at this time , Mr. Chainnan I have know Harold 

for a long time and I chance to talk to him about these things(?). 

Representative Nels Anderson : Are there any other questions from the 

Comnittee? If not than Mr. Gillam thank you. 

Hr. Harold Gillam: Representat i ve Anderson , I thank you very much for your 



Representative Nels Anderson: There is I think a piece of paper going 

around. could that be circulated around the publ~c so that we can have more 

names added to of those people who wish to testify or at least let people 

know that they were here. We would be more than happy to hear from some­

one else at this time if they would like to make a statement to the comnit­

tee to come up to the table here and make a statement at this time. 

Mr. Jim Kowalsky: Hr . Chainnan, I am also supposed to be somewhere else at 

this time. Mr. Chairman, members of the conmittee my name is Jim Kowalsky. 

I am a f '.eld representative for Friends of the Earth. I thought I should 

come to this hearing not certainly as a person who is involved in subsis­

tence tn terms of the practice or certainly not to speak for such users. 

But instead to share with you some of the legal or analysis that we have 

prepared to use in the so called 0-2 negotiations if you might call them 

that which are going on now in Cong ress. So I thought I would just like 

to sulllTlarize them for you. And I'll leave the document with you, it is 

rather lengthy I'm not sure if you would want it printed in the hearing 

record or not at least you may wish to have it in your files I have. 

would like to submit Mr . Chairman, for the record, a brief sulllTlary of what 

is in that document and from that sutm~ry I will further sunmarize, to 

make it short, the analysis that is entitled "Legal Issues and Federal 

Protection for Subsistence on the Proposed National In·terest Lands", which 

is prepared for us by Dennis Kelso, who at the time was a graduating Harvard 

Law stude~t . Who is now working for the State Supreme Court. l should 

mention also that it I think, I would like to recOfTITlend you that if you wfsh 



• 
to ~ear from htm ·and he of course can best speak to hts own analysts, 

• 
I think ft would be appropriate because of the potential conflicts of fn-. . 
terest and so forth. . In his case clerking for the Chief Justice of the· 

State su~rerne Court. You might wish to make a request of the Supreme 

Court Chief Justice at some future tf me ff you are going to be considering 

something in more detail. I am sure that he would be happy to work wfth 

you. The paper addresses four broad categories of these issues: First, 

of all treaty constraints on subsistence policies; secondly, constitutional 

basis of Federal power over biotic resources on Federal lands; third, 

constitutional pen111~sability of the Federal granting priority to subsis­

tence users; and fourth. statutory management boundaries for existing ad­

ministrative agencies. And to really pare this sunwnary down he has con­

cluded that in his review of the le!~al issues surrounding Federal protec­

tions of subsistence that there are four crucial factors which must be in-

eluded in any serious attempt to address this question . First of all. 

management by the most appropriate agency; secondly, clear priority for 

subsistence relative to other consumptive uses and third, meaningful 

participation of subsistence users in shaping regulations and last or four tJ 1, 

flexibility of the subsistence management design . Now I will - the paper 

deals, the analysis deals primarily with Federal issues but I heard you say 

Mr. Chairman your interested in ~he enti 1·e picture. He does also address 

to a lesser extent and in less detail the authority of the State of Alaska 

to grant subsistence prio rity . He discusses these questions and 1'11 

just tell you what they are, the limits enclosed by the constitution of 

Alaska; Alaska Statutes dealing with subsistence~ State Administrative 

Agencies and Subsistence Policy; and I'll just read you a very brief con­

clusion of that discussion. from the paper itself. He says the Alaska 



lature has dealt only with pieces of the problem but it has dele~ited 
' . 

bro•d authority to the ~ard of Fisheries and of Game and to the Depart-

ment of Fish and Game. This authority ha~ been exercised to manage, for · 

subsistence use and to declare the Departments position that subsistence 

is the highest beneficial use of Fish and Game resources. At the present 

this management approach is adequate but as competing demands for use 

of the resources increase the i iequacy of administrative preference un­

supported by a legislative statement of priority he feels will be threat­

ened. And continuing "for purposes of the present analysis it is most 

significant that the State of Alaska has constitutional operating space for 

development of subsistence policy. Full cooperation and participation 

with the Federal Government in Management of the national interest lands is 

possible through both legislative and administrative action and State 

authority can thus be exercised in concert with federal powers in coor­

dinated search to a wise Alaskan subsistence policy. 

I was quoting from Mr. Kelso's conclusions on the discussion on the 

authorities on the State of Alaska which grants us priority . Then there is 

a sunmary of the Federal and States subsistence policy limits. I won't 

read that but I think that it is very important in terms of mixing the two 

authorities, Federal and State, and particularily I call your attention on 

page 121 to the suggested criteria for evaluating policy proposals. I 

should say that this was prepared in anticipation of a rather scbstantial 

discussion over this question which is going on, of course, at this very 

moment in the House Interior Comnittee. Then if I may sutxnit both of these 



Mr. Jim Kowalsky: not in very good shape I apologize for that but 
-

let me just conclude than by making some infonnal suggestions on what 

the State legislature might do. First of all, I think and I'm sure Mr . 

Chariman and your co11eagues are aware that one thing I think needs to be 

done is to piece together a complete picture on the State legislative 

level I have thus addressed that earlier; number two I think this is im­

portant enough to bring up here and to press, and that is I think that the 

State legislature should make a vastly greater effort to insure protection 

for sensitive landscapes and habitats to keep them productive. I think 

so often we get in a me5h involved sometimes in an emotional way over man-

agement, competition for management, management authority, regulations and 

so forth that we really forget that the basic fundamental thing as neccessary 

as the landscape. 

And I'm sure you will agree, I hope you would, that subsistence users, 

in particular, and certainly other users of fish and wildlife and biotic 

resources are extremely vulnerable to resource depletion resulting from other 

consumptive uses of land, such resource development which results in habitat 

destruction. And what I'm suggesting is I really think looking at it from 

a functionary working for a national organization whether you like it or not 

there is a great deal of decision making to be going on at the national level 

particularily in Congress and I think the State legislature might help the 

State to change its image. I think we've seen some private organizations 



which have toured the country asking . th~ nation to support less protection 

not more. I'm not sure if I may, Mr. Cowper, post' the question of what 

the legislative steering council on 0-2 would do but I think there is an 

image there that needs to be portrayed that the Alaskans are sincerely in­

terested in protecting sensitive habitat because, again, it is the basis 

for production of wildlife and other sources that are vital to subsistence 

use. We have a national controversy raging right now which is in many ways 

extremely unfortunate over the bowhead whale. And then, thirdly, and lastly, 

I w~uld suggest that there be a very strong emphasis if I could suggest 

thi s on educational programs. They might be arranged in this manner: First 

of all, to tell the story of subsistence needs perhaps to the States very 

rapidly growing urban population; what are the personal needs; what are the 

landscape needs for example. And, to also make that story available to the 

nations's urb~ n population who have almost no knowlwedge at all if any about 

these kind of uses of animals and other natural products. Secondly under 

a educational program I think the legislature might think about identifying 

more clearly the limits of the resource and what more efficient means for 

less wasteful harvests for the users themselves might be, or at least 

help them to or work wi t h them to help identify these aspects of the har­

vest itself. Lastly, I think this is extremely important to involve those 

very knowledgeable local people who are directly involved in subsistence 

activities in some sort of on going research program to determine the needs, 

detenning the range itnd the habitat requirements, the carrying capacity and 

the harvest capacity of the resource, involvement of the local people. 

That sort of a three prong educational approach which perhaps your cDn1T1ittee 

might consider. 



I( ' 
' I ~ L' 

In c~osing, I'd like to thank you for ~etti~g me give you these views 
. I 

and this materi.al and would certainly li~e to be around to assist .in the 
1 '-4 ' -

I 

· .deliber~t1ons in Congress which are going on no~ and will probably continue 

throughout most of next year. Thank you1 very much . 
' I 

Representative Nels Anderson: Thank you, Mr. Kowalsky. Are there any 

questions from the members of the conm1ttee? Mr. Cowper, how are feeling? 

Mr. Hayes? 

Representative Joe Hayes: None, Mr. Chairman. 

~resentative Nels Anderson 1 don't have any questions at this time but 

I would like to accept that report . Thank you Mr. Kowalsky. I note in the 

audience is Representative Sarah, somebody, Smith back there . Would you 

like to join us up here? You would be more than welcome. Are there enough 

chairs for people back there if not I'm sure acconmodations can be made for 

people to be comfortable. Is there anyone else who would like to make a 

statement to the conmittee at this time on their views on subsistence? 

Mr. Al Fabian: Yeah, I would like to talk a little bit here. 

Representative Nels Anderson: Would you give us your name first? 

Mr . All Fabian: Yeah, my name is Al Fabian. Born and raised here in Fairbanks . 

And a half breed. My mom was born in Rampart . It' s 10 years now since I've 

been going back and forth to Rampart now where my mom lives . I've been 

learning how to fish. I learned the technique of building a wheel during 



the s1.111ner, and in blck 1975 and 1976 I bought license, conwnertcal 

But I didn't sell enough fish there to keep the license according to Fish 

I mean I (inaudible) subsistence f ishing. Since I just got 

through subsistence fishing I feel I got the right to fish over here 

born and raised here. But 75 fish, that is not enough to make 

(inaudible) thats not enough. Besides the closing of the subsistence it 

was open on Monday and closed on Wednesday night, 6 o'clock. Now if I ain't 

got a greezer to keep tlte fish I catch than I'm storing out of nothing. 

75 fish I think it should be open again for people that, because in Rampart 

I could rrobably be able to keep fish now where it is cold enough to keep. 

But they got no limit over there . Subsistence there is you cat ch as many 

as you want, as long as you use them and have a good purpose to use them, 

but over here, there is nothing. I feel that the 75 fish limit should be 

knocked off for people that have been fishing and have records of fishing. 

I feel my self that if they close it here. that will be the strong hold 

and next will be Nenana and on down the river . Where are we going to go? 

Get a big boat like the other guys and go out in the ocean? Put out a 

six mile net when al1 we got is a 100 ft. maybe a 12 foot wide wheel? 

Whi ch is like taking a squat in a doggone big river. The fish just don't 

go in one spot. 

catching fish . 

You can tell that there's people all over the river 

I just don't feel that's right that we be discriminated 

over here because this is Fairbanks . This is just l ike any other village 

as far as I'm concerned . Just that we got more business over here. 

Representative Nels Anderson : Is that it? I've got a question . What wa s 

the open season again? 



and subsistence when hand and hand this· year. 

Representative Nels Anderson: What f s your name? 

Robert Clay: Robert Clay and excuse me for interrupting. 

Representative Nels Anderson : To your knowledge t hat was the only opening? 

Mr . Alfred Fabian : That was it. That was it man . They never opened ft 

again and that was late August I'm pretty sure. I don't got the dates 

but I would have dates but I didn ' t know about the meeting until yesterday. 

I called the Tanana Chiefs to see what kind of representation they had 

down in Juneau at present. 

Representative Nels Anderson : Well basically you feel that the 75 fish i s 

not enough? You would like to see it increased? 

Mr. Alfred Fabian : That is not enough. Yeah, I'd like to see it increased . 

Representative Nels Anderson : By what amount would you like to see it in­

creased? 



all you tatch is drift and thats going to .pick the net up. Then 1 Jai n 
• 

' you might hit a spot where you will have a fish in every goldurn ~ole. 
' 

You know your gambelling all the time. You put a wheel in you never know 

when the daughter-in-law is going to come down and wipe the ·whole wheel out. 

And it takes time to build a wheel and it takes mJney too. I'm not the 

richest person in Alaska thats for sure. I can't afford no fancy stuff . 

But I don't like to be messed over neither. 

Representative Nels Anderson: Thank you. Any questions or cOfTITlents? 

Mr. Fabian, what did Fish and Game tell you was 

the reason for that low a number? Did they just tel ~ you there wasn't 

enough fish or what? 

Mr . Alfred Fabian : 75 they figure thats enough for any family over here. 

And you get five king . Thats all that is it . The one I asked earlier about 

that was just talking and he said he thinks that is to much himself that 

limited amount here, but thats not enough. People eat fish just besides 

just Friday. 

Representative Nels Anderson: Mr. Hayes do you have any questions or 

comments at this time? 

Representative Joe Hayes: No I don't think so. 



Bud Wiese: I represent the Interior Wildlife Association of Alaska. 

I came here mainly to listen and see what the other bookings were going to 

be. But in connection w~th the idea that you wanted additional information 

also we did bring copies of testimony that we gave to Keith Specking. I 

thougtt'there were going to be three people here so I brought three copies 

of the infonnation that we have to Keith Specking on the problems with king 

netting in Alaska . Also I brought three copies of a more or less news item 

we send out to our members dated August 20th in which we marked two areas 

where we made c01Tment on the subsistence in the subsistence hunti ng regions 

in Alaska . You may be interested to know we have been working on this 

problem. And than there are some corrments I would like to make here. Also 

I only got three copies . 

This is dated October 4th, from the Interior Wildlife placed to be 

considered for Fish and Wildlife ~anagement . To perpetuate the resources 

of first priori ty there simply not enough fish and game for the present 

and fut•1re needs for the population of Alaska. We feel that the population 

of Alaska has exploded and will continue to grow and the rate that the fish 

and game is not going to sufficient for unlimited use . In othE.' words its 

going to have to be managed as to what it can stand to take and not unlimited 

like we have in the past, becau~e of the population growth in the past and 

in the future . And also along the same lines these numbers of animals and 

fish that we have had in the past are no longer secluded by transportation . 



Its ,,a 11 being ha,rvested a net I doni t care what part your tal'ki ng abOut. . . 
I 

\\ 
the rain will no longer stop them and dis-

' ' ' 

.-y_. ~ > ) 

~eather does' not ·stop( people, 

tance does not stop ttiem. Second, we don't favor subsistence is the final. 

We figure ft fs not the final. We've tried to work on it we've walked the 

floor. We believe that anybody trying to define subsistence is just wast­

ing our time. Subsistence, as far as we are concerned was the life style 
·' 

of A:aska. And about the time of t.he pipeline this era of Alaska passed. 

Population has caused the subsistence style of living fn Alaska to be an 

era of the past. There probably is no true subsistence residents in Alaska 

living 100% subsistence way right today. We feel that is a thing of the 

past. Subsistence living especially 100%. Subsistence is being used as 

a means of cormierical use and or welfare. As it was brought up earlier 

that we heard a report with nothing to substantiate it that subsistence in 

the Yukon that the fish were stripped of the roe the fish were left to spoil 

in the river and the roe was set to use contnercially. Ivory off from 

the walrus in the Bering Sea is being used conmercially the animal itself 

was left in the sea to rot. But the ivory was used conmercially. Now 

earlier, after the Western Arctic caribou herd was found to be pretty well 

depleted the Fish and Game tried to use this as a welfare for the contnunities 

up there. And that was nullified by the courts when the system they were 

using. So as I say for subsistence to use as a conmerical use or welfare 

use I think that this is wrong. You must find some other way if we're going 

to use subsistence. 

Subsistence - definiation should not be attempted along ethnic lines. 



. 
strrong point we must defend even against the Congress of the Uni~ed States. 

~ ~ ' 

I think ~hey have i~eas th~t t~ey should violate this but I don't ·thin~ 
• f ' ~ 

' 
we s~uld allow it. Because it is going to le~~e problems that .will pro~ 

bably never be 'settled. In or out of courts either way. Another one, . 
the game laws must be enforced. And I'm sure that you people are aware as 

we are the enforcement is extremely weak and the public and the courts do 

not support our enforcement efforts, of our law people who are in the field. 

I gave a list of the infractions those that are brought to court and are 

finded and their absolutely ridiculous. The violations could be for an 

officer to make an arrest spend the time to write up the report, which 

would probably take him days to do, all the red tape, and the guy goes to 

court gets fined $50.00 with $25.00 suspended. I think this is ridiculous . 

If we are going to get any teeth in our laws we're to have to get some en­

forcement and get the backing of the public to help get some enforcement 

and I think the courts are going to have to start putting some fines on 

the people who violate these laws to make them draw their attention . Right 

now it behoves somebody to violate these laws because your not going to get 

hurt enough with that kind of fine. 

Representative Nels Anderson: Thank you Mr. Wiese. Mr . Cowper do you have 

any comnents or Mr. Wiese at this time? 

Representative Steve Cowper : Yeah . There's a whole lot to what you say 

there about the enforcement. I've watched that over a period of over 10 

years or so and its always been tough to get a conviction and once you got 

a conviction it was really tough to really punish for the violation . There 



maybe some ways that we can improve that. Something that I would '1ike 

to ask you. suppose, lets assume that game and number of game is shrink-

ing up and you have to make some sort of priorities. You have to fig­

ure out what the allowable harvest is and create some preference as to the 

harvest? How do you think we ought to handle that? Do you think it 

ought to be handled on the basis • geographical basis? You think the 

local residents of the area, of the management area we'll say, should have 

the preference on the taking? How would you handle it if you had that 

problem to wrestle with? 

Mr. Bud Wiese : Well legally the game belongs to the people of the United 

States . So I feel that legally everybody is entitled to them. Now I go 

along with the concept of management and as I said earlier that game is 

the first priority. Perpetuation of the game . So if we have an a1·~a, as I 

say transportation is no longer a problem and if you try to make it into 

a certain area and going to limit it to the people in that area than 

you are getting into the more ethnic group and your giving them priorities 

to that resource. And your denying the equal rights of everybody else that 

has liberty to that. I go along with the concept of the Fish and Game in 

that you have a resource in an area you control it by two things . One by 

limit and another is by length of season. And I think your first one, one 

of them is length of season and if you have to shorten your length of season 

sc far than your limit has to drop and you still have to go further than 

you have to go to the pennit system. I don't feel you can only shorten 

the season just so far than you have to go to the pennit system and on the 

resident against non-resident I don't want to make any contnent cause I 

just don't feel I studied it enough. I do know one problem that is coming 

along this line, we're getting alien hunters that are coming from Europe 



"l\H~M·~"' that are moving in erwnasse. It's multiplying by numbers that people 

don't even realize. We don't have the figures but we hope to get them in 

the very near future. And will be able to make more definite comnents 

on this. But we do know this that they are multiplying at a rate that 

people can't believe. 

Representative Steve Cowper: Well, lets take it another step further. 

What if the law were to set up priorities of use, don't you suppose that 

those hunters from other countries ought to be the first ones to get cut off? 

Mr. Bud Wiese: This is right; the alien should first because the game 

belongs to the people of the United States. 

Representative Steve Cowper: Okay, now would you prioritize, let's leave 

aside subsistence for the minute, would you prioritize between com­

mercial fishennen and sports fishennen. 

Mr. Bud Wiese: I've not studied that I wouldn't want to make a c01T1Tient. 

I've never taken that up with IT\Y directors of the organization or other 

people. 

Representative Steve Cowper : Okay, thank you. 

Participant in Audience: What have you studied? 

Representative Steve Cowpe~: Pardon? 



Participant: How can you make these statements that you make without 

having actually 

Representative Nels Anderson: Escuse me, excuse me, what is your name? 

Marian Hao: My name is Marian Hao and I'm from Fairbanks . 

Representative Nels Anderson: Okay, you know if you'd like to take this 

up later with the gentlemen, thats your priviledge, but I think that 

possibly members of the c011111ittee would like to pos$ibly ask the same 

questions to him and 

Marian Hao : I'm sorry. 

Representative Nels Anderson: That's okay but if you don't mind we would 

like to carry the ball from here. Steve do you have any other conrnents? 

Representative Steve Cowper : No , no thank you . 

Representative Nels Anderson: Mr . Hayes? 

Representative Joe Hayes : Just to carry what Steve started a little further . 



situation of dt~inishing s~pply. What about ah. d9 you feel 

other states should be cut off before Alaskan residents? 

Mr. Bud Wiese: I don't think you're allowed to do it legally. In the 

(inaudible) belongs to everybody. The resource belongs to everybody in 

the United States. Now we have in certain are~s been allowed 50-50 against 

residents, or 60-40 in certain items. Some places I guess it's even been 

90-10. 10% residents ah. I mean 10% non-residents and 90% residents on 

pennit basis. This may change and how far we can go with it I don't know 

constitutionally. Bu t the (inaudible) of the resources belong to the 

people of the United States. As far as corrmercial versus sports, I 

don't, as far as fish, salmon I believe the fish they are talking about . 

I do know that or feel, 

The Sports fishing of people are the people I have not discussed this 

with. This particular item that's why I hate to COfllTlent upon it. But my 

personal feeling is that the sports fishennen are allowed a take of salmon. 

As to what the resource can stand. In other words, I don't believe you should 

shut off the sports fishennan completely for the contnercial fisherman. 

Nor, do I believe you should cut the comnercial fishennan clean off for 

the sports fisherman. There's got to be a balance there, I'm not much of 

a salmon fisherman, except at Chitna. I do believe I like to go down 

there and have for over 25 years now. I started in the early SO's, going to 

Chitna , we do every year, religiously. But outside of that I'm not much 

of a salmon man , I hav~ not studied the contnerical aspects of salmon I 

don't know anything of the management of the salmon itself. I'm talking 



Repres~ntative Joe Hayes: In other. wor.as: you don ~t feel 

that 'a're attempting to live the subsistence life style, either 100% or 

50%, should have any greater right to the game than somebody from Seattle? 

Is that what you're saying? Or you just don't think the law 

Mr. Bud Wiese: I would like to say yes. But knowing that the game belongs 

to everybody, than I don't believe that anybody has subsisted, as far as 

the production of meat, and berries, off of Alas~a, than anyone in our 

family. We haven't bought meat for over 30 years. And we harvest a lot of 

berries every year. I'd like to continue that style of life, but I don't 

feel that I have 100% right on that over anybody in the United States. I 

believe we have to give a percentage to them. 

Representative Nels Anderson: Mr. Hayes. 

Representative Joe Hayes: I just think that this more than - I think the 

difference is that in your particular case you have the option of living 

off game or going down to the store. And your talking about the extreme 

side of subsistence is, the head waters of some rivers, where there is 

no local store. 

Mr. Bud Wiese: Don't you believe that our welfare progrJm today is so, 

when I mean welfare, its always have been for our people. That there should 

be no people hungry today? Unless they do by their own choice. I can go 



transpor.ta.tion, that we have today, w1'ttl1 the economics that ~e have today ~ 11 ... • f j' 

and knowing our welfare progr~m. what little I've know of them, ·1 don't think 

there is any excuse for anybody to starve unless it's still, its just 

completely stupidity that they haven't contacted one of the agencies to help 

them. 

Representative Nels Anderson: Mr. Hayes. 

Representative Joe Hayes: Bud, you've got five tough questions here. Four 

of them we can't deal with next session, we're not going to settle . But 

one of them, one of the questions we can deal with. I hope you'll talk to 

some of the representatives from Fairbanks and help them, through your 

organization. We have a (inaudible) with the administration in tightening 

up enforcement laws. I've had a bill in with the special Fish and Game 

prosecuter for three years now. And Fairbanks delegation were very good. 

About supporting a different approach to enforcement, one that is going to 

be meaningful and I hope your organization will continue to do something. 

Because this is the one thing we can do and do it right and we can do it 

soon. And I think that most of us admit that the enforcement system now is 

inadequate. 

Mr. Bud Wiese: He have another tragic problem as you know, we have tackled 

in the last couple of years, the last few years. We've been organized, if 

you have followed some of the stuff we have forwarded to you, in the last 



Mr. Bud Wiese: Yeah, we keep you pretty well posted I think. Yeah, 

are just getting into 'the enforc~nt deal that was just brought up. 

That it is a problem and we decided to take some action on but we haven't 

channeled our efforts and we're going to have to get a hold of somebody 

to more or less give us some guidance of which way to push on it. Because 

we don't have anybody in our organization that is legally available that 

does have the knowledge to help us you know, to channel our efforts so we 

got to get somebody to give us some lead as to which way to go of what we 

want to do to accomplish this move. 

Represent ?. tive Joe Hayes: A lot of tough questions that can ' t be dealt 

with on a short tenn basis. Fish and Game is full of very tough issues . 

But enforcement is one that can be dealt with now on a perhaps a more ration· 

al and more timely basis them perhaps many other issues. 

Mr. Bud Wiese : We told us. We didn't feel it was so much the enforcement 

issues and the fines that are levied for those violations that are caught. 

That we feel this is more deterrant you know . A guy goes out here and 

gets caught snagging salmon or an over limit of gear, fine him $50.00 and 

$25.00 suspended, well what can you lose? You know, you don't lose anything. 

And I think it's a disgrace to the officers themselves and deterrant for 

them to make anymore arrests because of the hours they have to spend just 



. ~ . 
the judge doesn't have a thing to say on that. I think that is the kjnd of 

' . .. 
things were going to have to lay down to get some teeth in our laws. Is 

it legal to lets lay down the criteria for what the crime is and fi'ne Mm 

and place him in jail. And the judge has no discretion as to what to 

change that. And then you can listen to the people and if you listen to 

the judge is going to say its a $50.00 fine with $25.00 or $30.00 suspended. 

Put some teeth into it. 

Representative Joe Hayes: I think you can see us approach (inaudible) 

probably enact next session we would be enacting a drunk driving law with 

a mandantory sentence. 

Mr. Bud Wiese: Well I think that is what your going to have to do here. 

Representative Joe Hayes: I think it will be studied before it's applica­

tion before the State. 

Mr. Bud Wiese : In one other area, along the sam~ lines, now this is 

personal, I haven't had a chance to talk to the others yet I feel that the 

biologists, or anybody in the Department should be deputized to make arrests . 

Give them a basic training course on ho"" to arrest people and be allowed 

to make the arrests. Because they are the ones in the field. We don ' t 

have enough people in the field, even those kind of people not just the 



,, 

No more questions Mr . Chairman. 

Mr. Bud Wiese: Mr. Chainnan, I might observe that biologists in the field 

biologist very often are deputized for those very reasons you are talking 

about. They don't like to be called that maybe thats the reason they - Well 

if they have a sincere belief in what they are doing, and in their jobs, 

I think this would be part of their program. 

Representative Steve Cowper : I guess what I just said is they would prefer 

not to be enforcement agents. But they are all deputized. They have to 

take a five day enforcement course or something like that but most of them 

are. 

Mr. Bud Wiese: Well I didn't know that . 

Representative Nels Anderson: Mr. Wiese please take a seat I have some 

questions for you. Other members have any further questions? Mr. Wiese I 

take exception at some of the comments that you made. Vou made reference 

to the walrus on the west coast of Alaska I believe. Vou stated that 

walrus have been taken only for conwnercial purposes. 

Mr. Bud Wiese: I didn't say only. If I did I'm wrong. I said there was 

a lot of them taken for ivory only. 

Representative Nels Anderson: Well I attended the meeting with the central 



Representa t 1 ve Nels Anderson': K1pnuk is miles from Anchorage, which 

1s how far from Fairbanks, anyway 1t's ·~:a long ways. And now those people 

are a little bit tired of people blaming them for the taking of walrus for 

comnerical purposes only. Apparently you don't know those people very well. 

I 'm sure you don't know those people at all. But they take walrus. And 

they take it for the meat. I'm not done yet. And they see walrus drifting 

up to the beach without heads. Okay, now they are tired of being blamed 

for that . Now who is doing it? 

Mr . Bud Wiese: Well I don't know but 

Representative Nels Anderson: Who is doing it? 

Mr . Bud Wiese : I believe the report of one party flew the coast over 

there and counted over 900 carcasas on the beach with the heads off, with 

the tusks cut off . Not even dug out. 

Representative Nels Anderson: Who's doing it? 

Mr . Bud Wiese : I don't know . 

Representative Nels Anderson: Okay, If anyone has any idea who is doing 

thi s and it goes back to your question of enforcenent , you know, we've got 



Mr. Bud Wiese: Yeah, for your 1nfonnation I'm on the guide board. 

a guide. I'm a non-guide that serves on the Alaska Guide and Licensing Guide 

Control Board. I've been on it now for three or four years. This is 

where iI get a lot of this information. People from Savoonga and Gambell 

the (!;omething) brought in and talked to other people from that area who 

we are trying to help become guides so they can guide clients in that are~ 

Representative Nels Anderson: Well I understand that. Now on your piece 

of paper here you have given to us, you have concerned sportsman. Now 

what in you opinion is a sportsman? What is that? 

Mr. B~!~ Wiese: This is a man that goes out and gives fair chase to game. 

And he buys a hunting license, he pays his share for the management of 

game. This is a sportman. 

Representative Nels Anderson: Okay what does he do with the meat? 

Mr. Bud Wiese : I would say he would utilize it. And I would, and I just 

wrote a note to the fellow that is with ine, Walter Henderson, Charles 

Graves, (Ulmer Smithney?) We wrote to Alberta to find out what they have 

and their law reads "It is prohibited to leave edible meat in the field 

or to allow it to be lost or spoiled." Thi s prohibited by law. And I am 

getting tired of people coming in go up in the hills, kill a sheep, 25 

miles back in and they come out with the horns and the (inaubible). 



. ' ' 
They may some day and I know it does happen. I don·• t' leave meat • . ·vou 

_,.~ . 
l . . • . 

go into these walk-in ar.eas. We went in there a.,few years ago, there was 
, • '·' ' • ' l 

I • 

a ram, shot right thro~gh the chest,,. he couldn'l~ 'have gone 30 yards. B~t 

he was. (inaudible) on one side. It was a' walk-in area. No ~ne even took 

the time to dress him out. The next year Harley went in there, on the 

day of (inaudible) it was a walk in. He went in with a tractor, he and 

his buddy, they loaded up enough meat they couldn't even eat it all, 

while they were in there. Meat picked up right along the trail . I 

don't believe those guys are sportsmen. 

Representative Nels Anderson: I'm very much aware of the wanton waste 

around as I was the author of that legislation. That put more teeth into 

that particular weak enforcement area and the one thing I wanted to get 

at was the moose season in the peninsula in units 17 and 9. September 

10 through September 20. You know what happens to moose around September. 

They go into the rutt. 

Mr. Bud Wiese: Right. 

Representati~e Nels Anderson: What happens to the meat? 

Mr. Bud Wiese : Well, I've killed, we have the same here, I've killed moose 

up to the last day of September, that have been with many cows, and I've 

been very careful. I've skinned them, remove the hide, taken them home and 

hung them for two or three weeks and its been very good. 



Representative Nels Anderson: I'm telling you Jhat the people tell me back 

there in my district. 

Mr. Bud Wiese: The hide stinks . You've yot to use care in removing the 

hide. The caribou is a different animal . 

Representati ve Nels Anderson: That may be the case. I'm telling you that 

it's your word against theirs , and those people live out there and they 

aren't going to touch that meat. Now what we've got to try to do is to 

accomodate not only the meat hunter but the sport hunter too. And I think 

the sport hunter has a pretty good, a lot of (inaudible) influence in the 

legislature. 

Mr Bud Wiese: In other words your going to try to regulate the use of the 

product rather than the taking of it . 

Representative Nels Anderson: Well to regulate the season so the meat 

hunter is satisfied with that meat , when he catches it. 

Mr . Bud Wiese : What is the season out there? 



Representative Nels Anderson: 
•. 

go i'nto the rutt f n the Bay. 

Mr. Bud Wiese: They start, yea~, But they aren't actually 

Representative Nels Anderson : By September 10 that meat stinks and I am 

aware of that. 

Mr. Bud Wiese: Well you have different moose down there than we have up 

here. 

Representative Nels Anderson: We might have . Their a little bit more 

agressive. 

Mr. Bud Wiese: I can varify what I have said right here. Many people 

have killed moose. There are probably people sitting here in the audience 

who can varify what I say. 

Representative Nels Anderson: Okay, I want to go to another section of your 

presentation where you stated it would be waste of time for us to try to de­

fine subsistence . And I would like to state that the conwnittee agrees with 

your assessment . I think that is correct because in September I prepared 

a full session legislative report for my constitutants . This was done in 



fishing in every region of the State." And my belief, I haven't sold it 

to the co11111ittee yet, but that ~ · my personal assessment. I think that -

I think that we are on the same track. Going to the subsistence, you say, 

was a life style. I think to a degree you are correct. I think that there 

are people in rural Alaska that still heavily dependent on the resources 

of the land and the waters. They are greatly dependent on those resources. 

And you may not agree. But there is one thing you don't understand. When 

a person comes from Kipnuk or some other village, they don't have acess to 

all the services you are referring to . They don't have telephones, they 

can't get on an airplane and j ust hop on a plane. They don't have scheduled 

air service. They have to charter they have to get to those agencies that 

exist in Bethel and other places of the State. And they don't get that 

kind of service that you think is available. Their not getting it . And 

those people need that meat , to survive . Now you may not agree, but I'm 

telling you just exactly what I feel about this . That's the way it is. 

Mr. Bud Wiese: Well maybe you can answer my question on this . Like the 

caribou now. That western caribou herd continues to decline, and that meat 

is not available to those people, what is going to happen? What ha ppened 

to the people in Anaktuvik last year when a lot of caribou was in that area? 

And the people there never got a caribou? 



Representative Nels Anaerson: That's an interesting proposition beca4se 

last year the Department of Fish and Game said there was 34,000 caribou. 

Now they up'ed that to 75,000. For some reason the herd increased dra­

matically. Twofold, but wha.t happened there? I don't know wha~ happened. 

don't think the Department· of Fish and Game knows what went on up there. 

' ' 
Mr. Bud Wiese : I don't know. I think we have to many people behind the 

desk and not enough people out in the field. 

Representative Nels Anderson: I agree with you basically. Okay going back 

to the other thing, the enforcement aspect of this. I agree with you that 

enforcement efforts are weak. But, there i s one thing I would like to 
' share wi th you and the publ ic i s that I am getting pretty tired of people 

using the Department of Fish and Game as whipping boys. We're not supporting 

those people, as much as we should be . You know where thei r money comes from 

don't you. They sell our fish and our game . They sell our moose and 

caribou and our bears. And the money they get from licenses they sell is 

matched with Federa 1 funds. Okay. so if they don't go out and se 11 enough 

cari bou, moose and bear their not goi ng to get enough money to get thei r 

payroll . Okay, then ~e have to start dipping into the general funds to 

start supporting these people. So to kick them around, i t 's not going to 

help to ki ck then around. 

Mr . Bud Wiese: Well, enforcement is not being supported now by the game 

1 icenses. 

Representative Nels Anderson: I don't know where the money supposed to be 

coming from but I 

••• 



Bud Wiese: 

the Department of Public Safety now. 

Representative Nels Anderson: 

gement and other purposes comes from the sale of licenses. 

Mr. Bud Wiese: All of it does. 

Representative Nels Anderson: Okay. 

Mr . Bud Wiese: And this is why I think you should get money from the 

general fund for the Department of Fish and Game because they are allowing 

people other than the sportsman and the subsistence uses, but the people 

that buy the license, to help manage this game and their not convicting, 

ah, putting one penny towards the management of it. Even the trapping 

iicense money doesn't go toward the management of game but yet our 

Department of Fish and Game are paying for it . 

Representative Nels Anderson: I agree with you . That' s a good point. 

Mr. Bud Wiese : Your paying for it . I'm paying for it . If the trapping 

license go into the general fund they use it for something else . 

Representative Nels And~.!!Q!!: Any other questions or cOlllllents, gentlemen? 

Thank you very much Mr . Wiese. Anybody else at th is time? 

Sam Oemientieff: Chairman Anderson and conmittee members . My name is Sam 



'• .. """""'"'°''""·", -.:· •' . I fl 
~ Oemientieff. I ~was born at Holy Cross, Alaska and raised in Fairbanks. 

>/if"""'!';,;.,·..-r.'· I am presently employeed with the Tanana Chiefs Conference Corporation. 

I am a fonner member of tbe Alaska State Board of Fisheries. And I only 

say this because I fully realize and don't envy you 'in your job in hoping 

to define subsistence for all those concerned. When I first heard the 

word subsistence, which was many years ago, it was used along with the 

phrase "Living off the land". During those years, which was during ~he 
' 

1940's, there was not as many people as there are now. During those years, 

your job of defining subsistence, would have been a lot easier because the 

pioneers, . we're the remanents, of the miners and explorers of Alaska that 

stated in Alaska. These early newcomers to Alaska found natives, in the 

most part, friendly and subsisting off the land. Many pioneers today, 

livinq all over the Slate, would have to testify to the fact that the native 

people were than sole subsistence users of land when they got here. Native 

people are a passive type people to a certain extent. Having trust in one's 

word. But the native people are now realizing that all words, bills, or 

just about any dealings with almost anyone has to be carefully scrutinized. 

Native people in Alaska'a bush areas are not at this moment being are now at 

the moment being told of people, agencies, projects seeking Federal groups, 

associations, boards and contnittees . That are trying to help them one way 

or another. The subsistence life style i s a constant time consuming and 

continuing process. But the native people are finding out in order to l ive 

within each populations and regulated life styles that they have to listen 

and try to cooperate with all agencies, boards etc . I think I safely say 

that the native people are more than wi lling to live with cooperative 

management of fi sh and game, wildlife, renewable resources. But are now 

confused by so many different agencies that take care of these different 
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is as much alive toda'y· as working for w~.ges or going into·· business iS ~ 
I ' 

way of life for others. You cannot come out to say "we're going to phase 

out business" because it is a thing that was born so many years ago. The 

same pertains to subsistence. It must be protected. It is as natural as 

self preservation. Or an animals own instinct. Subsistence is a natural 

heritage of traditional life style used by any native of a region or 

country. Traditional life styles encompasses the use of fish, game, 

plants, just about anything that could be captured or harvest for personal 

need or for in Alaska ~urvival. I'm leaving you copies of testimonies 

given to other agencies or boards by Al Ketsler, president of Tanana Chiefs. 

And others . Thank you. 

Representative Nels Anderson: Thank you Mr . Oemientieff. Mr. Cowper do 

you have any questions? 

Representative Steve Cowper: No, Mr. Chairman . 

Representative Nels Anderson: Mr. Hayes. 

Representative Joe Hayes : No, Mr . Chairman. 

Representative Nels Anderson: Thank you very much 



I just hear.d about this hearing and I ·just wrote down a few notes in an 

outline I'.d 11ke to speak from. I'd like to beg~n by first giving some 

Center pol'fcies rielated to subsistence. And I might say, the Center, 

ever since is fonnation in 1971 has been very concerned about the protec­

tion of subsistence rights and has played a very active role from that point 

to the day the bullhead whale issue has been taken up. A lead I think in 

terms of environmental groups to try and protect the bullhead whale. The 

subsistence rights of the bullhead whale. But our general policies are as 

follows: First of all we believe the subsistence harvest should not exceed 

the carrying capacity of a reg ion. And I think there is probably a general 

agreement on that. Furthennore, we think that subsistence users should 

be given preference over other consumptive users. In other words subsistence 

should be a preference over sports hunting or trophy hunting. Non-con­

sumptive users rights, to a resource, should be co··equal to the consumptive 

users. We don't think that the non-consumptive and consumptive subsistence 

rights can co-exist . Subsistence regulations should involve subsistence 

users, such as regional boards. Now in the HR 39 the Udall 02 bill you 

were supporting the idea of regional subsistence boards. And more recently 

we have seen that Governor Hanmond has come up with satellite fish and 

game boards. And I'm not really sure of the details on this but we gen­

erally support the idea of grass roots approach and the getting the sub­

sistence people directly involved in the regulations that effect them. In 

terms of preference we feel the State rather than the Federal agencies 

should have principal responsible for subsistence regulations. And we feel 

that subsistence rights should be available to non-natives as well as natives. 

And in fact if you go into some villages you see kind of a cross culturization. 

You see some non-native who are, habits and I've even seen an accent that is 
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But Mayor Gillam earlier mentioned that there shouldn't be a racial ,._-c.,_ .•••.• ~ .. ,,.,., 

definition for subsistence. And I tend to agree with that but I aho 

have sat in with arguments with lawyers about just how you define this. 

The distinction between racial and on-racial. Especially with Federal 

legislation. And I have also tend to agree with Congressman Siberling 

when he says maybe racial distinction is the best thing to do to avoid a 

court challenge. A legal challenge because of the Federal trust responsi­

bility. So, though a lot of us don't like to think of racial distinction 

between these things I think we also have to realize that it is in the 

United States Constitution that there is a Federal Trust responsibility 

to natives and its on that basis that I think it derives its co1T1T1ents. 

So its, you know, his concern is standing the court challenge. Our Center 

policies also feel because of the carrying capacity is limited and because 

of the number of people who want to live with subsistence life style keeps 

increasing, in fact, I guess, the carrying capacity is decreasing its in­

evidable that were going to have some kind of qualifications of who can 

have the right to subsistence and who can't. I know, particularily in the 

villages, people don't like to think of the thought of qualifications but 

I think reality is such that this may happen. I think, lets see it was 

mentioned that the ah the, your comnittee is interested in thoughts regard­

ing the definition of subsistence. Now implicitly, if you have followed 

occassions you are defining subsistence. Also, I, these qualifications 

should be dynamic because subsistence, like any life style, changes and 

adapts to the circumstances to the world around it. So, it shouldn't be 

locked into something rigid because I think it would really work against 



the protection of subsistence rights . But I think if you had these. if 

you had qualifications with tours set up, ah, to tie up to what ever the 

carrying capacity is in c1rcumstanc~s in a regional area. People in a 

region in a strong voice would say just how these were established. That 

(inaudible) you are defining subsistence. I'd like to make a few recom­

mendations . One, we felt that State legislation is needed to clearly give 

preference to subsistence users over other comsumptive users. And as Jim 

Kowalsky was indicating, I think that this perhaps the biggest problem 

on the State level. We see in the Department of Fish and Game that there 

is some kind of i nterest i n tenns of giving preference to the subsistence 

user. But I think that the administrative discretion not that cut by 

state statutes . And I think it's created problems on the national level 

because we ah in the 02 hearings, in Fa i rbanks , we essentially heard the 

Siberl i ng COOll'littee say "well if the State can't give preference to sub­

sistence it will be imposed on the Federal bas is". I think the State 

legislature also needs to recognize that subsistence is closely tied into 

the protection of habitat. And, in thi s regards the, I think that there 

needs to be stronger legislation to protect critical habitat . Especially 

species that are important to subsistence use. 

Another reconwnendation I would like to make is that in regards to 

qualif ications that the Department of Fi sh and Game conduct a census holding 

village meetings throughout the State. Finding ou t just what wou ld be 

acceptable to these people . What di fferent criteria would be workable . In 

that line, the Center replied to the Fish and Game (wildlife management) 

plans we had a lengthly letter which was sent to Conwnissioner Skoog. And 

in there we recomnended a few criteria which might be considered for 

qualificat ions . Here again I'd like to enphasfse that this is only for 



user must demonstrate a conmitrnent to a life style rather, than mere.ly . . , 
t 

speaking from experience. One of 'the fear5 we have is say someone from 

Southern California comes up here and has romantic ideas of what subsis­

tence is and like to go out to the bush and live a subsistence life style, 

Spend a year out there. Builds a log cabin, shoot a lot of game, find its 

pretty monotonious and finds it doesn't have the same excitement as 

California did . And that's not the thing for him and leaves. Were, in 

fact at the Enfironmental Center we get a lot of people, especially through 

the su1T111er, coming through saying that I just come here from California and 

I would like to go out and l ive in the bush and live a frontier life style. 

I'm very apprehensive about that because to many have romantical ideals 

about what that is. And I think that if they did go out there they would 

degrade the carrying capacity and find that it it not what they really 

want and go back to the urban or suburban area or something like that. So 

I think the people who are allowed the subsistence right have to demonstrate 

a co1T111ittment to this life style and not to be just an experience or a trip. 

I think the people also, the subsistence user must also demonstrate need. 

The amoun t of f i sh and game allowed a subsistence user should be based on 

the size and family to be ~upported . The amount of cash income. The cost 

of living for the area. A subsistence user must be at least a five year 

resident of the respective subsi stence region or be an Alaskan native. A 

subsistence user must use an efficient means of take . Captial or energy 

intensive means of take such as for instance airplanes are not consistent to 

the co1T111ittment with subsistence. Now, {inaudible) definition of subsistence. 
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conversignkof energy tp work you have certain amount ways that i~ (inaubible) 

An~ vur realization of shortages of resources, in this world, we become more 
I ' 

and more aware of concerned with (inaubile) or waste or inefficient uses 

of energy. Whether that be the (inaubilbe) or someother type of resource. 

I think in terms of the justification why subsistence should exist and also 

just where it fits into National interest. It should be realized that the 

low (inaudible) life style. And by that definition it means that it be 

counter to the practice to have energy intensive means of take or (inaudible) 

too. In terms of reco1t111endation. It was earlier mentioned that the funding 

for the Department of Fish and Game should be broader than just the licenses 

or the (inaudible). We fully support that. In fact what we would like to 

recommend is that the permanent fund be used to support fish and wildlife 

and habitat studies. To improve the base line data so we know what the 

carrying capacity is so that we make decisions based on knowledge rather 

than guesses. Avoid situations like last su111ner with the caribou, 

western arctic herd. Or this past su1t111er with the bowhead whale. 

Now in the permanent fund it has two conditions. It's that the mon-

ey be spent on renewable resources and also there's a return on investment. 

And I think that money spent on base line data. Environmental studies on 

fish and wildlife habitat can meet those criteria. A lot of it is based 

on just how you determine what is a return. I think if you use a broad 

definition and consider a return in the sense that the State would be sav-

ing money by not being in a situation of not having to provide welfare 
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or base line date re~l·~Y weren't consi.stent with permanent fund id~als. . ' . . . . 
But afterwards I looked at where the origin of the permanent fund came 

from and· its to protect the Alaskan lifestyle. So it seems to me that 

this kind of studies are more consistent with the use of the pennanent 

fund than to develop say petrochemical industries. Petrochemical in­

dustries are not consistent with Alaskan l i fe style and never has been a 

petrochemical industry here until recently . 

As a final reco1T1T1endation I'd like to suggest that the State get more 

directly invloved in the bowhead whale situation. I was at the hearing 

in Barrow and Governor Hanmond expressed great concern for this and but he 

also seemed to emply that this was a Federal problem or international 

problem. Which is mostly true. But I think the State must also do its 

part. There's a lot of work, a lot of studies needed to detennine just 

what are the - what could be justified quota for bowhead whale. I think 

if the state would help out the Inupiat in doing some of these stud ies. 

They are very concerned. They realize the importance of the bowhead whale, 

and the continuation of their culture. And proposed studies which I think 

are quite sophisticated but the cost would exceed the amount of money they 

have available. So they are looking for funding they are looking to the 

Federal goverrvnent . But I think it would be appropriate if the State would 

really, if they are interested in protecting subsistence, to see what 

they could do in supporting the kind of work needed here . I think the 

bowhead whale situation is especially critical because I can't thi nk of any 



happ~n with the culture lines also. So I think there is no better case 
I 

I 

for prptecting subsistence than protecting the bowhead whale. Making sure 

that both the whale and the eskimo culture continues. I1: that regards I 

present a testimony in Barrow and I brought a copy which I would like to , 

give to the corrwnittee and it gives some of the policies, some of the Center 

polides and the reason why we felt it was the position of the United 

States here should object to the International Whaling Conmission ban on 

the subsistence hunting of the bowhead whale. It might give you some in­

sight to the thinking of the environmental center . Well that's about all 

that I've got . If you havu any questions I'd be ~Jlad to answer them. 

Representative Nels Anderson: Mr . Cowper? 

Representative Steve Cowper: George, you know none of thi s is a problem until 

there's ah, and I'm speaking of things like subsistence, subsistence use vs 

other uses, fish and g;ime, none of it becomes a problem until there's a short­

ilge . Because everybody's got plenty until then . Okay, when there's a short­

age you've got to figure what to do with it. Alright, you've got to have 

to say your going to take only a certain number of animals or fish or whatever 

it is. Who gets to take them? Is it more fair to say well first 600 caribou 



solve this business of fish and game preference? And you know we're going 

to take something with us to Washington we're not going to go there with 

an empty sack. And we're going to come up with some kind of solution. 

I'm not prepared to say what it is right now because this in one of the 

purposes of Mr . Anderson's co1T1T1ittee here. But . . . 

Mr. George Matz: This is the type of question the Center has been de­

bating apparently for years. And in fact are now coming up with their reply 

to the wildlife management plans that thought about this carefully. And we 

felt that in terms of preferences what has priorities, subsistence should be 

first. And there were a lot of philosophical reasons behind that. Just 

as a type of life style, decentralized self sufficient life style. Becomes 

a tremendous amount of value to this country because a philosophical basis 

I think one of the problems we're in urban areas and everything is too much 

centralization. To much people depending on somebody else doing something 

for them. I think the importance of this protecting people who want to be 

self sufficient are more important than people who like to hunt for sport. 

Representative Steve Cowper: Is a guy \:ho works here in Fairbanks and makes 



I 

A number of options available. Where you live and type 
) . . . . 

of life style. A per~on that lives here has more options than a person who · 

lives in the Yukon Flats or something like that. I think, now its been 

mentioned that you can't define subsistence. But I don't -- In one sense 

it's hard to do it. But you can't avoid not doing it because you end up 

with qualifications. And like I mentioned when you have qualifications 

implicity you have to have to find it. The trick is to have i t flexible so 

that is can adapt to change in circumstances. 

Representative Steve Cowper: You say, now I'm -- I don't mean to you look 

like I have some pre-conceived notions about this because I don't. The 

question is more than academic I tell you. You say the person in urban 

area has more options. Well what are the options? What can a guy do? Why 

can he do more than the person in the rural area and has a job making 

$20,000 a year? He may even drive a cab or something? 

Mr. George Matz: Well the options are more than what's listed in the want 

ads. The options are in terms of skil 'ls and ability to adapt to urban 

areas . And things like that and that all enters into it. So you know you 

have to look at if from the qualitative values as much as quantatative. 

Quantitative being things such as number of jobs being available or cash 

income. 



living in an given geographical area or not. 

tion that we have. 

Mr. Sam Demientieff: In fact that has been done. I understand that around 

the Grayling area, Yukon River, that the Advisory Game Board has asked for 

restricted access. To avoid the competition, I guess, Bssentially between 

the subsistence and the sport hunter. So there's no (inaudible) allowed. 

I'm not sure that is true . Maybe somebody else will try to understand it. 

That area of the Yukon River has restricted access. Which in essence 

gives favoritism to the people that live there. 

Representative Steve Cowper: Okay, thank you. 

Representative Nels Anderson : Mr. Hayes? Yes sir? 

Dave Kelleyhouse: I'm with the Department of Fish and Game. And I would 

like to clarify George's last statement. Indeed there were regulations 

imposed thi s last year. We made two special management areas . Kalskag 

(and Paradise) on the Yukon River. To control harvest t~ out of the area 

hunters . But, and this was in favor of the Athabascans living along that 
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stretch, I'd like to point ~ut that 'it was the sports hunters primarily 

that were being kept out bf the area. Indeed it was more native Hunters out · 

of Bethel, chartering out of Bethel, hunting Athabascan country. So now 

we have a situation, you know, both of them are essentially subsistence 

type people. It's just there are very few moose down river. And these, 

this was the main bulk of people coming in. And this was why the special 

management areas were established . I just wanted to clarify it wasn't sport 

hunting per se. 

Representative Nels Anderson: Thank you. 

Male Participant in Audience: That 1 s an interesting piece of infonnation. 

And I think it all the more points out that you really end up with qualific­

ations. Now you got two subsistence users. Apparently one of them, one 

group, has problems with their carrying capacity necessary getting their 

necessary food. So which subsistence user is more justified than the other. 

Representative Steve Cowper: Who does the game belong to? The guy who 

lives in the area or the people of the United States? 

People who live in the area I 1 d say. 

Representative Nels Anderson: Mr. Hayes do you have any conments or questions? 

Representative Joe Hayes : Yes, you mentioned in reference to subsistence 

the incompatibility of consumptive and non-comsurnptive . 



fraction f~els . that non-con~umpti~e uses of game occurs, essenti.ally wher~ 
' i 

recreation occµrs, when your canoeing and you see a moose or something 

.that's .an enjoyable scene s9 you've got to recognize that non-consumptive 

uses occur throughout Alaska and although there can be conflict with con­

sumptive uses for the most part there aren't . 

Representative Nels Anderson : Mr. Hayes? 

Representative Joe Hayes: Mr. Chainnan . George, you indirectly gave us a 

very comprehensive definition of subsistence. And did a good job at it . 

You talk of the need for flexibility . On one hand we realize it's necessary 

to have the opinion and expertise of local people living right in the area 

and know the area, on the other hand it is necessary to have the biological 

expertise to the people within the department that are trained and acknow­

ledgable in that they have done a good job. But t hese two things conflict 

a great deal, because it is not always easy to arrive at how we're going 

to detennine the flexibility of the course of the subsistence area. How 

would you recr'Tlllend that the state handle local input versus the need for 

biological infonnation determined wasn't proficient, how can you work to­

gether, this is one of the biggest harms that I see. 

Mr. George Matz : That's a good question, I think there may be conf.licts but 

we can properly manage that should be compatable. I think the professional 

fish and game manager as a difference type of expertise than some .who live 
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For ~nstance1 the Western Arctic Herd, 
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doesn't· really ' have ·an understan~ing- of the total popul~tion of Western ' I . . . 
l ' • • 

• ! I. ~ ,~ 

Arctic Herd of the ·migration 1routes of what past they go through or any-.,. ,. ' •, ' 

thing else • • It's very familiar.with certain aspects in tenns of especially 

his region and the person who works for fish and game tends to have a more 

broader overview, he knows what the total populations are. I think that 

both types of perspectives are needed and what we have to do is find a way 

where subsistence users will generally tend to be pretty keen in making 

ovservations and know what the habits of these animals are, can be combined 

with the professional knowledge from fish and game or from fish and wildlife 

service. And so that these are compatible and (inaudible), rather than 

working against each other. Though that is required that both sides 

restrict the knowledge of the other side and talking to bioligists and a 

lot of subsistence users, I think its missing. I think this computer has 

distressed the biologists and biologists has a lack of faith or crediability 

to confuse her. 

Hardy M. Smith: Members of the committee and ladies and gentlemen. I'm 

Hardy Smith. I flew in the Ladd Airforce Base in 1952 and been here most 

of the time since. I've been a big game guy guide most of that time. Most 

of you know the supreme court ruled last year in 1976 that the big game 

animals of American and Federal territory be.longed to the American people, 

not to the guide license or the control board or Alaska Department of Fish 

and Game. And people at Barter Island were islanded many years, many of 

them subsistence entirely owned fishing and hunting and many of the child-

ren came to school hungry . That one meal a day from Department of Agriculture 



-
prepared by Issac Icoochick's wife was the only meal they had so there was ,. ~ 

no absenteeism. The Supulu's and Wilson's many of these people depend 

quite heavily on subsistence hunting and there in the prime spot. They 

could go up with there sno-go on the Hola-Hola River and in no river you 

can get twenty dall sheep, the game is plentyful. They tell me that wi~h 

a hundred people, hunting these~ animals if there ever is a depletion and 

they'll have to kind of cut this back, but at the present time I wouldn ' t 

care if there wasn't any. They have transportation, they've got sno-go's 

and they can get there in an hour, if they want to go way back in the 

mountains its ten hours . Transporation Fel-Air Point Barrow, Joe Felder 

brings people into the Changler river and I don't know what he gets, but the 

going rate for a moose up there is $2,500. 00. How many eskimos in Point 

Barrow can pay this, many can't. Sure they got 2 million dollars each from 

the Federal Government in land and money, but most of it hasn't filtered 

down in the village, a good bit of it hasn't. Many of those people are just 

as poor as they have ever been. And there isn't as many moose or caribou 

around or a bear are in that area. They got to get down to the Colville 

River. 

Linda Spain told me some time ago on Dr. Gold's V-line program would 

I do away with all these tags, pennits, lotteries, drawings, and just 

have a season's length. If there isn ' t any moose close the season. If you 

get thousands of them, you can lengthen the season . Even last year you 

can go up on unit 26c, Barter Island , and one guy could shoot 5,000 caribou 

legally, and when I protested to shoot out on a Colville river to Governor 

Harmiond's T.V. program last year right away we ' ll get to the enforcement 

people . They're not doing their job. My opinion, enforcements are doing 

their job 110%, they'll get you when you didn't do anything. This guide 



1s one of the gre~test conservationist there ever,1was, he use to come to Bar-. . 

ter (Is1land for every year' to "take one Polar Bear and go home. Right now 

a guide can go from Colville river and shoot 5,000 moose if he can find 

them, there is no limit. If you got that many hunters or permits. The 

season is open for three more months . Perhaps we could limit these guides 

to a thousand moose or hundred or five or one. In other words if the 

native's of Barrow can't get enough moose to haul back to Point Barrow, this 

game is being decimated. It's being shot out on the Colville river and 

I object to this as an American, as an Alaskan. I think we should limit 

the season and limit each guide's to say five moose, if he can't make a 

conmercial enterprise to hold the five moose plan, that's 5 x 2,500 dollars, 

then he should go out of business. Lynn Castle has bough out Bill Woggleman 

years ago when the Woodriver over here and has a very good going business . 

I admire the man - he's going out and going after the walrus . The mortorium 

shut him down, he went to Washington, they got it going again and I under­

stand from talking to him, he gets a little money out of this. He doesn't 

make a great amount . The natives get some out of that from helping quide 

these people and they get the majority of the meat. So I think that this 

guiding can work for everybody if it's handled like that and that's the way 

it should be. In November I went down to Anchorage and watched the guide 

licensing and control board cutting up the primary's of Alaska and assigning 

it to guide's and I stood up and objected to this as being illegal and 

unethical the Federal Constitution says you can set up a monopoly. We do 



Hardy, 

or 1 s· .it something we entered. 
I 

Mr~ Hardy Smith: Began ~o guide in 1954 and not guiding continously since 

then, 1968 I had to get registered if somebody went down to Juneau and 

then everybody's got to get registered so I had a bad time. I got my 

registered license. 

Representative Steve Cowper: When did they start parcelling out the areas 

in 1968? Well most people don't even know, I don't. I saw very little in 

the papers . My brother called me when he came down from the Colville River 

area and said, "look there having a meeting in Anchorage go out and find 

out what's going on . I went out and read the law and they don't have to 

notify the guy's there parcelling this out and I received no notification. 

The period areas they say is this would control the game population, I 

don't see it because there is no limit on what the guy can do. I know 

Chuck Grey is a game conservationist he'll take one sheep and one moose, 

but he can go in a take 25 moose out of the Colville river if he's reg­

istered in that area, or 5,000. The game conservation has to come from 

the Alaska Department of Fish and Game a!> Linda Spain says from controlling 

the season, one day to ten days. If we don't the bids are going to take 

over like they did with the seal ma1TJT1als. They want to do that already. 

One more point, I talked to the Governor 's assistant and he said Governor 

Ha1T1T1ond does not have the power to fire anybody in here except his co1TJT1ission-

ers, he can fire them. Jim Brooks quit and we lost a good man in my unit, 



~t that man didn't hive the ~r to ~o down and fire any of his people, 

now when the Feds ran this state as far. as Fish and Game are concerned, they 

did a good jot of it. They weren'·t many people thlt ts as what we see it, 
' 
population explosion to had a game population (inaudible) 1s wiped out. 

Why? There is many reasons if we could transfer the Alaska Department of Fish 

and Game to ethopia to where they have open season on game wardens. We would 

have a better control on the system here, well we can't do that th~ Feds 

can. 

Dan Rodey: First of all I would like to make a few conments, I am a guide, 

and I do guide on the Colville river, and in regards to conments Mr. Smith 

made that didn't pertain in anyway whatsoever to this topic here, all guides 

were issued to registered a letter and did have the opportunity to attend 

and take part in this very equitable sharing and no way did it in any fonn 

be tracked to many type of quote subsistencf? takes forcement hunting 

or anything else. So thats a personal problem that Mr. Smith has. I 

would like to make a few conments and it deals with this whole undefined 

thing subsistence hunting, sfnce only one person has made an attempt to 

1fafine it. I would like to offer some caution fn the future. I'm afraid 

were going to be forced into a definition and whether it's flexi~le or in­

flexible ft is merely rhetaric, but I'm sure that one will have to come 

up with the pending Legislature, I can see no way out of it. With that 

in mind I can only look to the people of Alaska, and look at the changing 

life style, look at the income, look at the source's of revenue, and the 

services in goods that all people receive native or non-native alike if 

we are forced into some type of definition to define subsistence, then I 

think we are in a very-very tragic position, because I'm sure ff you take 



at the services he receives and 

put a monitoring value on that, you would play a very difficult time trying 

to say that he is subsistance and quotes lives of.f the land. We don't, 

but I would like to say we do. And it's a fact we don't. I'd like to 

use perhaps Anatuvik Pass, the village of Anaktuvik, as a good example, last 

year there was almost no caribou take from the village, yet people subsisted 

very well. I've been in and around Anaktuvik for quite a number of years. 

I believe every person in the village and I'm acquainted with the hunting 

and fishing of the area. Daily flights from Bettles, from Fairbanks food 

is brought in, this year I can't estimate the how many charters that 

Frontier Airlines and other flight services have made to take the natives 

out to Chandle Lake and other places to take them hunting and fishing. I 

would find this really difficult to say this is a subsistence life style. 

You have seen the disappearing the sled dog , replaced by the iron dog 

sno-machine all these things are pointing to the case economy and I don't 

believe that we can even, there may be a few isolated pockets of subsis­

tence related individuals, but it won't last . It can't last more then a 

few years at best so I'll just throw this caution that anything that is 

done in regards to subsistence definition in the long run, will be tracked 

from all the people of Alaska. And particularily the bush residents. So I 

was hoping to make this the shortest conments . 

Representative Nels Anderson: Mr. Cowper, any questions? 

Representative Steve Cowper: No, Mr. Chairman. 

Mrs. Samuelsen: Of Fairbanks. I have questions concerning our subsistence 

fishing in Fairbanks. Am I coming to right board? Close enough. I'd 



like to know why can't subsistence fish up here. You want to know why what? 

Why we can't subsistent fish, we were cut off from (inaudible) we couldn't 

subsistent fish at all. Then we went to someplace and then they told us 

that we have to go below the Woodriver and we have children in school and 

we can't afford to go down out of town for fishing. We fished for three days 

conwnercial fishing and they told us to go below Woodr1ver to do our subsis~ 

tence fishing . 

~~r1!sentative Nels Anderson: I'm going to answer you with a question. 

Did you ask the Department of Fish and Game them why you couldn't fish? . 

Mrs . Samuelsen: They said that it was cut off from Juneau or somewhere 

and that we can't go below thP. Woodriver. 

Representative Nels Anderson : It came from Juneau? 

Mrs . Samuelsen: That is what they told us out at fish and game. 

Representative Nels Anderson: This office fn Fairbanks? 

Mrs . Samuelsen: Yes. 

Representative Nels Anderson: I really can't answer the question, why, 

you were not allowed and Im quite sure. 

Mrs. Samuelsen: And no one was allowed to subsistence fish up here . And 

we fish colTl!'lercially for three and a half days of the year and we like 

to put up our fall fish for our subsistence fishing, can ft and smoke it, 



Mrs. Samuelsen: No last year we got to subsistent fish, but we also had 

to have a wheel built and it cost us $500.00 and it was through the end of 

the year. Or it was at the end of the fishing season. 

Representative Nels Anderson: The only thing I can see try to find out 

for you, I don't have the answer no. I don't know if there is any people 

here that are from the Fish and Game know that might be able to answer 

the question, but I don't have the answer. 

David G. Kelleyhouse: I'm with the Game Division. Earlier, Fred 

Anderson from C01T111ercial Fisheries was in the back of the room. I 

don't see him now. But you could call the office tomorrow and ask for 

Mr. Fred Anderson for an explanation. 

Hrs. Samuelsen: Well we've been over there and we were told we could not 

fish. We fished three days and at 6 o'clock they told us our wheel goes 

off at noon . We've been over there hoping we could have a meeting where we 

could subsistence fish but they said we cannot just go down below Woodriver. 

Were eligible below Woodriver. And we cannot go down there. 

Representative Nels Anderson: Well I'd like to find out why you were not 



Yes we do. 

Representative Nels Anderson: Can you give ft to us please. 

David Kellyhouse: 456-6195 

Representative Nels Anderson: Well I'll tell you what I'll do. I'll call 

this Mr. Anderson tomorrow and try to find out, you know, you weren't allowed 

to do this . 

Mr . David Kellyhouse: Well they say we are in sub-district, I don't know, 

from Nenana, Manley to Fairbanks. But they say the quota has been caught. 

And it takes a week for our fish to come up from Nenana and we're just 

automatically cut off. And like way down on the Yukon they caught their 

quota a long time ago and even for co1T111ercial fishing it is cut off way 

before you know, we get it. And we spend as much money as they do. I 

can't see why we aren't allowed to fish just like the other people. We 

live on our fish. 

Representative Nels Anderson: Well, Mrs . Samuelson, like I said I will call 

the Department and try to find out why they are doing this, you know, and 

I will call you back and try to give you some kind of an answer. 

Mrs . Samuelsen: There are not only us there are several families in Fair­

banks. Not only the natives but there are whites that depend on it also. 



know. We drYi them, we smoke them, we freeze ~hem, we can them, we kippe~ 
I \I ' 

them. W~ make. salt bellies. l And my famHy is a native family who 1'1kes ' 

fish and who likes to buy it. Salmon strips and dry fish at $10.00 per 
' 

pound. We can't afford it. We bought some from Tanana but to get it up 

here on the airplane it cost us $10.50 more. And we can't affor~ that. 
' 

My husband is retired. He works on the pipeline but he has to come back 

to keep our cormiercial license, what do you call it, free working? And that 

is for when there is no pipeline and he is to old to go working on the 

pipeline. And also he has fished all his life. For as long as I know 

him and that for 16 years. One year he didn't fish·:that .. t-ias ~ in' 1974. And 

we went to Doyon, and they finally gave us our pennit . Or we each wrote 

down to Juneau and we were fined $25.00 or something for late entry or 

something like that . And I can't see that. 

Representative Nels Anderson: Neither can I. Do you have any other com­

ments you would like to make Bob? Steve you have any other questions? Mr . 

Hayes? 

Gene Carlson: I would like to, I can probably answer that question in part . 

Member of the fishery advisory committee. So we've taken up this issue 

with the Department locally. And the problem comes fn that a year ago 

they attached the subsistence fishing to the closing of the C0111T1ercial 

fishery. And this was only for sub-unit 6. Now what happens is when they 

get their quota of 15,000 fish and ff it happens in one day. The subsis­

tence fishing is cut off. The logic behind this was potential use of the 

sale of subsistence use caught salmon roe . Their trying to regulate on the 



Gene, excuse me, Gene do you think is 

no longer allowed. You know it keeps going along a year at a time. 

Gene Carlson: Well, all I can give you is an personal opinion of the 

problem that I think is a tragedy we ever passed the law that allowed 

the sale of the subsistence slamon roe. 

Representative Steve Cowper: Okay 

Gene Carlson : I feel bad that we have to waste one resource to save another 

one, of potential uses. 

Representative Steve Cowper: Okay, leave aside that if that law lapses, 

which it threatens to do, about every year. If that law lapses do you 

think the problem that led to this sudden cut of subsistence fishing in 

this area would that problem be solved? 

Gene Carlson: No, I personally think it was a quise of which it was done. 

I think someone doesn't like this fishery because its a non-traditional 

fishery and I don't believe that was the real reason behind it at all . 



Mr. Tom Scarborough: I'm president of the Tanana Sportsman Association. 

You're familiar with a year ago the Arctic caribou. TSA took the in­

ititive to protect the caribou resource. And the second thin~ there was 

to prevent the Department of Fish and Game going in there to and become 

a welfare agency. Our basic reason for this is we read the Alaska 

constitution and say where the Department of Fish and Game belongs to all 

Alaskans and we didn't feel they should be allowed to run certain groups 

on some basis and needs. That litigation is still pending and is now 

before the Alaskan Supreme Court. One interesting aspect of this is that 

some native organizations are being represented by Alaska Legal Services. 

I would like to question if this is entirely legal or not. It appears to 

me that the North Slope Borough for one can afford to hire their own at­

torney rather than the tax payer pay for it. And if you have any interest 

in that you can look into it and see why we tax payers are paying for this 

service. But that is apparently the case. That's all I have to say. 

People who wrote up the draft, I think it's HR 39 I think it's Senate 

Bill 1500 are aware of the provisions and lack of constitution on re­

strictions for subsistence. Here's a copy of it. These are applying 

to all the people of Alaska. They had intended to ~i rcumvent this lack of 

constitution with HR 39 which I think is totally incorrect. The resource 

cannot be alloted to one ethnic group or on an ecomomic basis. Discourag­

ing to some other group. The resource belongs to all of us and got to be 

allowed to the best interest of all the people. The only definitio1l I 

have found on subsistence hunting, and that's my main expertise I guess , 
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"sut>sistence hunting ·means taking of .big game animals bY, a state resident 
1' ' ' 

·. . u 
for fo-od or clQthing ·for f~mily or personal use. 11 Now, maybe you can 

probably c~e up with a better definition and "fishing will probably be 

~dded in there. If you go much further you're goi~g to find all kinds of 

restraints from the Alaska constitution. Now, you have two types of 

subsistence. Mainly, what everybody has been talking about has referred 

to subsistence as a (inaudible). That's a very short term use. Maybe it's 

already passed. There's very few subsistence users in Alaska. There 

might be some in Southeast, living on the coast . But I don't think there 

is any place else. The types of subsistence you really have to deal with 

is also psychological. The psychological need for subsistence. That's 

the type we're going to have to deal with in the future and the urban re­

sident probably has a bigge~ · need for this than the rural resident that lives 

with it every day. I'm not sure how you're going to cope with this but 

this is the type of subsistence that the (inaubible) play. Mental need to 

get back to what your ancestors did possibly. Their cultural way of life. 

That doesn't necessarily mean you have to take and eat the big game. I 

do think you're going to have to deal with some type of definition of sub­

sistence. I don't see how this is going to get anyplace unless you have 

some concept to work within. And with that you're going to have to define 

what is modern day subsistence or are you going to define it on a level 

10 years or 20 years ago? If you're going to discuss it at that level, 

HR 39 discuss it as of 1971., December of 1971. 

The reason for this, is the modern day hunter and fisherman is very 

different today than he was 10 years ago. Particularily 20 years ago. And 

now with the modern snow machine we've got modern air access, modern car 
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nlll!ber one Rriority, the protection of the resource. Al~ska Constit-. ' ( 

' 
utional restraints will have t~ be observed when you start making prior-

iti~s on what your going t? have to do with· that resource ; The best in-. · 
'JI ,«I 

terest of the wildlife owners are also goinn to have to be taken into 

·account. And you know that the urban residents as well as the ':1!~:.,ral 
residents own that wildlife. Both their interests are going to 1have to 

be protected. None of your efforts on this subsistence issue will be any 

benefit unless you protect that resource. Part of that protection is going 

to have to be enforcement. Now, I 'm not so sure that our enforc1!fllent 

division is doing all that bad a job right now . I think the biguest failure 

is probably in penalities put out by the court system. The second problem 

is the non-enforcement by the Feds. Particularily on waterfowl c1nd marine 

mammals. They have a long history in this and particularly rural people 

of the State have learned that in all likely hood they won't be bothered. 

So I would like to recommend that you consider an educational program 

statewide starting at the elementary level to start education our young 

people on the proper use of the resources. Than maybe in a few years they 

wil 1 start to understand why we use management techniques . Sport.smen have 

asked for this for some time and no action has been taken . Unles ~; an educa-

tional program is started particularily in some areas in the bush, we' re 

not going to get anywhere . You can pass all the laws you want. J\nd no way 

are they going to enforce them. Because there is no way you' l''e gcd ng to 

convict somebody say in the bush area where his peers have to be selected as 

is jury . The legal (inaudible) is all ready aware of this. 

I noticed in the paper when, where you're talking about hunting, the 



~· . 
good track record. You won't find any place the resource has been de­

pleted by sportsmen. There may be other r.easons. Not only fishing 

resource but I think ff you look back on the. record, nation wide, you will 

find this to be true. Nels also said the game is for sale. I don't think 

that this f s quite true. Maybe some people have looked at it that way. 

But a lot of these funds are used for non-fish and game . They manage 

falcons , song birds and a few other things like this. Obviously, the 

Department is probably against the people who pay the salary and need them 

the most. And maybe this is why they want to get their salary some other 

way . Also, we have a little argument with the State about 25¢ license . 

People who buy those license don't pay their fair share either . Somebody 

else has to pay their way. And I suspect that the majority, I suspect 

that, they put out 5,000 of these last year and I don't know how they 

distribute that. They probably equally from Fairbanks, Anchorage and the 

bush. I think you'll find that the sportsman know - they pretty good -

(inaudible) We were putting up red flags in the Western Arctic Caribou 

herd - 1973, we were ignored. We did the same thing on moose, in (inaudible) 

and we were ignored , but we were telling the Department and the Board of 

Game that problems were occuring. Nothing happened until there was a 

crises. We've got a lot of crisis in management right now, maybe that 

can be corrected. A good example of animal (inaudible) for sale would be 

Dall sheep, and that's the only animal we have got the same number as we 

had 10 years ago. We have an equal chance to get Dall sheep as we did 10 



Rosita Worl: My name is Rosita Worl, I've been up on the North Slope 

for the past 2 years doing scientific investigation on the political 

development of the North Slope Inupiats . Part of my work led me to 

an investigation of the traditional political elite af the area which 

involve the whaling comples. From there, I developed a further study 

into subsistence. I want to set your mind at ease right now, I'm not 

going to try to define subsistence however, I will try to bring to you 

some of the variables that I think are important in the consideration of 

subsistence. I'd like to say first of all , that I agree with Mr. Wiese 

of the Interior Wildlife Association, that subsistence is not a welfare 

system, and that subsistence should be based on a natural, increment 

level. The occupation of Alaska by Alaska Natives has been based on the 

harvest of it's natural resources and therefore it's within their in-

terests to insure the continued use, the continued availability of it's 

resources and I think that this is present in the minds of people on a 

very conscious level, so I see no conflict within that idea, however I 

do disagree that subsistence is at an end. And in fact my work within 

the last two years has shown that subsistence is a viable activity within 

the rural Alaska. I do want to say that I think that many of us are of 

the popular misconceptions that have stermied from a social scientific 

thought and that was that there is a movement from a subsistence base to a 

cash resource economy. My work has shown that there is a interrelationship 

not a unilineal progression at all. But there is an interrelationship 

between the old and the new and that subsistence activity is as viable 

today as it was in the past. And I think my definition or my understanding 

of subsi ~ tenct is well founded in the policy that our Congress adopted within 



Envi ronmenta 1 Act. whereby they recognized. whereby Con·gress 

recognized .that economic act1v11tes. that industrial expansion occurs 

within the social and cultural context and so the United States adopted 

a mandate to protect it's cultural and social environment . Just as 

comparably, subsistence occurs within a social and cultural context. 

I just want to brfef·ly define the aspects of subsistence. I said 

there's social, cultural and there's economics. Most of the focus has 

been on economics. Economic insofar as legislative regulations of land 

access or regulation on the resources . Today, we have a third element within 

the economic aspect and that is a relationship with a cash economy. It's 

true that there is no subsistence that exist without a use of some cash. 

In my work I found that this is where we enter into the social aspect of 

subsistence. I have found that there are three basic functions within the 

social elements. You have your subsistence harvester, your person who is 

actually going out, very active and obtaining the subsistence. You 

have your subsistence user, those who are recipients of subsistence 

products and those can include the subsistence harvester, and also people 

who are not able to go out and get the subsistence products themsleves. 

Very forcefully, that includes your elderly and your aging. Then the 

third aspect, it could be a person or just a function, is your financial 

cash or your financial support. Sometimes it is the man that earns who 

earns $20,000 who is supporting subsistence activities and this is where 

the difference you know that I see that between the person that is making 

$20,000 in Fairbanks and the person who is earning $20,000 in the bush. 

The bush, I have found the person who is earning $20,000 by most standards, 

he should be a middle income person, but when you look at the kind of -

way of life that he has he seems like he is very poor . When you begin to 



look at it you find out that this man who is earning $20,000 is supporting 

other kinds of subsistence activities. The subsistence products that are 

obtained are distributed throughout the c0111nunity so t~at's his social, that 

is your social welfare system. The man is providing the cash either 

for his hunting partner or maybe part for his own activities. The 

subsistence products are then in turn redistributed around the conmunity 

and often it goes beyond the c0111nUnity. I t~ink within the North Slope 

we can demonstrate very concretely, that subsistence products are shipped 

from Barrow to Point Hope, Point Hope down to the Kobuk area. For the 

last two years, if it hadn't been for the interrelationship between the 

conmunities, I think you would have had some villages that were starving 

within the Interior and I'm specifically talking about Anaktuvuk Pass . 

The North Slope people gathered together and they did ship some of the 

marine manmals and resources that they had obtained into Anaktuvuk. So 

there's this kind of distribution and the sharing that is very real, that 

is part of the cu'1tural system. 1 would also submit and probably it's not 

a criticism against the State but your welfare system is not working in the 

bush . It is not available in the bush. It is not the stupidity of the client 

that he is not able to obtain welfare or welfare products . It's because 

it's just not available in the bush . And I think that was really demonstrated 

in our caribou crises in the North Slope. The North Slope would have liked 

to have declared i t a disaster, it was a disaster, and because of the efforts 

from the North Slope they were able to get a minor food stamp program up 

there, which I understand is not going to be available any longer. I'm not 

too clear on the administrative set up and how they are doing it but I know 

that the bush area is not being served by your social services, and believe 

me it is not the stupidity of the recipients. 



to w~at is the .cultural relatio~ship. Someb;P<IY talked ~bbut it as a 

pyschol<l91.cal r~l'atfo'nshlp. There 1s a ve~y special i]~uonship between 

the subsistence person. be it the user, the harvester or the supporter. . · 

There is a very speical relationship between those persons and their en­

vironment and their resources. To some of you. it may be manifested in 

the arts, the symbolic relationship, but nevertheless, it's as real as 

some of the symbolic, religious objects that many western religions have. 

So, it is very difficult to define, but there is a very special relation­

ship. I would like to reco1t111end that the State recognize that subsistence 

is a cultural heritage, just as our resources are a natural heritage, and 

I think that we could do that by adopting the fonnat of the National 

Environmental Policy Act. And, also I think the State has adopted the State 

Fish and Game has adopted a very liberal definition of subsistence. The 

policy statement is not in effect, but I think it is a useful beginning for 

you. I think that the State has already enacted legislation that favors 

special interests. I'm not going to go into the details, but my understanding 

of your limited entry concept where persons get points and they are able 

to go out and get their permit. I think if we can adopt a priority system 

and the final thing that I wanted to say about the State is that the at­

tention should not only be the carrying capacity of the study of animals 

itself, I think there are other things happening out there in the environ­

ment out there in the bush where you're finding the resources and there are 

some changes that are occurring right now to the habitat which may be 

detrimental to the resources itself. 

I think the game management report is negligent in glossing over those 



cally but I've been up ~round there to know there have ' been changes there to . . ' 
' \ . 

the environment and I think some of the focus of ·the state · should be to " . . . ' . 
find out what's happening to our envirorvnent that's affecting the natural 

resource. 

Representative Steve Cowper: Well, I'd like to conmend you for a very 

helpful and articulate statement. I would like to just speaking personal­

ly, I have an awful hard time with a notion that people who traditionally 

been subsistence users ought to go on welfare, I have a hard time with that 

one. I think there's more life in clipping one of those stamps or 

whatever that is. There's more to the subsistence lifestyle than meat on 

the table too. One of t~e congressmen who came up with the Congressional 

Subconmittee on the 0-2 Legislation suggested in his opinion subsistence 

hunting and fishing was no longer necessary because of the food stamp 

program. I thought that was an interesting comment, I disagree with it 

very heartily. 

Senator Pat Rodey : Rosita, in detenninging how we're going to manage sub­

sistence as been proposed with income be used as a guideline. Do you favor 

a one to one relationship between income and some subsistence right what­

ever that might be and if not what relationship should there be between in­

come and subsistence rights. 

Rosita Worl : I think if you regulate based on income, then you're going to 

regulate subsistence out of existence because just my research on the 



NOr.th Slope and within Southeast, my own personal experience 1n southeast 

and my knowledge of other areas is that 1t fs your l}ntaltk, your. rich 

man who is an important person in providing access to subsistence harvests 

so if you should say that a ma~ is earning $20,000, ft was really de­

monstrated last year what happened with the caribou when permits were 

granted on need. As it turned out, penntts were granted to people who 

often didn't have the means to go out and get the caribou so they in turn 

had to conscript someone who had the money to go out and get the caribou 

for him and then that in turn was distributed to the families. So your 

unit can't be to individuals. That's my personal opinion - that if you 

legislate subsistence on individual basis then you're going to legislate 

it out of existenc~. It's a social activity. 

Senator Pat Rodey: Do you favor any use whatsoever on income as a criteria 

for subsistence rights. Does it have a role. 

Rosita Worl : Well, I think that would have to be qualified, you know, I 

certainly couldn't say that a man who i~ living in Fairbanks or a Native 

person who is living in Fairbanks making $50,000 - that he should be able to 

go like a sportsman, I think it needs to be qualified. I think at this 

point, I go along with the concept, local determination, they know who 

are the subsistence contributors . 

Hr . Bud Wiese: Hr . Chainnan, I think her paper was excellent and I 'd like 

to have her make a letter , in the form of a letter or something that I 

could get a copy of it for the board a.nd for myself. 

Representative Nels Anderson: This will be transcribed and we could make a 



Mr. Bud Wiese: What would I have to do to get this. 

Representative Nels Anderson: Just get your name :~d address and we'll ship 

it to you. 

~. Gene Carlson: My name is Gene Carlson, I live in Fairbanks, and I 

came here with no prepared testimony (inaudible) So if I confuse you 

think nothing of it cause I'm already confused. First, I would like to 

say that I definetly believe in subsistence not perhaps as the people in 

the bush do because I really think things are changing so that the same need 

is not there. At least at the magnitude that it was before. But I believe 

in subsistence not on a traditional or cultural basis. I think we're all 

Alaskans and many of us came here for the same reasons that the Natives like 

living here. We came here perhaps to live off the land. The need isn't 

as great for one as the other. I have a tremendous need. I go to Chitina 

every year to get my subsistence fish. I have as much need for that for my 

family as anybody else. I wouldn't starve without it, that's true, but 

neither would anybody else I don't believe. 

I'd like to first go back to a question somebody posed about prior­

tiz1ng the management of the resource. I don't think you can just speak to 

the Fish and Game both because they're totally different. In the fishing 

industry, I would prioritize management in that the conwnercial industry should 

be the first to be managed down. And I say that. because it h ~ s by far the 

greatest potential of devastating the resource. For another reason, that 

the resource of the State are according to the constitution, they're 



forget wha1t the exact words are, 

ing industry-you wou~d have to start with the conmercial industry. To 

say that the conlnercial indus'try should be allowed 95% and the rest of 

the people 5% - to me 1s absurd, I can't even believe that. 

Definition of subsistence, I could live with the word subsistence. 

The only time I've run into a problem with that is when I talk to the Board 

of Fisheries and they are the ones who seem to have a problem with the 

word. For the simple reason they want to use the definition. They want 

t.o use the word for traditional or cultural purposes. They're doing here 

in Fairbanks. this isn't a traditional fishery therefore the people in 

Fairbanks aren't entitled to it. And I think that's totally out of line. 

Which brings to mind a thing that legislatively can be done perhaps. 

don't know, maybe it'll have to be done by intiative or something. I 

don't believe in the new concepts of regional boards than at any time of 

the history of Fish and Game management in the State of Alaska . On the 

other hand, the way it is right now with the Governor appointing all of the 

members of the board we ended up with a c01T1nercial Fish Board. We didn't 

have a 'fisheries board, we had a conwnerical Fish Board. Therefore, the 

subsistence user has not a chance, the sport fisherman, who also eats his 

fish. so that to a degree is subsistence he hasn't a chance. You couldn't 

go talk to those people, it is like talking to a wall, unless you had a 

comnercial interest. What could be done about that? There could be 

legislation passed that would perhaps mandate that the Governor could not 

appoint a majority of comnercially interested people to a State Board or 

comnf ssfon. This would seem to me to take care of the problem. Then you 

would not have this lopsided monopoly on any board that fs supposed to serve 

the entire public of Alaska. So, to me, that is one of the most important 



~hings that needs to be done. And I'm not q~ite sure hoW it's going to 

get done but I do believe that's the first priority. Now, and I don't say 

this with malice, it's simply that my belief in what the Native Land Claims 

settlement Act was all about - the intent was to make a111 things equal, to 

make Native .Alaskans equal with non-Native Americans and everybody equal 

as Americans, not black Americans, not white Americans, not Native Ameri­

cans, but Americans. Therefore, they, in the claims, for what they got 

for this equality, the right • the cultural and traditional right were 

given up - not that they can't continue some of their traditional life­

styles because they can~ · but the traditional and cultural rights to the 

game and the resources of the State were given up for this equality and I 

believe fully that their desire was to be an equal part in the American 

society. So, and it states in there that these were given up. So I be­

lieve that was the intent and I don't understand why we continue with this 

ethnic lines of distinction, I think that that is a wrong thing to do. I 

came here of my own free will to the State of Alaska, that doesn't make me 

any better than somebody that lives here by accident of birth because he 

was born here but certainly, I think, I feel, that it entitles me to more 

than a one-quarter Alaskan Native that has never seen the State of Alaska. 

They live in New York City of Pennsylvania or someplace and have never 

seen the State of Alaska. But that isn't the way it is. We're supposed 

to all be equal. The first priority, I think I would have to go back to 

what you manage game for? You first manage it for the resource itself, I 

believe. The lady said that's not true, but if you don't everybody ends 

up with nothing. If you don't give first consideration for the game pop­

ulation. 

One other thing the legislature could do and here again we're back to 



to the Board of Game and Board of Fish 

a couple of years ago that went no where, and rightfully so, because it 

is a legislative thing and that is to make, first, redefine what is wan­

ton waste, not that I intend to waste that animal when I shot him or some­

thing else but and make wanton waste a felony charge. Not a misdeameanor 

that's punishable by a slap on the hand if we're; and this applies to 

everybody, this applies to subsistence users, sport users, comnercial 

users. So in the event that you have a year, I can't recall the year 

when the co1T1T1ercial fishing industry goes out and rapes the resource. 

Why millions and millions of fish more than the canneries can take and 

they rot and they go dump them back in the ocean. That's wanton waste as 

far as I'm concerned. They had no business to start with, if the can­

neries couldn't accept them. And this is their responsibility to know. 

Not just go out and rape the resource and then waste them. So I think 

this should be made a felony charge and this will have to be legislatively 

done. Then we have to have the protection to back it up. I've been 

told it would be a waste of time to make it a felony charge cause you can't 

prosecute anyway, so true. But we don't stop trying to prosecute just 

because some people get off the hook . Otherwise we'll just open the jail 

cells and turn everybody lose. One feller earlier said that you should have 

to be an Alaskan resident for five years or be an Alaskan Native . I j ust 

think that, that is the most ridicul ous statement I have ever heard . For 

the simple reason like these to think that a one-quarter Alaska Native 

that's never seen the State of Alaska , back to that again, should have the 

right to come back here and because he's Alaska Native go out here to sub­

sistence life style is beyond me. I can't cope with that. To me that 

makes no sense whatsoever. We're all Alaskans and I think subsistence can 

be regulated, not defined, but regulated so it doesn't have to go out of 



existence. of some areas where they have no limits. 

agree with the no lfm1t lffe style, I can't even say how nMJch. We go to 

Chf t1na and the criteria down there is for the head of the household 

you're allowed, ft changes each year, but we'll say 20 salmon, a family 

person is allowed 40 salmon. T~is is for anybody, any Alaskan, a resident 

Alaskan, who is down there dipping. For the other people that have the 

need, an honest welfare, I'll throw that tenn out because we've heard ft 

hashed over enough tonight, an honest need for more salmon than that. 

They have established a higher limit to them. I disagree with the limit 

they've established because I don't think that anybody could eat 500 

salmon in one year . When I think of subsistence I think of what you're 

going to eat, I don't agree with feeding it to dogs . So but the limit 

could be based on a reasonable edibility situation. Can this family of 

10 people ea t 250 salmon in a year, 300 salmon in a year, there could be 

some criteria such as this established that would set limits and take away 

this nonsense of being allowed to go take, I heard a figure of 40,000 

salmon, by one individual that was selling salmon roe, now I tell you it 

takes a lot for me to cope with anybody catching 40,000 salmon. Maybe 

they did, I really can't say, but if you're catching more than you can eat 

then you're either selling them or your're taking the roe and selling the 

roe and in that case you're throwing the salmon back in so I don't understand 

how anybody could know if they caught 40,000 salmon, we do know that it's 

happening. If you had a good limit, that wouldn't happen and here again 

I believe that the board should make these determinations. I don't like 

legislative intervention in the fish and game matters anymore than ab­

solutley necessary and that's only when the board is not betng responsive 

to public needs. One more thing, I don't believe in geographical quali­

fications either. I don't believe that you can say that, if I believe 



I can't go do~ there and ~atch my fish. 

If you ever e~tabl1shed that. you would say that any village at the mouth 

of the r.1ver could ~et their own· regulations. they have first crack at 

all the fish. They could take them all which happens to a degree right now 

but I think we'll get around that eventually so there will be a fair 

distriwution of all the fish. So I really don't think that geographical 

qualifications will be meaningful at all. That's all I have to say. 

Mr . Dave Snarski: My name is Dave Snarski and I'm here representing Alaska 

Conservation Society. With the Chairman's pennission I have several 

copies of testimony said at other hearings that I would like to submit. And 

also a statement from a person that couldn't be here tonight. In the 

interest of making things move along a little faster, I have a policy paper 

on lifestyle, subsistence hunting and the 0-2 lands. I just would like to 

read the sunrnary (inaudible). The broad specturm of lifestyles practiced 

by Alaskans contributes to it's uniqueness among the 50 states and adds 

diversity to American society at large. Within this spectrum there is an 

array of Alaskan and subsistence lifestyles that consists of a complex 

mi xture of traditionally and traditionally non-native elements. There is 

therefore no rational or fair basis for defining an Alaskan nor a subsis­

tence lifestyle . Hunting, fishing, trapping. gathering of natural foods are 

pursuits that figure prominently in virtually the whole spectunn of Alaska 

lifestyle, however. there are (inaudible) with respect to these pursuits, 

a single individual which often exploits living resources for different 

reasons at different times. Consequently, attempts distinguish among com­

merical, subsistence, and recreational hunting and fishing, trapping or 

gathering as practiced by many Alaskans have b!en unsucessful. Different 



. 
styl~s an~ ~u~s1stence uses. in particu1ar are less disruptive ah~ . l'~ss 

destructive than 1 any other lifestyle and .uses. Subs~ stence . uses are 

a naturaJ P,art of Alaska's wild country and stiould be provided for pn 

national interest lands except set aside as national Parks or National 

Monuments. Other line management such as park reserves or refuges are more 
t 

compatible to subsistence uses and natural resources. Land in Alaska 

is being divided into smaller and smaller parcels under variety of 

ownerships resulting in (inaudible) of management goals and policies. 

This trend is generally incompatible with the conditions (inaudible) for 

many lifestyles in Alaska, could lead to the destruction of these life­

styles and the integrity existing ecosystems. An on precedent of the level 

of coordination and cooperation among federal, State and private use will 

be needed to overcome this trend . The wildlife population and the habitats 

they depend upon do not have boundaries that coincide with the existing 

Federal, State and private lands nor those lands proposed for inclusions 

in the four systems, Section 17 (d)(2) of the Alaska Native Claims Settle­

ment Act. For this reason, as well as the fact that legally and historic­

ally the State of Alaska has had the responsibility for wildlife management, 

The Alaska Conservation Society believes that the basic existing regulatory 

regime of hunting, trapping, and fishing is most appropriate properly 

conserved and protected issue in Alaska. However, since Federal agencies 

have legal responsibilities under existing national laws and international 

treaties and have now and will have in the future management habitat 

responsibilities continuing federal and State coordination and cooperation. 

ACS appreciates the opportunity. 

Representative Nels Anderson : I have a question. You madE· reference to a 



Parks, should be closed to hunting. 

Marion Hao: My name is Marion Hao, I've been a resident of Fairbanks on 

and off for the past eight years, working and going to school. I came here 

mainly tonight as an interested citizen and learn what Fairbanks residents 

would have to say about the topic of discussion. And I decided I wanted 

to come forth and say what I have to say. I'll attempt to be organized 

about what I'm going to share with you, however I did not come with any 

prepared statement . And maybe wanted to come forth and add a personal good 

(inaudible) To show that when you talk about subsistence, you talk about 

those rural are~~ that you are really dealing with human beings and this will 

attempt to show that you just cannot catagorize any one people into one area 

and I felt there were some statements tonight that tend to be blanket 

statements and also what I have t ~ay hopefully will perhaps add a little 

bit of understanding. People that make blanket statements tend to show lack 

of understanding and experience and any time a blanket statements are made 

it is unfair at all. Thi s is going to be personal so that have an apprecia­

tion for what it's like to say for subsistence wise. 

I was born and rai sed in St. Lawerence Island, Savoonga . I came away 

from the Island to go to school and I have decided to live in the mainland 

for my own interests. Anyway, subsistence living has been really a personal 

way of life with me . I don't think I would be - well, St . Lawerence 

Island has always been traditionally a very ocean harvested area but also 



that there were fo.ods that ytere foreign to the area. We were served 1 unches 

that we.re, at that time, ·were -'very unfami 1 iar· 1 i ke vegetabfes, meats that 

werP. different. When you talk about' subsistence, I 1 ve 1heard people say that 

it's just undefinable, that it's all pyschological, I thought perhaps that's 

what I've heard tonight. Okay, ~hen you talk about subsistence, you're talk­

ing about seasons, you're talking about the knowledge acquired in going about 

this subsistence living, you're talking about land, you're talking about 

knowledge of the land. The way ! grew up was very traditional 'In that, 

when men did the hunting, the women stayed at home. They were t he ones that 

did the gathering and the utilizing. We seemed to make these !iubsistence 

statements about subsistence hunters that seem to have negativt? thoughts 

about the rural area. I would have more respect for what they ~;ay if they 

would realize what really takes place out there. The language,, the 

whole process of it all. When the men go out hunting, they ha\'e, they 

know the weather, they have to know the ocean, the movements . You go out , 

not on any day, if you just happen to feel like going out hunting the wal­

rus in just one day, it just doesn't happen that way, you have to read the 

skies , try to read how the weather is going to be like for the day. By 

the way sometimes you come across so that I could be understood but when 

get nervous and try to come in such a way that I perspire, I get all jumbled 

up so you have to be patient with me. 

Anyway, and the movements of the water, the ice, i t's all i nterrelated 

with what subsistence hunting is, you know, when you go out and you're getting 



Okay. ~·m tryin~ to bring that there is an appreciate. there can be an ap­

{ precfatf on of all the world of subsistence huntf ng fs. · I'm tryf ng to ex­

plain this not with acquired knowledge myself, although I've lived around 

ft, ft was not available to me. So when you talk about subsistence hunting 

you talk about acquired knowledge over years, acquired language, acquired 

understanding and close appreciation of nature. Okay, when you're talking 

about hunting the walrus, you're talking about the movements of the walrus, 

you're talking about appreciation of nature because it is something that is 

not predictable. To talk about the complexity of it all, with the different 

language say in the area that I cam from where the language if it were defined 

into the English language would very easily be termed technical, very 

technical. So I think those are important to realize. 

When you talk about subsistence hunting you're talkinQ about seasons, 

okay, you talk about walrus which is the main food of the Island but you 

supplement the main staple seasonally with like during the fall it's bird 

hunting time, all kinds of birds, adn some seal hunting, and during the 

winter, there is ~ lso hunting at the ice. Okay, you have to know areas of 

the ice, I understand by looking at the ice you know which areas are eaiser 

to cut through, in other words the thickness of the ice. You acquire that 

knowledge by going out, okay, during the winter there is seal hunting also 

through the ice, and during the spring is walrus hunting again, and whale 

hunting, by the way up there north country, St . Lawerence Island including, 

the ice does not go away until June. Okay, the snow and the ice doc5 not 

go away until June . During the spring, the later part of the spring we do 

egg gathering, where you have to climb and comb the cliffs around the Island, 

ce1rtain parts of the island, so when you're talking about subsistence hunting 



you're tall~_Jng about the seasons also. 
I 

talk about greens, all kind of greens, that are picked and preser,ved for the . 

winter and then the berries, I grew up with my grandparents so 1'1'1 never 
' ' 

forget going out every spring from morning until .ab6ut 5 o'c~ock going 

with my grandmother every day during the spring to gather greens and berries 

preserved for the winter. 

Incidentally, we did have a store where the ship came once a year with 

supplies from the outside. Incidentally, these were the kinds of food mainly 

canned or dried hardly any fresh stuff. The store still now is a Co-op store, 

where the men, whoever does use the tusks of the walrus, the ivory, they 

carve it to a saleable item in exchange for goods in the store. It is mainly 

fuel or shells or whatever for their guns. Those go mainly for help in 

the hunt. The can goods are kind of side dishes that are like dessert or 

special that add to the traditional for ! w : ~e I say the way that I grew 

up was very traditional and where the food even today, the main food, is 

the walrus and the meats and all the others that I mentioned. 

The very first time I was going to go off the island, I realized how 

different ft was from that li t tle world because my parents started training 

me how to eat these other kinds of food that I was not aware of. For the 

first time I realized that they really cared for me, because they were 

taking the time to train me how to eat these other kiods of foods. They 

started buying these can goods , that we nonnally do not eat from the store, 

like beets and green beans and so on, all of a sudden I realized that things 

were not always how it was it back home, you know. They said because I 

would have to go away for awhile to the mainland, to the hospital, that I 

would have to live off of their food for awhile, and I would have to learn 



That would be the food that would be the food that would be 

available at that place that I was going to. It was kind of frigntening 

because it was all so different and when I came to the mainland at the 

hospital, that little bit of training that I received at home was note­

nough because for the first time I ate foods I never liked. To show how 

much difference I had to resort to, you know c0111non foods like bananas, 

like eating a banana for the first time it always stays with me the memory . 

You know, such strange food you know, as a child, it is kind of dramatic 

so I tried very hard, and because of these foods that we were eating 

during that time, at the mainland were different, we tried very hard to like 

them, to learn to like them and we were not aware at this time that a lot 

of Americans did not eat all that they were given. We would feel so 

guilty, and that they would look down on us, so we would struggle through 

a tray full of food, hospita1 food, you should remember. We were always 

taught to eat all that we were g,ven, we would struggle through all of this 

tray full of hospital food. Whenever we didn't like anything, like trying 

to say the banana for the first time, because it was so new and because 

that we thought the rest of America ate all that they·~~ere given, not liking 

the food that you have tasted for the first time, you just could not see 

struggling through finishing it. Like the banana, we would wrap up what food 

that was left, wrap in paper towels and throw in a can and you talk about 

conservation and that one gentleman said well, conservation should be taught 

in the shcools and I wonder whether he realized that maybe it should be, if 

he supposing teaching conservation in the schools, then it should start from 

waste of food that America does. 

Anyway, what I'm attempting to do is; okay, it is a personal side to 

political issues, we tend to forget that there is really, that you're really 



There is a human side to every issue. 

realize a lot of times especially when all of Alaska is becoming very po-, 

litical and that with every issue the groups of the people that are heard 

that are the ones ttiat are more vocal, more articulate, they have the 

power to be heard and I wanted to try to add some di'fferent viewpoints 

that would remind us of that we really dealing with people and I'm not sure 

if I'm coming across all that real : but. 

And during the years that I've lived in Fairbanks I've tried to ob­

serve the actions, where the people have to say, I have noticed how it's 

such a big issue for people to be Alaskans come election time, especially 

in Fairbanks. I noticed how it so very important that the person is an 

Alaskan. I've lived here for how many years, and I'm an Alaskan. Therefore 

it is something special, it gets almost to the point where being an Alaskan 

means you're a special somebody, who is especially understanding, and 

especially kind in all matters. It gets almost down to that tone. But I've 

also noticed where those people that say this will turn around and try to 

make a difference between themselves and the rest of Alaska including the 

rural areas and those groups of people that are termed Alaska Natives . They 

say everything is equal, we're all Alaskans but there's a lot of those that 

are quick to make a difference between Alaskans and Alaskan Natives. Some­

times it gets to the point where it doesn't seem fair because there's 

always that difference and sometimes there are perhaps, there are remarks 

made that are a little bit different than the viewpoints that are used to 

being heard. Then perhaps, there could be a better understanding of that 

even with all of the parents' differences that what really comes down to it, 

you know . You ' re all feeling with (inaudible) This is what I think I'm 

trying to say, I'm not sure what kind of (inaudible) arriving at but I 



realize that in a ver~ awkward' way, I'm trrying to come across and try to 

show that dealing with issues people that (inaudible) 'try to make general-· 

1zat1ons in the long run, you're not really being fair about ft . If 

people are going .to make statements, I t;elieve there has to be firsthand 

experience and understanding before statements are made which are directed 

at a group or an area or say Ethnic groups, that there is never ever one 

definition that can be directed at these groups or areas. I guess that's 

how I. . . 

Representative Joe Hayes: I just like to say that I appreciate your sharing 

your experiences with us, I certainly gained some insight into subsistence 

living based on what you told us about your experience and I think you came 

across very well. I got your message. 

Marion Hao: Like Mr. Wiese tonight, I think mentioned his name , was very 

proud that he had not bought any meat the years that he has lived in Alaska . 

And this shows the intelligence and adaptability of people . Okay, when 

people talk of how subsistence, there's some people that mentioned, sub­

sistence living is no longer here, if that is the case then maybe somebody 

should go around try to educate these people who are living a subsistence 

lifestyle which goes into the area of eating certain kinds of foods being 

used to eating certain kinds of foods and if there is no longer subsistence 

lifestyle then somebody should go around teaching these different people how 

to start eating foods that are what the general Americans eat and that would 

be a little touchy area because I've heard stories from long ago, say like the 

language used to be discouraged. It seems like that kind of touches 

into that area. Maybe somebody should be appointed to go around to the 

villages and how to acquire tastes for big macs, say . When you are talking 



My conwnents are also unprepared and short due to the 

lateness of the hour, I have to go to work tomorrow for subsistence. These 

conwnents, I just jotted down here during the last couple of hours and some 

of the major conments that I have to make is that on subsistence itself, 

I really don't think that it should be defined at this time, or probably 

not defined at all. For the simple reasons of everybody has got their own 

definition, every association or whatever has their own definition of sub­

sistence and it is also an impossible task. I'm pretty sure a lot of the 

people that take different issues and different sides of the big issue 

of subsistence you know, (inaudible) at this point in time, because of the 

subsistence tenn with that definition is being used, or whatever guidelines 

or bills or legislation that comes about. I also think that the Federal 

government and also the State government should get together somehow in a 

meeting, (inaudible) if necessary, to find out, to set some guidelines that 

will be the same on some of the 0-2 land some of the private lands, you 

know the state is going to (inaudible) Enforcement is very important, it 

is also necessary to help data collection. I do think that enforcement is a 

priority (inaudible). If enforcement does its job, I think you'll find out 

just exactly what's happening. For those of you who have any conments. 

Mr. David Hawthorne: I'm working on this subsistence study in the National 

Petroleum Reserve on the North Slope that is mandated by Section 105 (c) 

of the National Petroleum Reserve Act and I just wanted to share some 



of my perceptions of the definition if subsistence. In a completely, 

unofficial way, because that's something that I'm kinda pounding my head 

against the wall on too . I kind of got a feeling that if people from 

Alaska don't have some sort of at least, vague dafinit ion that somebody 

from D.C. is going to have a definition one of these days, that may 

not as good as what (inaudible) One of my feeling i s that in consideration 

of defining subsistence in tenns of Natives i s a viable alternative, 

not Native in a racial sense, not saying you know, let me see your 

genealogy. But, Native in terms of people who are involved in a culture 

that is a hunting culture, whatever their genetic background. The reason 

I say this is because in my work in Nuiqsuk this surrmer and previous 

work in other places in the Arctic. The guy from the village who's, (i n­

audibl e) from a particular point who goes across the tundra looking for 

something. There's a lot of stuff up there. When I first went to the 

Arctic and looked, it was kind of white, and there were rocks sticking out, 

there just didn't seem to be a whole lot, but there are stories, there's 

graves, sodhouses, and there's a whole bunch of things that a lot people 

don't appreciate. I think that's a type of land use that is much more 

intensive thdn outsiders and I think that some analysis or some thought about 

that . You know. the fact that they use it more intensively because there's 

a lot of stuff there that the people from t 11e outside don't see. Also, 

for cultural reasons , you know, the history is not something that ' s remote 

from the villages, because there all those tings out th<?re. The history is 

out there, it's not in a book. You know you can go out and look at the 

history because you can go across the river from Nuiqsuk and see or 

(inaudible) various villages and you know get a million stories. 

There' s a couple of things that I think will have to, that everybody's 

J~ I 



going to have to be very careful of defining subsistence. 

in economic tenns and in technological terms. The thing about the Native 

people, in the Arctic, that I see, is that they have become very admired by 

people all over the world for their ability to adapt. They continued to 

adapt over the last 100 years, coming in contact with people from Europe 

and America, as any smart person would. I think that if we have a de­

finition based on income, on technology that would eventually favor hunting 

activities by rlOn-Native people who are dropouts from thei l" own society or 

who are rejecting their own society, who are going out to live for romantic 

reasons. The thing that I have was struck by, or have always been struck 

by is that subsistence is not a steady thing today to peopl e. It's not 

a recreation, it's not a game, you know, as it is a game for some person 

who comes from Los Angeles buys the do~ feed and (inaudible) across the 

tundra. You know, even if he does it for 30 years I think there's a dif­

ferent perception of what's going on and I think that we have to think about 

that and we have to realize that subsistence system and subsi stence conflicts 

in the villages are so perceptive and are very adaptive, people. They use 

snow-mobiles almost exclusively it doesn't make sense and if I think people 

are penalized for doing something that makes sense people that use the land 

to play games well for aesthetic reasons, are eventually going to have the 

upper hand for land use. Just a couple of my perceptions on the history of 

the North Slope might be relevent of what I am talking about. There's 

this notion that there's a subsistence economy, and there's a cash economy 

and the good old days, people you know were real subsistors and now they've 

been corrupted because they have snow-mobiles and they have access to cash. 

I think if we look at least on the Arctic Slope over the last hundred years, 

we see that there's been definite dual economy, there has been cash components, 

there has been subsistence components In the economy. 



!n 1860, the whalers came, there was thousands of people from Boston 

in whaling ships that wintered over on Barter Island, Hershel Island. Hative 

people were involved with this. They traded, they got money, they ordered 

from Sears Catalogs , for goods that they wanted and also they got guns, 

at first it was (inaudible) Muskets. This was an adaptation that made good 

sense, so people did it. So the subsistence complex changed as it had 

1200 A.O. when the Tuna Culture invented whaling , Okay, then whaling 

decreased, (inaudible) people got a hold of high powered rifles which worked 

better than muskets, they made sense, so they used them, because they're 

smart people. Also, because they had high powered rifles, they could start 

using bigger dog teams, which is not a precontact generalization. Pre­

contact, much more than post-contact. There' s this whole notion that the 

trapping era on the North Slope was the "Good old Days" . Well, it wasn't . 

It was the result (inaudible) how many people were out to make money by 

getting (inaudible) they hud to have a lot of dogs, they had to shoot a 

lot of game to feed their dogs. In fact they were using a lot more resources 

than (inaudible) When wage labor was introduced people could have more 

outboard motors, they could hav~ snow-mobiles, they continued to get the 

things that they've always needed but it was more effecient and a lot of 

people could spend less time on the land. The need didn't decrease but the 

time on the land decreas~d because the harvest was made effecient and here 

again people are sma rt . Why should a guy down in Washington, where I'm from, 

sel l his combine and go back to his horses. I th ink. it's real analagous, 

I don't think, in setting up a definition of a people who are adapted, to be 

analyzed because they aren't living in a way that i s aesthetically pleasing 

to the people who like to buy postcards in Alaska. 

Mary Binkley: Thank you very much Mr. Chairman and members. I'm Mary 



Binkley. I'm here, I'm not a fishennan. I'm here to speak for friends of 
" 

ours on the Tanana River and this very local area who are friends and many 

are Athabascans. But it's a non-ethnic problen here and it has been men­

tioned earlier in the evening by I think by Mayor Gillam earlier, and also 

my Mr. Samuelson, and it just concerns this local discrimination pos­

sibly against the fisherman in this area. There are regulations in the 

booklet put out by the Board of Fish and Game that says that very definite 

limits and very small numbers of salmon that are allowed to be caught in 

this area . And then in the subsistence fishing there was a new regulation 

that was just added last year and I think that what Mrs. Samuelsen was 

referring to, it's on page 17 of the book. The restirctions, and it's 

number 15, which says, in section 6 (c) of Sub-district 6, which is north 

of the Wood River, between here and Nenana on the Tanana, salmon may not 

be taken following the closure of the co1T1T1ercial salmon fishing season and 

so that means as soon as the co1T1T1ercial fishing season is over, there is no 

subsistence fishing. The people in this district just got to fish a very 

few days and further down the river, maybe 40 miles from here. They were 

allowed to catch unlimited amounts of subsistence fish. So the fishermen 

in this area feel that it's very unfair to have put that in and most of them 

were not even aware of it, when it was added last year and T think it was 

added at the suggestion of the local Fish and Game Division here. So I just 

wanted to get 1t in the records, and I have nothing to do myself with fishing 

other than we operate a tour boat tl~t goes down river and we have known 

many of these people for years, one party for 28 years and he has always 

fished, depended on it for a lot of income for himself plus his own personal 

use. 

Mr. Jonathan Soloman: My name is Jonathan Solomon I'm from the Yukon Flats. 



The Conmittee - looking at a definition of subsistence and prioritizing re­

gional game hunting areas and this sort of thing are inclined to forget 

that our fore father in the State of Alaska has divided the State of Alaska 

in game management, a long time ago. Longer than (inaudible) exists be­

tween the (inaudible) of billages and the regions of the natives in Alaska. 

The boundary lines of the Eskimo people, the Interior Indians, the 

Tlingits, the Aleuts, has been defined by the Native people before the 

whiteman ever came. In looking toward regions of subsist ice areas, the 

comnittee should look toward the Native people, the older people that are 

still alive, that tell us these things that people are there. And this 

is where when you want to define game management boundary lines, the com­

mittee should look toward the rural people and their elders. Because in 

the Yukon Flats, and other areas, they seem to know about these things 

because I've heard it from my grandfathers, my father, my father heard 

from hi grandfather, and his fathers. Even the boundary lines between the 

villages in the Yukon Flat, where there was 11 villages, the boundary line, 

the subsistence resource where each village was defined in the Yukon Flats, 

defined by mountain, defined by a river, and still today we respect those 

those boundary lines. We don't hunt moose in the Beaver area, we don't 

hunt moose in the Circle area, we don't hunt moose on the boundaries of 

the Arctic Venetie Reservation . In Fort Yukon, something about our own 

boundary lines? We got (inaudible) respect for the boundary lines to-

day because we were told it was by our fathers and their fathers. To 

prioritize game management in the State of Alaska is no problem. In 

defining subsistence and saying that you'll define it on resource avail­

able to the people living in a cash economy. I worked as the Mayor of Fort 

Yukon , I worked as a President of Gwitchyan Zhee Corporation, which is under 

the Land Claims and I worked for (inaudible) which is the Three G's, which 



is the non:-prpfr1: : amnl ofl the Yukon v1Jlag.es: 
, 

outfi~s. pnd I made 119.~00 a year. 
( . . ' 

and I could ca~l · it kids, I've got 8 kids altoge~her but right now only 
! ' . 

5 at home, the "' rest ar.e on their own. In 'saying, if the income ofmine, 
l 

saying that is sufficient, that I do not need subsistence to survive. 

It was brought up tonight on that, Mr. Cowper touched, and a fellow from 

North Slope also touched on it, which is right. ·My activities and the 

money I make to support my wife's subsistence activities and my father­

in-laws' subsistence activities of Arctic Village and my grandfathers' 

subsistence activities up at Central Mountain? From Venetie these are the 

people support. Because they have no cash economy to support their 

activit es. But {inaudible) they would not be eligible because of sub-

sistence papers if you try to define subsistence on a resource or a cash 

economy of the person individually. 

Mr. Moses Samuelson: My name is Moses Samuelson, I would like one of you 

fellows to take this put this proposal, when they asked us to put them in 

so. Like Mrs. Binkleysaid in this section - regulation 15 - put that down 

so they could take it off . Justification is her~ we should be allowed to 

fish subsistence after co11111ercial fishing is closed, in fairness, same 

rules as in Subsection 6 and 6{b) should apply to subsection 6 (c) which 

is Manley and Nenana . And this other one I put on, subsistence wording 

applied (inaudible) subsection quotas for each subsection of subsection 6 

rather than single subdistrict quota. Justification: This would allow 

each subsection to harvest a fair portion of the salmon. Like to have one 

of you maybe take this. 

Representative Nels Anderson : I don't know what we can do with these, I 



is some kind of a deadline. Have you already sent this in? 

Moses Samuelson: This is just a copy I have made. I thought I better bring 

it down here and leave it here with you. 

Mr. David Kelleyhouse: I have not notes. I just would urge the legislature 

to try to resolve the whole subsistence thing in as fair a method as pos­

sible to avoid any further polJrization for the people in this State along 

racial lines. I think the whole thing started when everything was fine as 

long as nobody had a claim on any of the resources, it was just kind of a 

low population, productive situation until people pressures and economic 

systems grew to the point where people started gra bbing what they could and 

staking claims around it and this last ditch effort to utilize, and get 

your fair of resources, seems to have polarized just about everybody in the 

room and I think one thing that the legislature should try to keep in mind, 

I realize that there are many sociological, cultural, these kinds of pro­

blems here and a lot at stake but as a biologist, I hope, all my integrity 

intact, I would urge everyone to try and keep the resource itselt, utmost . 

Because everybody in here would, took the time to conment, and the committee 

itself realized that the importance of the resource is to try to accomda te 

every special use (i naudible) as a biologist, I can guarantee you, if you 

lose the resource base, and your popularity and your seats, my job, (inaudible) 

because the resource fell on it's nose and really it's in your hands right 

now. You have the power. Perhaps to reach a sol ution, to acconmdate social 

pressures. Biologists hold the data on the population level, or the activity 

of the population . and to a large of an extent as possible. I would like 

to see the regulatory, the fine regulatory mechanism, left up to the State. 

So that under guidelines, of course, because of the social pressures, but 



have the State set those harvest quotas and have all 

the Aiaska Federation of Natives, and everybody involved in this whole ques­

tion, realize that the integrity of the resource itself is what's at 

stake and try to get along as Alaskans instead of trying to break up in 

small wann groups for instance, don't like to see conventionalism. 

A. M. Swarner: I'm A. M. Swarner, I've lived here for last February 27th. 

I was here 40 years. It won't take me long, there's several things I want to 

say. Repeat that subsistence to death. Everybody has their own definition 

and it means something different to everyone else and I th·.nk (inaudible) 

I wish Mr. Smith were here, if he thinks for a minute tha t those Feds can 

manage our game, if they do like they did our musk ox. Boy, get rid of 

those Feds leave it up to the State. Those F.eds are too far away, we've got 

to stay with our own. Our State's got to manage our own game, (inaudible) 

it might be cra1T1T1ed down our necks but we should never accept it. Last year 

at the caribou hearings, I talked to a man from up North and I said to him, 

"I was told that there was stacks of caribou that went to waste, I think if 

it had not been for the snow machine we would still have plenty of caribou. 

I sad to him, "is this true that there were stacks of caribou that went to 

waste. He put his eyes to the ground and he said I'm sorry to say and I'm 

ashamed and he said yes. think we as people have got to stop and figure 

how n~ch we can ent and not take more than we can eat. I think this ~ thing 

that has happened in the past, that people didn't figure how much they cei Jld 

eat, if they were there, they didn't count, they wronged a bunch and I'm 

sure that this has happened in the past, but that day i s gone . We have got 

to start, can I eat 50 fi sh? Can I eat 70 fish, or whatever. say if you 

use it , it's not wasted buy maybe the time ha s come when we can't even 

take what we need to use. But one thing that I want to say to everyone 



in here - we're divided enough, let's whatever we do don't divide. "lets 

unite". Everyone, color, white, everybody we're all human. And lets un;te 

that's my main thing. 

Stell Nauman: Mr. Chariman, I waited until last because I'm not from Fair­

banks. I happen to be up here for meetings and saw your notice and attended. 

I'm from Eagle River. But I thought that it might be worth giving you a 

few co111T1ents that have both been already mentioned trying to bring into some 

sort of order and also to bring in a few things that have not been mentioned 

yet. One of the primary things that I think that needs to be broug~t out in 

this whole discussion of subsistence what you're really talking about, I 

think, is providing something more than the existing sport, hunting, fishing 

regulations with (inaudible). I think if you look at why are these not 

adequately providing for the needs, particularly in the bush you'll see 

that there are broader dimensions at work. One is your user population is 

increasing, this is one area that could be worked on to help provide ad­

ditional resources for those who are more dependent upon them. Your game 

tends to be decreasing, im many of the species, and in some of the areas 

across the State so that additional funding from the State Legislature for 

Alaska Department of Fish and Game, the research program to this sort of 

thing, particularly in the fish, where we know they ca n influence good 

populations increases in new runs, would be beneficial. The other thing is 

habitat loss, and this is effecting your game, and the availability of 

resources to the increasing user population and this is happening for a 

number of reasons. I'm not just talking simply of the loss of habitat due 

to the i ndustrialization taking t he land out of use but to other things such 

as putting it into different classifications where it cannot be used. Tap-

ping it with road systems, which would create additional pressure from more 



urban groups. All of these things taken together are causing today, 

think, great concern, in many parts of the State, 

provide for subsistence. 

It was interesting sitting and listening tonight, because although 

nobody really wanted to define subsistence, everybody was able to talk 

about it in one way or another. It's being phased out , it's tradition, 

it's cultural, it's not phasing out, I think as it has been stated. Every­

body tends to have a definition in their own minds and one of the reasons 

you get so many definitions is that if you break it down into some of 

the components elements you'll see that, I think, most of them are con­

tinuems . You have a basic continuem where a person over here , on this end 

seombody who would be theoretically 1 om~ dependent upon subsistence re­

source, he would be ( iaudible} a subsistence user. At the other end of the 

continuem you would have the visitor from Germany, who comes in wanting to 

take his antlers back and he'll gladly give the meat to the guide. Okay, 

he is obviously not a subsistence user. Now it's the in-between area where 

you're having difficulties in drawing a line and saying from here to here is 

subsistence and from here to here it's not. And this same continuem idea 

goes on where do you draw the line on income, low income, high income. 

Options, where do you draw it on the continuem of few options to many options. 

Traditions, is it a deep tradition, long set cultural based or is it a 

fairl y recent, a guy that's been hunting for 4 years and wants to keep on 

hunting for years. Dependence, is it a tremendous deep dependence or is it. 

I'd rather kill a moose than go or is it on a racial basis. You have the 

100% pure Native who lives in Alaska all the way up to various degrees of 

inter mixing to a pur white who lives outside perhaps. These are all the 

contingents, as to legislators, you're going to have to deal with and ap-



Another thing that I think that is a generalization that subsistence 

resource use, the use of those subsistence resources carries across the 

State regardless of what you call subsistence , those resources are used 

in differing degrees and differing ways in the various areas of the State. 

The Seward Peninsula use is very different from the use Admiralty Island . 
so any definition or policy you develop has to take into account the very 

diverse regional difference. You also have to take into account the legal 

constraints obviously the State Constitution, the existing State and Law 

regulationa, I can't remember which, on subsistence, which simply states 

that the subsistence is the taking and use ~f wildlife for personal or 

family use. ANCSA, Federal Law is involved, the Constitution, Federal 

ability to for Native groups. Also you have the State and Federal agency 

mandates which h<1ve to be considered. The fish and Wildlife Service 

can do cert~in things in areas and it cannot do certain things in these 

areas. Precedence of the court, it's something that hasn't been mentioned 

and I think it's critical and in that report which is very excellent, by 

Kelso he goes into this in very detail, pointing out that the existing 

precedent on the word subsistence i s normally related not to Wildlife and 

(inaudible) Okay, if this goes to litigation and you do not have a definition 

then the courts are likely to fall back on (inaudible) this inappropriate 

definition and not do what you would have them do as legislators. Another 

point that needs to be brought out more clearly I think is that some game 

is resident, is in the resident area. Your ground Squirrels or something, 

tend to stay in one place, on the other hand you have certain categories. 

Intensity, to simply use some sort of special pennit issued to individuals 

and not go the full council, board route. 



·· . : I would prefer personnaly, to see that the overall state's manage­

ment of game and fish being left with the State as a cohesive manager. 
I ' 

But t he state would have to have the responsibility of coordinating their 

management with these other agencies, Federal and State to insure that theJr 

policies don't violate the agency mandates. And, also to adequately pro­

vide for these special subsistence needs. Apparently, there's some accord 

that has been achieved between the Secretary of the Interior and the 

Governor on this. Because the new Andrus proposal appears to dv this. The 

definition has to be flexi ble. Because as it has been pointed out, that 

subsi stence is changed, it's jut the way of adapting to the land and that 

adaptation will alter both the techniques, species used as game cycles 

change, areas used as the cycles change. So it has to be flexible enough 

so that it can change over t ime , which means in general, definition. 

And I think as biologists has emphasized and I think, everybody else would, 

the most important thing is that you have to protect the resource base. 

Because without the resource base , you have neither the resource nor 

subsi stence. 

Representative Nels Anderson: Thank you very much. I really appreciate 

your co1T111ents. Obviously, you hav e given this a l ot of thought and we can 

use your co1T111ents. 

Unidentified Male: I wanted to say to our biologist that I thi nk, that 

possibly we can, our streams can , produce more fish but they may have to 

have more money for the spawning at the head of the streams . I think we 

can produce more fish than that, I think the streams will feed more fish 

than what are there . 



11 Un~ent if i ed Male: like to make or:ie extra 

' was a comnent made tonight (inaudible) about ·the ability exists to produce 

more fish, I guess the insinuation was that game biologists . could .not 
'ir 

produce more game and that's a fallacy. I would like to take this op-

portunity to (inaudible) the possibility does exist to produce more game 
\ 

in the State, particularly if we could convince the Federal Government to 

go back to the natural fire regime in this State. (inaudible) high moose 

productivity produced in the lo40's to the middle 1960's. And it's onl)' 

been since thes~ fires have been knocked down to an average of close to 

2 million acres a year down to less than an average of less than a million 

acres closer to a half million acres a year that our moose herds have been 

in the state of decline. Don't overlook the possibility of putting a little 

money into habitat improvement, or a little influence on the Federal 

Government. To allow the (inaudible) to do what it does best up here in 

the summer time, that's burn. So, think about that, and also increace the 

resource base, and decrease the amount of conflict over the allocation. 

Representative Nels Anderson: Thank you . Are there any more comments? 

Or is there anyone else who would like to testify at this time? If not, 

thank you very, very much for com·· .J to the meeting tonight. We 

appreciate it and this meeting is adjourned. 
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SUMMARY 

The · b~oa4. spectrum of life styles practiced by Alaskans ~ contribut.es'. · to 
its ' uniqueness among the fi;ty states and adds diversity to American 

. ~ociet~ .. ati· large·. Within this spectrum, there is. an ar~ay;~ ... o·f · ."Alas.~ · . 

. "-kan 11 · and.: '. 1Subs~stence!' life styles . that consis.t of :a compl~~mixtur~ ~ 
· of .tragiti:onall:y nat.ive,.~ traditionally non-nat1ve elemei;its.i~-:.'.;, THERE';,IS, · 
· THEREE.ORE, ~·NO i.RATIONAL NOR . FAIR. BASIS FOR DEFIN1NG .fil! ALA§~,..N .., ~OR-~·:t . "t * 
· sun SIST""'NCE·1 LIFE s•f"VT '!:" • ~·· .- ·\ ~·1r r· · ... ·" ·· · 1• .,;,..'tf. . · ug ., ..-. .&.J.M.We ;.··~. • • ••• "': '• ~t,~lt; , ... •1 " :\\"f h · ~' 11· ••• i 
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Huhting, fishing; .trapping. and gathering of natural foods •.a"re '" pursuits :. 
"that ,figure prominently . in virtually the · whole spectrum of~, Alaskall; ... :. 
life styles·.- However:; .there are continua with . respect to~· these · pur­

. suits ,;: a· s'ingle individual often · exploits living resources-, for diff­
·erent ." reasons at. different times. CONSEQUENTLY, ATTEMPTS TO DISTING­
UISH AMONG . CO~~RCIAL, SUBSISTENCE 7 AND RECREATIONAL HUNTING, FISHING, 

' TRAPPING OR G/ ,fHERING AS PRACTICED BY MANY ALASKANS, HAVE BEEN l1NSUCC- · 
ESSFUL. .. 
Different life styles have different impacts on land use and its res-
6urce~ . _Many Alaska n .life styles, and subsistence uses in particular, 
are less disruptive and less destruc tive t han many other types of life 
s tyles and uses. Subsistence uses are a natural part of Alaskan wild 
country and· sbo~ld be provided for on Na t ional Interest Lands except 
t hos e set aside as National Parks o c National Monuments . Other !and 
managemen t categories, such as preserves or rc fu~es , are more compat­
iolc. with subsistence uses of natural resources. 

. 
Land in Alaska· is being divided into smaller 2nd smaller parcels under· 
o va riety of ownerships resulting in a proliferation of management 
goa ls and policies. This trend is generally incompatible with the 
condit~ons required for many life sty~.es in Alaska and could lead to 
t he- r estruction of these lifestyles~and the. integrity of existing 
ecosys tems. An unprecedented level of cP,ordination and cooperation 
among federa l, state and private groups ·~~ll be needed to overcome 
:h:.s trend. Fish and Wildl ife popula tions and the habit.ats they d'e­
pend upon do not have boundaries that coinc i de wi th existing federal, 
s tete and private lands nor those lands propo sed for inclusion in the 
fou r systems under ANCSA 17 (d)(2) . For thi s reason as well as the 
£3ct that legally (Statehood Act) and historically the State of Alaska 
bas had' the responsibility fo r wildlife management, the ALASKA CONSER­
VAT ION SOCIETY BELIEVES THAT THE BASIC EXISTING REGULATORY REGIME FOR 
:·HmTING, TRAPPING AND FISHING IS MOST APPROPRIATE TO PROPERLY CONSER-' 
'J'Z AND PROTECT FISH AND WILDLIFE I d ALASKA, AND 'fO PROV IDE THE MECHAN-
1s··1S ~oR ALLOCATION OF RESOURCE USES. 
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LIF~ STYLES, SUBSI~TENCE~ AND, HUNTING 
' I ' 

.In Ala~ka · there is : a broad~ spectrum of life styles that: hav~~ develope~ . 1 \.~ 

.from· many· .. different cultural . roots • . This spectrum· ranges. froin•: lif~ ·. 1 
, 

\ s t~1les, i. derived "'!:from hunter-gatherer economies , '.v~whose· 1social.1worganiza'=" · . \; ;; 
ti~n ,) ·and cult\." il·:; p·att"ern·s .were\ shap ed';. largelY, oy .·the.~ biological .1an<q :" . "t 
physical environment in which they evolved, to . those derivea primar~~· r .~ 
.ily· from western-industrial economies, whose social organization and ~ 
cultural. patterns have. evolved in dir.ections. tbatt:- lead~'.to . the ·separa~ 

· tion 1 of the individual from direct . ties.: ·and . experience with:·the land-, 
.and its resources· •. Indeed ; · it is :t this very-· mix of life .styles1found ;,., 
in this spectrum·t'that . contributes to Alaska! s .. uniqueness. among. the ·•· 
fifty .. ~states. 1 •THg ALASKA~ CONSERVATION SOCIETY-·"CONSIDERS THJ.<T THIS :·. 
DIVERSITY ·op LIFE· STYLES IS AN ASSET TO ALASKA AND ANERICAN., SOCIETY' #~ 
AT L..u.RGE . ' , . ' . 

Th~re are three important qualities to this spectrum of life styles 
th~t are relevant to decisions regarding t he disposition of d-2 lands 
and the ~3encies tha t will manage them. Each of these qualities can 
be visualized as a continuum. They are 1) a dependency continuu~ with 
di r ect use 0 £ local resouLces at one end Bnd dependence upon distant 
resources or the i r products at t he u ther ; 2) an energy consumption 
continuum charac t e ri zed by l abor intensive acquisition of r esources. 
a t one end and at the other end , highly mechanized acquisition , pro ­
c~ssing and trnnsportation o.E resources and; 3) a psychological con­
tinuum ranging from a fe eling of self - s ufficiency and independenc e at 
one end to a fee ling of less · se l f - sufficiency and greater dependence 
on others fo r basic needs at the other end. 

~ · t ull discussion of the ramifications of thes e qualities of· life 
styles with regard to land ~~e and resource management in Alaska is 
beyond the scope of this 'position paper. The most important .feature 
to =acognize is that DIFFERENT LIFE S1~LES HAVE VERY DIFFERENT IMPACTS 
ON IJ\HD AND ITS RESOURCES. 

Subs istence : 

W~ t~~n the existing , broad spectrum of life s tyles there i s an arr ay 
of ' 'Ala skan" life styles including many so-c a lled "subsistence" l i fe 
styles. Subsistence l ife styles are a comp le:c milt ture of tradit ional­
l y native, traditionally non-native, and comple t el y new e l emen ts that 
vary t r emendously f r om place to place , f rom one i ndividual to another 
a ~<l ~rom y~ar to year. Fo r these and o ther r ea sons, WE BELI2VE IT IS 



. ~" . " " . : 
The Alaska C.onservation . Society supports the 
use of natural ·resources by Al~skans for the 

1 . Th~re are strong cultural affinities for subsistence 
na tives and non-natives, ' even though the basis for these 
di~fers~ I 

I • 

2 . The e JC:1..S tence of viable s ubsistence life styles provides our soc­
ie ~7 at larJ e with an added and pos i tive element of diversity, whic~ 
en=iches bo th subsistence users and others. 

3 . Subsistence life styles, pr operly pursued, are envi ronmentally 
l~ss cisruotive and l es s dis t~uct~ve than l~ fe s t yles associated with 
~odern air~iian or industrial societies . Regul ated and controlled, 
su~sistence activities can be 2n ecologica lly s~und mea ns of support­
ing peo~12 i n rural Alaska. 

~. Subsistence use remains an economic necessi t y for many rura l 
Alaskans . 

5 . . Suosistence use has always been a .1atural part of true wilderness, 
cont~ary to todays popular notion of wilderness as " ••• a place where 
onimals l ive, but people only visit." 

Huntin3 : 
.. , 
J 

'Hunt~ng , fi shing and trapp i ng are pursuits that figure prominently in 
v~=tually the whole spectrum of Alaskan li Ze styles. However, given 
tlie current 11rnobility" of i ndividuals with respect to liie styles , 
some people are often involved in . the explo i tation 0£ living resources 
~Jr diffc~en t reasons at different ti~es. Simi l arily, the use of a 

. ~iven species can, at different times, oe £or different purposes by 
th~ ~ame per son. Thi s i s t rue wi th respec t to hunting , trapping and 
£~shi~3 . For these an~ o t her reasons, at tempts to dis t inguish among 



. . 
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Althougn fishes and . fishing are of great : importance, and · the, factors~~ ­
.... affecting fish populations and aquatic habitats 6 are, in a ~broadl,sense·, ~· .. 

qui:te. similar' to those· affecting birds and mammals, ; the questlon~ of'.f~·: ,·. , 
. fishing· does not currently· engender the kind of debate that: huntingi:i<! 1, 

.. ,j ?' ..... 

otid trapping · do. Current· 2ttention within Alaska 2nd> nationally is~::! . 
, focused On , the issue Of hunting e • _, ~ .. Ir ~ ''•"" J~~ .. :~·.J~ • . · ·~ '~ , 

• .. • " • - · -- ~·:' •• :: • ~ It .~ .... · : -: ~·-(·/,tt"'> ~ ;,. ... J ~-'Ji.. v- • ·~\; · - .. !-- '"· •• • .....- .·r ~ • ..... ~ , Si, '•• ;;r , • /l. 5'. ""'"'• ....,.. ... ._\..- N i ~ 
t' ! .. • ' .. ~.-:'(. • 

Hunting wild. game · 'i.; a pursuit as old as· mankind'; in .'->fact;,,. hunting : ~. ' 
was crucial to man's evo~utionary development. However,. .in~modern ... ' ·· ·· 

. life, · relatively. few people are confronted with the necessity of hunt - · 
ing or gathering food ; · nor with the reality that . their life·· depends': ... 

. ~ up9n the death of other living things . Hunting brings this relation- . 
· Ship into sharp focus,and emphasizes man's need for a more responsible 
atti~ude· toward ' other species and their habitat. 

Because of the contributions of nun ting to Alaskan life styles · thr.ougb 
. . its physical and psychologic al challenges and rewards, we believe that 

hunting in its various forms should be provided f or in l and dedication 
~cd mana~ement. We consider hunting to be very impor t ant among the. 
arr2y of potential wildland uses. Aga in, a continuum exists between 
th~ Qxtr~mes of hunting 2s a dominant desirable use of wildlands in 
some Gi~cums tances to those situation~ , such as national parks and 
monuments, within ·which i t i.s neither des irable nor compatib le wi th 
otbe~ ilr.portant uses. 

fio~ever, if hun ting is to s urvi ve as a positive element, some hard 
realities must be recognized and r ec koned with. 

1. Biologi cal productivity. The b~sic long-term 9roductivity of·~ 
Alaskan lands is low, and the abundance of plants and animals varies 
dramatically over any period of years. Hunting and other wildland 

.. 

uses must be regulated in accord with these basic principles, or nei­
t her the wildland uses nor the wildland resources will s~rvive in a 
healthy condition. 

2 , Hu.man Population Densi ty . For subsis t ence life styles with a high 
direct dependence on hunting and g=thering to 0e perpetuated, low den-
5ities of users in relati on to res ources must be maintained. In the 
pas t, ava i lability of resources limited human numbers, but today many 
con·s train ts on human population have been removed. Therefore, regul­
J t:ons are necessary to insure that increased human use does not dam.~ 
a~e wi l dland resources. 

Hoclern Technology . Technology has increased the effi ciency of all 



·" 

hunters. Impot:perly· eniployad, 
to 
of 

I:n relation · to disp.osition of d-2 lands, it is clear that hunting, . 
trappiri,5, fishing and many other consumptive · us2s are unlikely to , be 1 

ccmpC!tible w.i:th the management policies and philosophies of national . · 
parks ~nd.monuments. Where hunting is to be permitted~ w~ · recommend ~ 
t hat other land management 'categories be established (e.g •. preserves, 
refu3es) which also provide ~ppropriate watershed~ habitar_and wtld-
!ife p~otection. , .. *'~ 'f.l° ',/ 

" '~":"~ -
Although we · feel that .hunting should not be permitted' in ·parks and 
monuments, hunting should be permitted in all other. federal .land cate­
gories· subject to appropriat.e. regulations · and contro'is. 1~i; 

•• 

We believe that the basic existing ~egulatory regime for hunting, . 
· trapping and fishin3 is most appropriate to properly conserve and .pro~ 
tect fish· and ·wildlife in Alaska, and to provide' the mechanisms for ~. 
ailoca'tion of resouce use among various users. Legally and his tori'-~ 
cully the State of Alaska has had the responsibility for ·wildlife mau­
a3ement• This management is based on the state's constitutional dir-

. ect ive that resouce allocati on should not 0e based on pla~e of resi­
d~nce, r ace · or level of cash income. We believe that to properly r.eg­
ula t e t~e entire spectrum of hunting , trappi ng and fishing 11ses eff ­
~tively and equitably , state regula t i on promulgated and effected with 
fecle ~al coordination and cooperation is the r.iost appropriate ·scheme. 
Eecause feder~lly le3is la t ed fish and wiidlife mana3ement reguls:!ons 
wo~ld dea l wi th on l y port i ons of the mana3ement comp l ex in Alas~a, and 
cecause Federal legislat i on would be a more s t at i c scheme appli =d to 
a necessa:-ily dynamic mana3emen t s i tuation, we o?puse Federal l e3is­
l Etion as the sole or maj or re~ulatory mechanism effacting wild l ife 
m:na3ement 'on National Inter sst Land~· in Alaska. 

Tbe manai ement of habitats will require the cooperation of all "land­
o~n ers '; . Land in Alaska is being divi ded into smaller and smaller par­
cels under a variety of ownerships thereby resulting in a proliferat­
ion 0£ management goals and po~~cies. This trend is generally incom­
pati~le with the cond~tions required for meny of the existing l ife 
styles in hlaska and will l e ad to the destruction of these life styles 
and the i ntegrity of existin3 ecosystems unl~ss a new and imaginit~ve ~ 
Z?proach to land ond resource manpgement is adopted, one that can over 
come t~e ~nher~nt deficiencies qf an uncoordinated mosiac of land own­
e~~hip and management polic i es. To achieve coordi nat i on of land use 
a~d r~source management in accord with the pol~cy stcted above will re-
,u~r2 un unpr ecedanted leve l of cooperation and a3r eement among feder­
n l , state and privace groups. Tbe new and permanent Joint Federal­
~t s,;e Lenci Cotnr.li s sion, a s proposed by the ACS, will serve an essential 
~oL~ i n achievi nB th~s coop e~at :on . 

' . 
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Testimony of the Alaska Conservation Society 
on HR 39, Alaska National Interest Lands Conse~vation Act 
House Subcommittee on General Oversigh t and Ala·ska Lands 

Fairbanks, Alaska August 20,. 1977 

Mr. Chairman, my name is Herbert R. Melchior, I am Vice President of 
the Alaska Conservation Society, a volunteer group of 900 Alaskan and 
200 non-Alaskan members . Since its forma t ion in 1960, the Society 
has worked hard to secure the wise use of renewable and non-renewable 
resources; and the protection and preservation of the scenic, scienti­
fic , recreation, wildlife and wilderness v~lues of Alaska. My t esti ­
mony today supports HR 39 as the best vehicle for bringing the Alaska 
Nationa l Interest Lands issue before the people of America. 

HR 39 addresses many issues of great importance to Alaska and Al askans , 
to the Nation and its people. However, we feel that some of these 
i ssues are either inadequately or improperly dealt with in the present 
form of the Bill. Since the basic goals of HR 39, the identification 
and protection of federal wildlands, has been frequently praised by 
many previous speakers , I feel the Alaska Conservation Soc i ety's con ­
tribution will be most constructive by concentrating on those secLions 
we feel need to be changed or need our special support . 

Because fish and wildlife populations move across t he artificial and 
often arbitrary land boundaries established by humans, and because the 
Statehood Act, ANCSA, and future legisloti.on, such as HR 39, is divid­
ing up the hobitots of many species and placing them into different 
land management systems - systems with different gonls and object i ves -
we feel it is abso lutely essential that Congress devise a mccms to 
achieve ond give legislative support to a higher leve l of cooperation 
than l1as existed among private, locol government, stntc ond federa l 
land management groups . We feel Section 708 (n) of HR 39 does not go 
far enough. It is not sufficient to simp,ly au thorize agencies to en te1~ 
into cooperative agreemen t s. A catalyst is needed with the authori t y 
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The mechanism must involve real people and have a ~eal budget - perhaps 
even ~onies to pay part of the salary of agency representatives and 
private ~.ndividuals so the excuse can 't be made that the money is not 
available co support work on cooperative l and management. 

This committee should consider legislative ways of insuring that the 
process is undertaken and that it works, first by mandating that agenc­
ies cooperate in the endeavor and second by inserting language into the 
Bill that with holds ' money from the agency unless it actively partici-

.pates. 

Private groups can be given tax incentives to participate and the 
State Legislature should pass appropriate legislation to insure the 
participation of state agencies . 

·As envisioned here, this is NOT a fifth system nor is it a device to 
erode the basic management responsibilities of each agency - it simply 
insures that they cooperate in a serious and e ffective man11e r to main­
toin hea l thy habitats for fish and wildlife. 

As written, Section 701 (a), (b) and (c), which deal with subsistence 
uses of d-2 lands and wildlife management, are unacceptable and in 
conflict with the positions adopted by the Alaska Conservation Socie ty's 
Board of Directors. 

The broad spectrum of life styles practiced by Alaskans contributes to 
its' uniqueness among the fifty states and adds diversity to American 
society at lai:gc. Within this spec tr um, there i s an a rn1y of "Alaskan" 
ond "Subsistence" life styles th.:it consist of dynamic complex mixture 
of traditionally native, truditionnlly non-native clements. Therefore, . 
we believe there is no rational nor fair basis for rigid l y defining 
subsistence life . 

Although we bcli.cve it is impossible to develop n simple , rigorous def­
. inition of subsistence, we recognize there nrc still many people who 
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a·1(. .. e~(ltl~·E~~'.:f~n .. o;~~ t m'a g; . I -~ ,:.v 
'°"\ • • . i~s culturall:y tlie. way ~o'f '°life. °'f 

or by choice, tt1ey live off the land. To a great degree, 
Activities in support of these life styles include hunt­

ing, fishing, trapping and gathering traditional wild foods and other 
organic materials. Of necessity, practioneis of subsistence life styles liv 
in areas of ·low human population density. Historically and throughout 
Alaska, hunting and gath~ring_societies were distributed a t l~w densi-
ties ~s mandated by the ptdductivity and characteristics of the eco-
systems of which they were a part. Furthermore, to be successful at 
subsistence living, they must hove the dedication, knowledge and ~kills, 
which in essence make them "professionals" at hunting, fishing and trapp-
ing. . 

The Alaska Conservation Society supports the concept of subsistence use 
of natural resources ·by all Alaskans for the following reasons. 

1. There are strong cultura l affinities for subsistence 
living among natives and non-Natives, · even though the bases 
for these affinities differ. 

2. The existence of a viable subsistence life style provides 
our society at large with an added and positive element of 
diversity, which enriches both s ubsistence us er s and other s. 

3. Subsis tence life styles , properly pursued, are environmen­
tally less disruptive and less destructive than life styles 
associated with modern agrarian or induntrial societies. Reg ­
ulated ond con trolled, subsistence activities con be an ecolog­
ically sound means of supporting people i n rurul Alaska. 

4. Subsistence use remains an economic necessity for many 
rural Alas kans. 

5. Subsis tence use has always been a natural pnrt of true 
wilderness , contrary to todnys popular notion of wilderness 
as 11 

••• a place where an i mo l s live, b l1 t pc op le only vis i t " 
as similarly expressed in the Wilderness Ac t . 

Therefore, if the legis l ation tha t evo l ves f r om these henrinr,s addres s ­
es the question of s ubs i s t ence wildlife harves t s , several pri nciples 
should be foll >wed: 

a) Native s hubs i s t encc uses , where these hnve con t cmpornry 
validity, s hould be firmly p rotected; huwcvct·, non-Na tive sub ­
sistence uses , which mee t the same tc~~ts of: vali dity, should 
be r,iven equal protection . Subsis tence s hould not be defined in 
luw on o racial bu s is. 

-. .J 
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c) Neither subsistence, sport, commercial, nor scientific uses 
of fish and wildlife should be permitted to jeopardize the wel­
fare of the resources themselves. 

From the things I have already said it must be clear that we do not 
support the game management and regulatory scheme embodied in Section 
701 (a) and (b) which places these activities under the Secretary of 
Interior on f~deral lands (t~at is d-2 and adjacen~ lands) but leaves 
these activities for the State on State and private lands. Further-

more, this partitidning of responsibility and authority only applies 
to subsistence activities and not to other resource uses . What a 
monster of confusion this will create. It will be bad for resources 
as well as for those who use and depend upon .them. From an ecological 
point of view, this scheme is unrealistic and shows a lack of under­
standing of the historical behavior of fish and wildlife populations 
at northern latitudes and of the functions of northern ecosystems. 
~et me try to briefly explain this statement. 

There are several very important a·spec t: s to northern ecosystems that 
should be taken into consideration before d~ciding on suc h e course 
of action as suggested in HR 39. These ere: 

1. Major fluctuations in abundance have been shown for essen­
tai:Lly every species of fish, bird, and mammal that has been 
studied f or nny length of time, or for which estimates of num­
bers exists. These fluctuations are usually not sync hronous 
among species and the periodicity and magnitude of the fluctua­
tions have been generally unpre <lic talJlc. This applies to both 
thoBc species harves t ed by humans and those t hat a r e not. Even 
plant resources, suc h ns bcrr.y crops and tree seed production 
undergo marked fluctuations. 

2. Coupled with this, many species - severnl of consi.clernble 
impc>rtunce to rurnl Alaskan in part icular - mnke major s hifts 
in location; some sensonn lly, some on n more semi -penn:.ment bnsi 
bas:J.s , s uc h as some of the herds of cnd.bou in /\la ska that have 
shifte d their rnngc or herds tlrnt have bt·oken up into sma ller 
units, each going tts own wny. These s hift s in spocc h11ve nlso 
been unpredictable hut co u lei be c11used by the nn t ur.1 l <leg t·ada ti on 
of range by s uc h f:nctors ns f ire, unusual snow conditions or 
eimp ly ovcr-g r ozinu or ovc1:-browsing by the animn l s themse lvcs. 
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J. Both wild predators and humans depending on animal resources 
must be able to seek out and acquire the resources where they 
are irrespective of politicnlly or arbitrarily drawn legal 
boundaries. 

4. The productivity of plants and animals at northern latitudes 
is generally much less than for ecologically equivalent species 
in the lower 48. For example, Vermont, with an area of about 
9000 square miles has about 250,000 white tail deer or about 28 
per square mile while the range of the Wes t ern Arctic Caribou . 
Herd of about 140,000 square miles, supported at its peak popu- · 
lation about 240-250,000 caribou or l e8S than 2 per square mile. 

The importance of understanding these attributes of northern ecosys­
tems i s that with l arge numerical changes occurring over time and 

·space in a r e latively unpredictable manner , f i xed boundaries for the 
management and regula tion of fish and wildlife are inappropriate and 
ecological ly unsound. Thus the concept of establishing ''subs istence 
manngement zones" on federal lands is unsoun d and unworkable . It is 
true tha t the present ~tate system invol ves the cstab liRhment of fi sh 
end game management unit·s an d that bag limits and seasons are estab ­
lis hed for each but this is a flexible s ystem carried out statewide 
and bnsed on the existing conditions of the resources . It readily 
undergoes revision each year. 

How would the subsistence manE1gement zone work in practice? Would the 
boundaries change as the resou r ces fluctuate in space? What happ ~ns 

to the constitution of the subsistence board if the bounc.laries change? 
Are boundary changes made when one species changes its place of hobit ­
etion? When two species change? How would thi s system interact with 
the state ' s responsibility on stute and private lands and for non- s ub­
sistence users , s uch as rccreationn l hunters and fishermen who also 
have a valid intcrC's t in our l iving resources? 

The Alaska Conservation Socie t y believes tl1e satis factory r es olution 
to these questions i s to delete Section 701 (u) nnc.l (b) and to re-
ef firm Sec ti on 6 ( e ) of the Alns ka S to tchood /\ct (PL 85 - 508) which 
entrusted the administration, management, nr-d conservation of the fi s h 
wildlife resources t o the state, to quote the Ac t, "in the broad 
national interes t." 

and 
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~he ~iaska Conservation Society requested this action in 1975 before 
PL 94-258 (National ietroleum Reserves Act o~ 1976) was passed and 
sulisequently, we have asked three Secretaries "of Interior, including 
Secretary Andrus, to designate the USFWS ~s manager, but to no avai 1. 

And why have we put such effort in this? 1) Because NPR-Alaska ts 
the largest block of de facto wilderness in the United States and al3o 
the largest block of land remaining under one jurisdiction in Alaska. 
2) It possesses a great variety of renewable resources of great vilue 
to the nation and the people of Alaska. It includes important breed­
ing grounds for millions of waterfowl and several species of shore 
birds; it includes the calving grounds of the Western Arctic Caribou 
Herd. 3) The us1;ws has been conducting biological studies and surveys 
in the area for decades and therefore has in Alaska a cadre of bio­
logists who know the area and understand some of the special qualities 
of northern tundra ecosystems and 4) this same ' Service, which manages 
the Kenai Moose Range, has individuals in Alaska who have worked with 
the oil and gas indu~try and therefore could work with this industry 
during the exploration 'of NPR-Alaska mandated by Congress in PL 94-258 .. 

However, these are not the only reasons why we bring this information 
to your attention. As recently as iast montl1 three geologists from 
the US Geological Survey reported in Survey Circular 751-B tha t, and 
I quote: 

"From results of tbe 194L~-53 Pet 4 exploration program, 
recent inves tiga tions , and the extension of eastern North 
Slope (primarily Prudhoe Bay) data westward, a preliminary 
judgement can be made of the probability of the occurrence of 
Prudhoc Bay-type hydrocarbon accumulations in NPR-4 ••• 

Evaluation of the regional geology of northern Ala ska suggests 
that the unique combination of ge<l logicn l and geoc hemical e le­
ments resulting in the Prudhoe Bay field is not likely to be 
repeated in NPR-4 ••• . 

Assessment of the critical geological-geochemical factors 
suggests that the recoverable resource may be even smaller 
than the S billion barre ls of liquid hyd t·ocarbons an<l ll•. 3 
trillion cubi.c feet of natural gas estimated by the FEA in 
1976 and nrc likely to be distributed in a number of small a 
nccumulations rather than o few giant fields ." 

,. 



J l • \ "' t • ,. • 

Given this information, .we feel it is even more important now to ,have 
·management of this area in the hands of the agency most likely to pro­
tect the true, long t .erm' values of the region. 

-· 
Be~~re closing, I would like · to refer you to the testimo~y given in 
Washington, DC to your committee on April 21, 1977 by the president of 
the Alask.a Conservation Society. That testimony covered briefly the 
Society's pos ition on other important issues embodied in this legis­
lation. · In particular I would bring to your ·attention our strong 
hope that final d-2 legislation will contain provisions for new wild­
erness areas in Southeast Alaska, as provided by HR 39. As our chapter 
members in Ketchikan, . Petersburg, Sitka and Juneau have testified, 
Congressional action is urgently needed to protect these green and · 
turquoise jewe ls of Alaskan landscape. 

Time does not permit comment on other important subjects inherent in 
the complex legislation before you. The Alaska Conservatim1 Society 
is happy to place its knowledge and i nsights at the disposal of this 
Committee throughout the coming discussion of the national interest 
lands in Alaska 

Thank you very much for the opportunity to testify here today. Please 
include these co1m1ents . as part of the formal hearing record . 
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WHEREAS , tlie Executive Commtl. ttee of the Alaska 
Chapter of the Sierra Club recognizes that · haoita:~ ' in 
Alaska for wild game species is changing rapidly and the 
carryirig capacity for game in Alask; 's wil~erness lands , · 
incl.uding but not limited to Nationa l IJ:l tez.:est r,ands, is 
b·ecoming limited · to such an ext~nt that future management of 
these ~ands should be subje~t to .certain priorities; and 

WHEREAS, with r ega:r.d to National Interes~ Lands 
proposed for inclusion into the "four s ystems" federal 
par~lands in Alaska, wildlife and other wilderness ·resources 
must be managed so as to preserve these resource s in as 
natural a state as possible, protecting the processes and 
cycles inherent in nature , D.nd 

WHEHEAS, with this primary management policy in mind, 
the National Interest Lands should be managed so as to , when 
practicable, provide for the maintenance of the livelihood of 
persons conducting subsistence activities en National Interest 
Lqnd s and prov.ide for the en~joyment of recreational hunters on 
these lands, but only in light of the primary responsib i lity 
of prote cting the viability of species and maintenance of the 
resource b ;:1se throughout the National Interest Lands, and 

:.nu:;m~AS , because one of t he principal goal s in the 
establishment of National Parks and Monuments i n l\lnska is to 
establish and re-establis h undisturbed biological s ystems so 
that the public can enjoy s uch areas without disturbances 
associated with hunting , the Execut.i.ve Committee concludes 
that sport hunting should not be authorized in Nation(tl Pa.r.J~s 
and Monuments in Alaska, 

NOW 'rHEREPORl!: , the Executive Comm:i t t:ee adopts the 
following policy regardi11g s ubsistence activities and sport 
hunting 011 Nat:i.onc1 l Interest J,a nds, for cons:i.clc ration and 

· possible i nc l us ion into relevant Nationa l In teJ~est: Land s 
pr oposals for Ala s ka . 

l . Definitions . 

(a) 11 National Interes t r,ands" s haJ.l refer to all lane.lo 
proposed for incl us ion in to the '1 four sys t e rn ;." f e dEn-c.il parklcll\ds 
categories for Alaska pursuant to Section 17(d) (2) of the Alaska 
Native Cl~.i.ms Settlement Act, i.e. Nutiona l Parks and Mo11umr-mt~, 
Na l:ional \Vildli fe nc f u9es, Na tio1rn.l W.i.l.d and Scenic n ivcrs , u:id 
Nation~l Forests , whic h ~hall be the subject of this Policy. 



(b) 11 Secretary" or "Secretaries" shall refer to 
Secretary of the Interior or the Secretary of Agriculture , 
both , and where the context so permits their respective 
delegates , representatives and agencies charg(~d with the 
administration of the National Int~rest Lands. Where oyer­
lapping or contiguous jurisdiction exists between various 
departments and agencies charged with the administration of 
the National Interest Lands, which could make the implementatio1\ 
of this Policy with regard to subsistence activities cumbersome 
or duplicative , these departments or agencies shall form a 
coopera tive framework of administration to ca rr:y out the 
purposes of this Policy regarding subsistence activities on 
National Interest Lands . 

2 . Policy Regarding Subsistence Activi ties on National 
Interest Lt:tnds. 

Local residents in the vicinity of Nritional Interest 
Lands who exercised and continue to exercise customary , consistc l\ t 
and traditional use of subsistence resources in said lands at the 
time of the passage of the Alaska Nati ve Cla:i.ms Settlement Act, 
and their direct descendant s , sha ll be permi tted to continue 
subsiste nce activities on l:hese Nu tional Int<~r c,· st Lands so lone; 
as it is necessary to supply theJ.r prim:iry nc~ Pcl s of food / 
shelter mater i.::ils, f irewoou, clothing / and t l:-adi tiona 1 handi­
crafts and so long as it is consistent with the sound managemenl 
of these resources. 

3. Regulation of Subsistence J\ctivities . 

(u) L~cal Regula tory Subsistence Boards . l\fte r 
consultation with local r esidents and s tate a genc .tes exercising 
legislative jurisdiction affecting subsintencc r e sources, the 
Secretary or Secretaries s hall designate "Subsis tence Management 
/\re a s 11 in the var .ious geographical areas wheJ:e subsistence 
activities have customarily taken place in N;1tional Interes t 
Lands , without regurd to administrative boundaries established 
for these lands . 'J'he Secre t ary or Secretarie~ responsible f:or 
the admini s tru t i on of these Subs is tcnce M.:rnaqemen t l\l:ens ::;hall 
the n es t nblish local "Hcguln tory Subs is te11ce - Bo•1rds," which 
s hall review and approve permit aJ>plications for subsistence 
activities within their Su bs is tenco Munagemcn l: /\rea i n acc..:ordan c.:u 
with criteria und procedures for tho rnnnagcm<:!nt of these 
resources promulgated afte1 n public hearing by the Secretary 
or Secretaries charged with t l1c u<.1 111.Lnistrat:ion of the land s 
compt· ising each Subsis t:encc Managcmc n t 7\reu. 'J'hese Regulatory 
Subsistence Boards shall also a c.! vine the responsible Secretary 
or Secretaries on matters of concern to locDl s ubsis tence 
pcrmittces and other residents within tltcir Subsistence 
Managcmen t A1:ea . 



. 
(b) Responsibility of th~ Secretary . The Secretary 

or Secretaries exercising proprietary jurisdl:ctipri over lands 
con,taining subsistence res-ources within these Subsistence 
Management Areas shall retain the responsibility to enforce, 
review and, 0 here necessary, overrule decisions made by the 
Regulatory Subsistence Boards. Any permit applicant, 
Regulatory Subsistence Doard member, state agency or member 
thereof, administrator of applicable National Interest Lands 
unit, or any other concerned citizen may appeal the decision 
of a Regulatory Subsistence Board to the Secretary or Secretaries 
responsible and , after appropriate notice, may appeal any action , 
decision or management policy taken by the Secretary or Secretaries 
to the appropria te federal district court, all without regard to 
the amount or issue in controversy. 

( c) Q_veral.l_!l.:u:_iage~ent Poli_sy fo1; _Subsis t ence l\reas . 
Use of these Nationa~ Interest Lands for primary subsistence 
needs will in all cares be given preference over other competing 
uses in a Subsistence Management Area. When a resource cannot 
support ull demands upon it of whe r e limjtations imposed by t he 
Secretary or Secretaries fail to adequately relieve pressure on 
a failing resource , the Sc::cretary or Secretaries responsible for 
the renource sllall c urtail subsistence uses of that r esource to 
the extent ne cessary to protect the viability of the species 
and otherwise restore and preserve wilderness and wildlife ln 
the Subsistence Management Area. 

4. Policy Hegard ing Sport Hun ting j n Na tionnl Intel:est Land s . 

It is recognized that sport hunting provides a 
physically and emotionally rewarding outdoor experience for 
somc ' pcrsons and, so long as consistent with sound management 
policies , shall be permitted in National Interest Lands not 
s ubj ect to the ju1:isdiction of Lhe National Pa1~k Service as 
Pa~ks or Monu1nents, but only after the reasona ble r equireme ntH 
of subsistence hunting are met. 

5. Re9 ulation of Sport Hun tin9. 

Access for sport hunting shall be au t horized by t he 
Sec1: c t:ary chnr<Jcd with th0 adnd.nis tra tion of en ch un.i. t of: the 
National Inl:erent Lands when, c:1f ter a ful.l cvaluntion , .i.t is 
de termin~cl that there is an adequate rest:>Urce . 'l'hc Seer~ tary 
oha 11 r egulate the means of sport hunt) ng in a man11er not to 
jcopard.i.7.e the viabili l:y of wildlife or ht1bi tat j n the hunt 
area , taking into nccount the demands of subsistence activities 
and existing wilderness values in the arc.:>.. In all cases the 



principles of "fair chase" shall apply. Federal permits for 
sport hunting shall be administered in conjunction with state 
agencies exercising legislative jurisdiction affecting these 
resources in developing annual statewide hunting regulations 
but , in any event, such permits will not be awarded unless the 
Secretary determines there are adequate state and federai 
regulatory facilities and personnel in the field to ensure the 
enforcement of the rules of the hunt. 
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NO NATIVES ~RE GIVEN EG~ IN 'mE NO:ViEMBER, 19i6 GIVEAMAY ,. 

IF THE us SUPR·EME COUR'.U rs"" CORR'RCT IN RULING GAME J\:NIMALS Ori 

FEDERAL LAND BELONG TO A1L THE AMERICIN POEPLE, WHY DO.ES GLCB 

COMMERCIAL THE CHOICE ~llNG AREAS SO THAT THE ANIMALS CAN BE 

SOLD BY BIG' GAME GUIDES? Q,&M., ~ ~ • ' . ~ 
<A,, ~ ~'O ~ ~ "-~ . ·~ ? 

· KAK'OOVIK, {BARTER ISLAND)CHILDREN SOMETIMES CGMg'1 TO' ,'SCHOOL NGR'.Y 

'WREN HUNTING IS BAD. BU.T 2,000,000 AaRES EGA WAS GIVEN TO ONE 
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GREAT· LAUGHING CJIARLIE B~OWNt (GL&CB) Ii MA:,TOR P9R~ION OF THE PRISTI,NE MEAS· 
OF THE BROOKS RANGE WILDERNESS AND NORTH SEOPE ·ruNDRA AND 'HILLS WERE GIVEN 
AWAY SUNDAY 12 Alm MONDA~ 1), DECEM·BEB, · 1976,, IN ~NC.HORAGE BY THE GUIDE 
LICENSING AND CONTROL BQARI>1(,iGL£B) TO COMMEHC!i.L -ALASL\ GUIDES FOR ~IR .t · 
EXCLUSIVE GUIDING AREA. (,EGA) 'N~TIVE ART F.l~LDS OP KOTZEBUE FOUND ~L ·DEAF EARS 
PDR '".HIS VIGOUROUS PROTEST TO' GL!CCB. ONE GUIDE STATED HE .BAD NEVER GUIDED 
I?Y THE LARGE NOATAK RIVER AREA HE WAS GIVEN • . o~ ·Gu.mr;, WAS GIVEN TWO 
MJLLION(YES 2,000,000') ACRES NEAR THE CANNING R"IVER AND NEEDED MORE. 
ANOTHER TWO MILLION ACHE EGA INCLUDES THE KAKTOVIK BARTER ISLAND NATIVE VI-

-LLAGE SUBSISTANCE HUNTING AREA ,f\ND A MAJOR "PORTION-OF THE ARCTIC NATIONAL 
WILDLIFE REFUGE. WERE THE KAKTOVJK PEOPLE CONSULTED P.RIOR TO MAKING THEIR SU-

. BSISTANCE HUNTING GROUNDS roR AN EGA? DID THE SEVEN TANIC GLCB BOARD MEMBERS 
INSURE NATIVE REPRESENTATION? OR NATIVE ALASKAN AWARENESS OF THE GIVEAWAY? 
GEORGE' AND NORA .AHGIAK HAVE FOR MANY YEARS WINTERED ON THE SUNNY HULU HULU 
'RIVER, PIFTY MI·LES SOUTH OF KAKTOVIK AND THE BEAU,FORT SEA CO.A:ST SEVERE··WINDS. 
AT OLD MAN CREEK, THE SP ARK~ING HULlJ HULU WATERS EXIT THE BROOKS RANGE PEAKS, 
FLOWING NORTH TO JOIN THE 'ARCTIC OCEAN. THE FROZEN RIVER SURF~PURNISHES A 
SUPERHIGHWAY FROM THEIR CAMP IN WINTER TO KAKTOVIK. THE EVER FLOWING WATER UK-
DERNEATH THE ICE CONTAINS FISH YEAR ROUND. THE ARCTIC HILLS ABOUND IN SHEEP, 
WotF, MOOSE, CARIBOU, ARCTIC HARE, AND PTARMIGAN. I HAVE MANY TIMES ENJOYED 
HOT COFFEE AND ,l!:ATEN WITH TIIE AHGIAKS IN THEIR TENT,SETTING ON A CARIBOU SKIN. 
A SMALL YUKON STOVE DEVOURS WILLOW TWIGS, WARMS THE TENT, HEATS THE COF'~· • 
AND COOKS THE FOOD. THE AHGIAKS STAVE OFF HUNGER IN THE MOST BEAUTIFUL OF' 
WILDERNESSES BY SUBSISTANCE HUNTING AND FISHING. ONE XMAS, THR WOLVES SURROU 
NDED THEIR DOG AND ATE HIM. ANOTHER TIME NORA BROKL:; ALL HER RIBS AND I FLEW 
HER OUT 'ro CATCH THE WIEN PLANE. THE BRIGHT SUNNY ALPINE MEADOWS, SET AT·10NG 
BLUE ICY PEAKS OF THE BROOKS RANGE, FRAf1ED BY AN AZUR BLUE SKY, REPRESENTS 
MANKINDS LAST PRISTINE PRIMITIVE UNCONTAMINATED AREA ON 'l'HE EARTH . THE TANGY 
ARCTIC Alfi rs REFRESHING TO BREATHE, AND THE PURE ICE WA TER DELICIOUS TO 
DRINK. THE SILENCE OF THE BUSH IS BROKEN ONLY BY THE WI ND , THE CRACK OF ICF., 
BUBBLil~G WATER, AND THE SWISH OF A ZOOMING PLOCK OF PTARr.IGAN . 
GOVERNOR HAMMo~:n . SHALL YOU AND I ALLOW THE COMMEHCIALIZATI CN AND DESTRUCTI ON 
OF THE LAST CLfo:AN , PURE , UNCONTAM INATED AND BEAUTIFUL WILDERNESS ON THE: EAR TH'? 
DOES A GUIDE t-,rr;ED TWO MILLION ACRES PRIVATE EGA? I N 'I1IE ARCTIC WILDLIFE REFUGE 
OR ANY PART OF THE BROOK~ RANGE? IN THE NATIVES LAST GOOD SUBSISTANCE HUNTING 
AREA? WERE THE NATIVES IN KAKTOVIK, BARROW AND KOTZEBUE CONSULTED AND OFFERED 
PRIVATE EGA?OH WERE THEY IGNORED LIKE ART FIELDS? 
BIG HONCHO AD FG SHOULD GE'l' OFF HIS CHAIR IN JUNEAU, ASCE!tTA I N THE FACTS , AND 
NOT LET THE J AY. HM~OND ADMINISTRATION BE LULLED INTO SUCE A~ ALASKA WATF.RGA'T'P. 
THAT THE FEDS /·.GAIN NEED 1'0 EVALUATE OUR FAILURES AND ASS I ST US IN ALA~iKAWJTr; 

FlJRTHER FEDERP.I FIFTEEN YEAR MOHATOR IUMS . 
WITH M~ BES'I' '.·iISHE~ TO YOU , ALL ALASK.t1.NS , AffD ALL A Mt;';"f Jr' fl .. ~. 

YARD . m· s~\ ~ ~· 
BOX 51.53, 
NOR . , l...S , AL/1SKA 9970 5 
PHOi~E t 907 488 6653 ANYTIME 



THE .TECHNICALI.TY OF~ A .l. NOVEMBER, !cl976, CUT OPP DATE FOR ALA.SICA. GUIDES F.ILING .POil. EXCWSIVE 
GUIDE: AREAS (SE'l'. BY GLGCB):..COtJLD_BE.::XNSIGNIBI~l!l::..Vn:w .OF_.:O:GL5CBSJ'AILuRE TO ASSURE_ • 
TlmMSELVES THAT EVERY ALAS~<A GUIDE CONCERNED RECEIVED NOTIFICATION OF THE IMPENDING 
CUT'l'ING OF THE NORTH SLOPE, UNIT 26, AREA INTO EXCLUSIVE GUIOit«; ARP.AS. 

ON MONDAY, 13 BECEMBER, I VERBALLY AND PUBLICALLY ADVISED THE GL&CB THAT THEIR ACTION 
TAKEN ADVERSE TO AN ALASKA GUIDES PROPRIATARY INTEREST IS CONSIDERED BY SOME TO BE ILLEGAL. 

THE GL&CB COULD BEAR THE RESPONSIBILITY, COLLECTIVELY AND OR INDIVIDUALLY, FOR THE DAMAGE 
CAUSBB 'BY THEM TO A GUIDES PROPRIATARY INTEREST. 

I THINK MOST OF US APPRECIATE THE GL6iCBS LONG AND TIRESOME AND PERHAPS THANICLESS EFFORTS 
IN WHAT THEY CONSTRUE TO BE IN 'nlE BEST INTEREST OF ALASKA AND AIASKAN!). 

BUT IT WOULD BE A TRRRIBLE WASTE OF THE HARD WOlllCING, UNDERPAIB GL&CD MEMBERS TIME TO HAVE 
THEIR ACTICDNS COME TO NAUGHT BY HAVING THE ALASKA EOURTS RULE THEIR ACTIONS ILLEGAL. 

MY SINCERE THANKS TO ALL FOR YOUR BEST EFFORTS POR A BE'ITER ALASKA FOR ~ ALASKANS . 

w a,J_t,\ ff\ ~'1U#\., 
HARDY MAav:6i1sMITH 

I 

ARCTIC ALASKA AIRGUIDE 
A.LASKA PILOT 23 YEARS . 
BOX 5153, 
NORTH POLE, ALASKA 997 05 

PHONE: 907 488 6653 

'-, 
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· ~ i~rs~Em~NGI ~ eqQLPig,iir~01~~'\;;o .. :!':-... lt~ ~~~B~~~~:"'. ~, ~-~.:r · ~.. . ~1,~ ·. Jf._~1l·. ~ . · "'~ 
Cb?G·~~ SET M10NG TREDHl!IBS, MOl:JW~lRS, · smBgS, ·r'~NJlr e>am;NS~G!~~.~ .. . 

to-iiRON'hfER' CONFRONTATION· ~BETWEEN ·AN OLD 'm';lm> I .fliTTI'.Jr .Gm rdtf HER'lloMES'I'!ADl:N . 
'tAM.fLY, ON HIS DECEASFJ> PIBmRS ·uND.m om MANS HSEN:..BNT SOmtENS WHEN 
~TIJI!!~ LiTTLE GtRt AND .HE'il MbTHEB .. SAVE HIS LI~. ¥ou~ RElD T!E(·S ONE .AGAIN{ • . ._ • 
THEgN WHO DECLARED• WAR ON RUSSl!llN ·ANC:IENT mlJTS GUN BA!l'TUE W!ITH A RUSS·I ·Alf 
SU!MiRINE IN ALASki WATERS. f[i. MIGHT NOT· BE~" kLL FICTION. • , 
!!RBBE 'CAN WE Ge1AN .ALASKA flLOT IS VAPORIZED· TOGETHER wrm A' H!RD OP AMSXA . 
rnlBOU IN' A NUCLEAR HOLOC.AiJS'l!.· NOT ALI; THAT FAR . riroHED, ITS POSSIBLE. • ' 
POINT OP' VIEWa AN ESKIMO HUNTER IN DIRE NEED OP POOD STilKs·" A CARIBOU HERD UNTI i 

A P.Lid tOAD OF TOURISTS STAMPEEI) THEM. ALL THE ES~DJO HUN!l'ER GETS FOR BIS· 
tONG 'HUNGRY HUNT IS AN EMPTY GUN AND AN EMPTY STOMACH. 
GR'.AND RIDE INTO TOMORROW1 A CHEECACKO SNOMACHINE OPERATOR .RIDES 1'0 .ffIS :DOOM.SIN 
THE FnOZEN ,ARCTIC WILDERNESS WHEN . HIS GAS LINE DEVELOPS A LEAK. 
COMING OF AGE a A COMING OF AGE HUNT IN ALASKA FOR HIS SON, THE PA'mER LETS A 
A WOUNDED BEA1t DIE SLOWLY RATHER THAN LET HIS SON "WASTE A SECOND BULLE1r" • · 
BUT TRE FATHER BECOMES EDUCATED WHEN HIS SONS"SECOND BULLET" SAVES THE FATHER 
FROM ANOTHER BEAB THE FATHER ONLY WOUNDED. MAY GENERATE ANTI HUNTER SENTIMENT. 
JOE TEBENKOFS GUNBOATa CHUCK KEIM BRINGS TO REAL LIFE TODAYS REAL ALASKA WAR 
OF SHOOTIN~ AGAINST FOREIGN VESSELS INTRUDING IN ALASKA FISHING WATERS . WHEN 
" OFFICIALS' .FAIL TO ACT, AN OLD ALEUT TAKES EFFECTIVE 'ACTION .TO FROTECTflIS -
VILLAGES FISHING WATERS WITH A CANNON MOUNTED ON HIS BOAT. 
CITY FOLK 1 AN INDIAN GIRL LOOKS ASKANCE AT A PROPOSED OIL PIPELINE, .. VETOES IT, 
AND RECOMMENDS MONEY TO REHABILITATE CITY FOLK FOR A RETURN TO THE BUSH . 
TO HELP CELEBRATE CHRISTMASa 'nm TRUCK DRIVER SPILLS A LOAD OF TOYS DESTINED 
FOR A REMOTE NATIVE VI LLAGE. BUT HE FINDS THE VI LLAGE NORALE HI GH BEC·AUSE OF 
THEIR NEW VILLAGE, WITH NEW HOMES, CHURCH, ROADS, ECT . XMAS CAROLS ABOUND. 
RED AND WHITE OU'I OF THE BLUE r AN OUTSIDE HUNTER AND HIS ALASKA GUIDES CHASE A 
BEAR UNTIL I'l' VOMITS, THEN SHOOT THE BEAR ONI.JY TO WOUND I T SO THEY CAN GET A 
PICTURE OF A LIVE GEAR BARI NG I TS TEETH. THEN THEY CUT OUT THE BEARS TONG UE 
FOR A BETTER PICTURE YET . THIS STORY MAY DISMAY THE READER, AND PERHAPS 
GENERATE SOME SENTHiENT AGAINST ALASKA GUIDES AND HUNTER S . 
UNDER THE SKIN1 ALASKANS OF AFRICAN, ESKIMO, AND CAUCASIAN DESCENT STRIVE 
TO 1'UTIGATc THE CAUCASIANS FAUX PAS IN WRECKING AN AIR CUSHION MACHINE. THE 
THE BROKEN LEGGED CAUCASIAN DRIVER LOSES SOME OF HIS PTIEJUDICE WPC:N HIS TWO 
"UNDER THE srIN" FELLOW ALASKANS PREPARE TO nEDCUE HIM FROM THE FROZEN ARCTI C. 
"CHUCK" KEIM, AL!ISK.4N, COLLE:";E PROFESSOR, CONSERVATIOIH ST, AUTHOR, AND FRIEND 
OF ALL MANKIND , HAS AN ESPECIA_L SOFT HEART FOR 'rHE UNDEi?DOG, BE IT PERSO:., 
RACE , ETHNI C GROUF , OR AN ANIMAL IN ALASKA. ALASKANA FICTI ON? NOT AT ALL. 
MANY REAL LI F::: PAR !.LLF.L~i C:XHIST I N ALASKAS CITY AND BUSH COUNTRY FOR ALL OF' 
CHUCK KEIMS ~TCR JCS . CFUCK MAKES YOU SUFFER PAIN A?ID RXPF.RIENCE JOY UNDER 
ALA~iKA SKYS' AS YOU ro:.:~!TI ?Y WITH HIS REALISTICALL y P.SLE:A VA nLE PE0PLE I', ND 
A Hft. ALS OF ALA~KAS ?'.,O~F.N HI NTERS AND FLOWERING !.iU !"EEilS . A THRILLI NG .. FUST 
READ" FOR BO T:--: CHEf.CHACKOS MID SOURDOUGHS , fillNTEm.> ANO ANTI HUNTERS . TH~ 
TOUR ! ST WOULD DO WELL 'I'O GE'l, OFF THE BEATEN TRACK AND SEE THE AL.ASK/\ THAT 
ALASKAN CP.UCK KE I M SO !~ELL CONVEYS THRU THE MEDIUl• OP WR ITING. 

BOOK REV I E'~I !?" 
HAP.DY l•iAHVIN ~ !'I'!'"~ 
A:l-.':'IC AL;..~·~;. /, I~.~ ·:r·~ 

RO>: 515.3 , 
NOR! ?. PO.wr. , ALMii\f, q97 05 
PP.OXE : ')07 l~PP 6053 ";:'crn:: . 
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ART PI·ELDS, : 
GUIDE NUMBER ONE, 
KOTZEBUE, ALASKA 

DEAR ART, 

ARCTIC ·,RASKA AIRGU IDE 
HARDY MARVIN SMITH 
BOX SlSJ, 

. NOR'IH POLE, ALASKA 99705 
15 DECEMBER, 1976 

. 
WHEN A MAN I S UP TO HI~ WAIST IN ALLIGATORS, IT REALLY DOES MY HEART GOOD 
TO HA VE A MAN, ALL ALONE, LIKE YOU , STAND UP IN A HOSTILE CROWD, AND HELP 
DEPEND OUR ALASKA HERITAGE. 

ALBERT EI STE I N ONCE SAID OF ALBERT SCHWEITZER, THE JUNGLE DOCTOR ,"THERE 
IN THIS · WICKED WORLD OF. OURS, GOES A-'GREAT .MAW~ . WELL ;--o.J. AND I THINK 
THE SAME THI NG OF YOU. YOU WERE A LONE GREAT VOICE DISSENTING THE GUIDE 
LICENSE& CONTROL BOARDS GREAT GIVEAWAY OF THc ALASKA NATIVES HUNTING AREAS 
SINCE TIME I MMEMORIAL. 

THE GL&CB WERE I LLEGALLY GI VI NG AWAY PROPERTY RIGHTS THEY DON'r OWN , AND 
THEREFORE HAD NO LEGAL RI GHT TO GIVE AWA Y, THE HUNTI NG AREAS AROUND THE 
NATI VE VI LLAGES . 

MEL COOLEY , THE MISSIONARY IN KAKTOVIK , ONCE TOLD ME TRE 40 CH I LDREN D l 
THE VI LLAGE OFTEN CAME TO SCHOOL HU NGRY WHEN THE HUNTI NG WAS BAD . SO NOW 
EVEN , MA NY FAMI LIES LI KE THE SOPLU, WI LSON ,KILLREAR, ALLAN , AKOOTCH I KS, 
BROWER , AHC I AK , TI KLUK AND MANY OTHER OLD TIME KAKTOVIK BARTER I SLAND 
FAMALI ES MA Y FJ:ND THEY NO LONGER HAVE A PLACE TO HUNT . -

ON l J DECEMDF.fl , 1976, THE GREAT GL&CB GAVE TWO MI LLION ACRES(YES , 
2 , 000 , 000 oeres , b~l1eve 1t or not)OF THE KAKTOVIK SUDS I STANCE HUNTI NG 
ARP.A , INCLUD ING ~:OST OF' 'l'YE ARCTI C NATIONAL WILPLir"E REFUGE , TO ONE 
REG I S TEREil GU I DE , NEWLY ARRIVED IN THE AnEA, TO COMMERCI ALLY EXPLOIT AND 
SELL OFF 'l:i=AtJI?~AL~ TO THE HIGH EST RICH OUTS I DE 'rAl~ IC HUNTER BI DDER . 

THE BEST KEPT SECRET OF THE YEAR MAY WELL BE TH F. GREAT GLCB GiVEAWAY . 
YOU KN OW P?:W NATIVES Kt:Ew ABOUT IT . CEnTAINLY THE LOWER 49 STATES HAD 
NOT ~:UCH TI MS 'fO STUDY TrlE PLAN AND REACT . HOW r·~ ANY NA'r I VE GU I DES WER E 
GI VEN EXCLUSI VE GU I DE AREAS (EGA ) BY THE 7 TAN IC CLCH HOARD MEMBERS? 
l\OTZEEU E , Bh!1R Oi\ , iMRTEn ISLA NO , KAKTOVIK, I· A 'i. WELL RE OJlt THE THPESHHOLO 
OF THE E/TIIWTIOi~ OF' THOUCA!illS 01" YEARS OF suB=-: JSTArJCE HUNTING, HITii 
THE r-:·!AJ. ~:0:·~ ::;u:: :: PY TH~·: HO.I\ !~ OF THE l~OTOB ~ OF ~i . o· .. j.'ACHINES AUD F!.,ANES . 

11:~ '1 I ':"E/ii.":. '•'I'. ! .. ~~(..;;~ ~ u :.I iK T!ff-: JACJ;EJ <.J ()t:'f' I oH ":m PF.RSP.V!·~Rt" I! 
r f!OT!:CTJJ:"i r: r:·:'::nss :-.. or:: 7i:£rUE A iD ALL ~ATI .' !:.. FEOPLES . THE '!'I VF. 

I ~ L '~ ~· ;L TH:'. ll/d"A '::: JS !JOi:i·; . T~!E FHOOKfi RANG!·: I S C/\~VEO UP I N EGA . 
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:;>lJ}~JECT : SCAPE WOLVES 

TO WHOM IT JV: AY CONCE·RN 

- r 

BOX 5l5J 
NORTH POLE , ALASKA 
27 JANUARY , l'.)'76 

c 1 :0.- ~ CHOP ! C}IOP I 13~NG ! BANG ! '~ANG ! ITS JUST OUR F:n~!-Wl Y FAPrn.~nY.S 
~u 11 ;;·11~ t-.ND FEA'l'H211s 1.GE :~ 1r.s , DEl'ON'3'.1'RATING Tlnn~ so:~T;;-~·c?. IN us1~ '0 
'f1' ,(PAY~RS l~ONRY TO SLAUGHTER r11HOSJ~ JO FOO'i' 'r/\lrL !"OO~'S i!: ":.TIKG UOL'IES 
,ti r; t. fN . OUR BIBLICAL .t:.NCESTERS USED GOATS /Lf\JD .tut ALTER TO LET TI!E BLOL- J 

J-'LCh' 1, •r LI'r'l1LE TAXPAYER COST , A RUSSIAN I NNOVA'l'ION , USING CHOPPERS 'I'0 
J.'H 1o~n 'TE.: POOR INPOCENT WOLF WHO IS JUST TRYI NG 'rO MA}CE A LIV I .1G !"OR Ii r·~ 
1·,' r ,•·.; l Hf) c ru r_:JR':N PUPS . BUT A BTG PUP IS CHOPP rm BA I T '1'00 , fl.NP C fl.N YOU 
'· ,.,; -~ 1'J'l\TN _j ·:x ? :-WM A ;.JH IRLEY r,r:m 1.,·w~N '11~ '~ ~xu 1• 1JJT.;;D \lor. r rs nun. 'Iw-: , 
.:;I .l\' ~J"!r. , \TD r- r•N 'L'Tl!G ~T 30 :.'ll E.J r~,R Ti('IJrl ? <..' :.;1 1-: O.! :<'I~·=~ AHD G!\::E ! . 
T 'f'!'S J' ~.t< ', ... ~R ... ! :. F' r ~.' { 1L lD r, \ ·:~ DI~? .. :n·J~f': T 'l"Q !"l.W~ OT /I. '.1 [-l··~'-:E ']'HE Y CAN 
') [ :-;·r I!. ';i IT">!! 'l' ~ ::}.'~E T v ,..~s . 

';J ~ fl TS 'l 11 W fl. ... 'fro: · t'l.1 r. 'l '30U'l'? 1 ·: ~:1 r I lN 19 61~ I fi;y BJ0 1r:1r.::!i CY :!•'.JO:D 'l'EE 0 JT y 
~iJ !· ~ C1 l '~ ·r 1t.)r·:Y':> SKY PJ1:WH .T:POR'r IN !~OR'! 'H ?OT.l.: , .'IJ.ASYA . [ :oo·· 
'[" .' .· S!1 .4LL <>UTl1?~N I l1 JT , Ol'iE A'r A TIME , AC!fOt>S 1'H ~ T/l nA! 'li RIV8i1 , 
[I'.:, 1)" fJ ON A :.:1 ', 1'1 r r. "HOZEN LAKE I AND LET 'l'HE CHif.O ~moo·r fl. BIG BU r.r. ! ' (' t is .. : . 
; i,i ; i 1 :!1J l ') ~"·: .1 ,.~t,D LOC.D UP MR MOO~~E , AND I·:A l~Y P.t1 EALI ES HAD 'HN'I'ER r: r:.'~'r , 

f ' ' / 1 :: 1·~ '"HI~ ">TG !!C'NCHO , f AifP'ANKS l"UR F fN /\ NO :"'EA"'tl"::RS 'IP.AT SC'i'!-~!"'.t\Y 
:.l. .i ?OT .. ~ r fc;l: r HAVE 25 fl. I BPT A!J":S I 4!'!D FAIH'2 1~~xs 1·'V .I r:cn ~ . 'Al ri.: l\ 

:-,:.1• l·;·,·~! !G :-: .. ·;> .t:r O!J 'f: ir: 'fA!: ~ !~A \'f\Tf!:.Y !·CCSS .l 1 1,.rr1. •f()'I , .~ 1G !:O!•)Ci!o 
!-11'1 l',! 1)'; •· .:1f':I) A •1G POtISl!.m '}·.::~;K •,-:r'l'P. !OJ. I <, 11 ·.') ,''l' ~..: ( t\ 't'OP r.~' T'P , 
J•' J' '''; 1-; 1 :·: "'·' fl.'" :~\CE r·~11R ,, ~ .. ;y c:n1 1 ~: ·r~·D All PT r,:-,1· 1\ '·1.H·;i;· , 1·~:i·'T .. r.s , ·"'·-:') 
Mn::.<; ' 1 · ·<' ~-. , 111 ··m 1 .. 1 · ·r. v·~ r ··: 1~ 1.1 .,.,, ~ '" .· .l\c'r : Pr· , .q ~ ·:· 4· ~ y rr··T~ . 1110 1 ;\ • .. · : . 

'~l'T'. iv 1 1. l•' :, '; 11 "n .~111 H~:'lt , .;:; l"i J '~ }•' •N ~t·!D :· 11: 1\ 't'H· ~·~ "tPO F~1: 1 (10~ · .. : 
•i 11 ,, , ( l • : 'l 1 o.w · um ·: \ '\ JO 'ft'"' i i.: 1 R :· oo~~ ; r 11 rnn vEr1R ) . BUT \·Ho '1'0 1)i 11. : · ;.~ 

Z'i) ~ ',\""; t ~ I. ~o ft'HJL.P. 'L'(('.~ OF FOOSE ? BUILD AP AL'I'~~R Alffi SACB IPTC F' A 01Jr1 ·:-

r, t ') r\ .'(C':~ ;fl(; ~'fil'~H ? OF COIJl1S!: ! tiE·rTE"i S'I'HJ. , r,qsNrc ~LAP 1~WOLVl~S fd 'T) 

; . : .'/ 5, ()() I). 00 'PAY.Pl\ Yt.RS MO~!~v , llHD PAY 'I'RT pr, _: F' ~ IJD ···::.·T :.•: ll·:t, ·f ~ 5 110 . n<) 
. ~~ )I, y '"0 H f'JE ArlO!J 1lD H! A T"H'l I~? 1·:s A. \i) I 00}{ 1.'01 '>, " .'~'.!PT v1:s . •rpt., r.c ll:'.'.I ~c; 

· :.t · ·:) ··prs r.-0or r i ! JL!'l:" ti • • ~~C ':.' • .. · .; ~11;; 1)'A' l I .n ·1 1J·J l!:i S! l\ t1r: 1 '!'~. liG 
(I ·r·;· ; ~n •'4 A C' 'Wl'i •'n (....i ~·~ 1 w; :1 :; •.i) . ':JS.~: JiY J ('';·•A ... ~. : '~Of ri•'W' , f',C ·~'fS , 

' ,.) i: u 1 l o n:3 op 'l'At.FAYERS 11ot r ABS , Lill r ;·m w11 L G~'I' A F ·"·! \'OLF ~~1· 1!!S AT 
; 1 r)o , ooo , oo P'rn c o? Y. KEEP i.mm< ING , Al·:Jrn lCAN TA Y. Pf\ ' '8:1 , YOU R nm r ARS 1n t.L 
i: i :-.r 'J'PS ~·10 1 F 1:-·WJ·i Yc,un ooon . 

~l rI'~ I·' ~1W'11 roo !°'l~ I t.~ n:-/\ ·~'.l JI: 'l'iF' r'0 0 , ll 'ltl ·l''l' ~l' ' C'''. .: c1L L /l. IU (1 1 ~ 
:j= .1 A" ') t .. ·r )'>O jl1 11 ·. < td! 1 <; •• r 11, ~1 1." , '!'0 c O· ·: '· :·, / .vr-: ·1·0 •>•:r,., ·~ • 
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'1·· : ··,)' Cr · :~1·0 ' 10 :1 I f'::i ···1.~ ''•l t1 f IP :: .... ,,'S! 11.•.,q Y.Jl'f.EJ 
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t\ l rlPIANE FID -A fR C.: OL LIS ION WI 'l'H A POIAn 11EAP. ? AJASl'A '1 ErAH'l tt. ;~N'r OF f"ISH 
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SUBSISTENCE HUNTING AND FISHING 

Points to consider for Fish and Game Management: 

1. To perpetuate the resource is first priority. 

There simply is not enough fish and game for 
present and future needs . 

2. Subsistence is not definable. 

We believe yo11r commi.ttec is wasting your time in 
attempting to come up with ::i <lefinition that will 
hold up . 

. ). Subsistence was a lifes tyle. 

This is ::i p~1st crn in J\lnsku. There arc prohnbly 
110 true subsistence re sidents .in J\lnska living a 
ltl O ~. s u h s i s t c n c c l i [ c s t y J c • " Su l> s i s t c n c c " i s b o i n g 
used to mean "co111111erc.int use" a nd/or "welfare " . 

ti, " SubsisLc11ce 11 Jc("i11ition shou l d not he attcmpt c<l ;!long 
e t· h 11 i c 1 i. IH' s . t 'I' h C' S t a t: ~ Co n s t i t: 11 t i o n p re v e n t: s i t ! ) 

S . <; <1111 e I aw s 111 us t he c n r o r cc d . 

E n r 0 r c c Ille n t c r r 0 J' L s a r c \\1 l' ; I k • I' LI b I i c a n d t h (' 
co u rts do nut· sup port c11ron:t' 111 u11 t· l'rforts. 

"Concerned Sport smen" 
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PROBLEMS WITH THE' GAME DEPARTMENT. 

(Department's motto seems to be: Zero Game!) 

Interior .Wild°Iife is made up of a group of six Directors and 
· 600+ sust'~ining members. Board member's Alaska residence 

ranges from 22 years to life. All are·active hunters. Three 
.are or have been guides; one is .a master guide. One is pre­
sently on the Fairbanks Advisory Committee to the Department 
of Fish and Game; one formerly served six years. Two have 
served in the legislatu~e. m.u ~ ~ ~ tA..t 1J"..-... ~. 
We recognize that some of these problems are not strictly 
Department problems. Some are legislative, but.they all 
relate to game management p~oblems. 

We believe that the removal of Commissioner Brooks paves the 
way for meaningful changes in Department policy and improve­
ment of morale within the Department. 

(Items listed here are not necessarily in order of importance.) 

* * 
1. Start managing game, not just people. 

' . 
a. Expand predator control to other areas where people depend on· .' 

moose and caribou. All of interior Alaska is a ' disaster and 
nothing is being done about it except in ZOA and the fee~le 
attempt in the northwestern arctic. 

Predator control has been very effective in 20A. Calf survival 
now excellent. 

b. Seasons and limits have been too long. Though there are sign::; 
of·over-reaction now (Forty-Mile moose closure), seasons were 
left too long and cow seasons were left in long after .the de­
cline was obvious to a ll but the department personnel. 
(EXAMJ'LE : Two moose allowed on the Nowitna as recently as 
two years ago) . 

2. Get department personnel into the field to manage by counts and 
observations not harvest tickets and tags. 

a. People don't report accurately on harvest tickets . 
. 

· b. Too much money is spent on tabula ting and computer time; re -

"Concerned S orl: men" 

.. 



sults often not .available for 12 -. 18 months. 

c. Department personnel takes vacations during hunting seasons. 
Wolf biologist Bob Stephenson took month vacation during wolf 
control operation in Unit 20 two years ago. 

Listen to the public. 

a. Interior Alaska public started warning Department of predator 
problem in fall 1967 (Fairbanks Advisory Committee meeting, 
Gene Miller home, recorded meeting. Frank Jones regional 
manager). By 1972, protests were loud and long (first edi~ion · 
Alaska Wildlife· Digest).· ·Department- didn't do anything until · 

. 1975. 

' b. Biologists do not give hunting public credit for making worth-
while observations. 

c. During most recent Game Board meeting, the Board ·adopted less 
than 5% of proposals submitted by public and Advisory Commit­
tees; 95% was Commissioner and Department suggestions. 

4. Be Teady for legal action . 

a. Takes Department and Attorney General's office too long to go 
into action when legal action needed. 

. .. 

b. For two years in a row, State should have been represented in 
Washi~gton D.C. when important cases came up between preserva­
tionists and Department of Interior. One judge said so. Alaska's 
case was not properly presented by lawyers who have never been 
here. (First case, Unit 20A; second , Northwest Arctic Caribou). 
Negligence so gross, it seems deliberate. 

c. Should fire half . dozen biologists and hire a couple good lawyers. 
Northwest arctic predator control is so screwed up between Alaska 
and Washington D.C. court that it may never be resolved . 

. 5. Little tangible results from large professional staff. 

a. AppToximately fifty professional empl oyees north of Alaska Range 
and we can't figure out what they do. Conditions couldn't he 
worse if there were none. All efforts should be directed to 
the moose problem, but they tell us tl1ey don't have time or 
money to establish count and control areas outside of 20A . . 
(We believe they are afra id of what would be revealed). 

b. Fairbanks staff very casual about work . Common to call for 
someone nnd find they aren't in until 9 or 10:00 a.m . (especial­
ly in ~intfr), or leave early . No one seems to know where or 
when anyone will appear. This has been common for .several yen rs . 

6. Department personnel should be allowed to speak out . 

a. Brooks throttled underlings s o completc.ly ~hat it took a departing 
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~mployee of the Fai~b~nks office ·to blow the whistle on tjie Unit . 
20A mess on a radio show~ t 

• 1 

It took a member of the Guide Board (Chuck Keim) to 'alert tne 
public ' about the northwest arctic cariqou problem (wasteful 
harvest by natives· and predator problem). Also to encourage 
a disgruntled and .. dedicated employee (Jim Davis)_ to stay on 
the job. and no!t quit department. . . 

Game Board members should be elected by holders of hunting and 
fishing licenses. · (Perhaps should be called "Wildlife Conserva­
ion Permit"). 

a. Would force the preservationists to contribute somet~ing in­
stead of BS to wildlife management. 

b. Public would have more say about direction board takes. 

c. Board needs a full tiJ)'le manager to c~rry out their directives 
when board is not in session. · Commissioners (who act a~ Board's 
agent) . ca:rry out studies and directives they agree witht ignore 
others, change minutes to suit themselves. 

d . Investigator Specking should talk with Ivan Thorall, former 
board member, regarding Department problems. Ivan has un­
usual ins :lght regarding fish and game problems. (Presently 
lives most of. the t~me at Chisana). 

8. Subsistence Hunting: Le gislature and Department should recognize 
that there is no longer any true subsistence hunting in Alaska; 
that a definition is not possible; and that all citizens should 
be treated equal under the U.S . Constitution in allocating avail­
able game to Alaska residents. 

9 . Enforcement: There is presently virtually no rapport or coordi11-
ation between Department personnel and enforcement agents. ···. 

a. Investigate feasibility of putting them back together again. 

b. Enforcement has bad public relations. Prosecutes 1ninor ca~~s 
to the hilt. Miss es important tl:iings. 

(EXN·l.PI.E: Fis hing without 1 icense or un taeged animal :in c.a.mp 
may net a court appearance. However, en f orcement ignoring 
present caribou take in arctic, apparently to avoid encounte~ 
with na tives. Also work diligently to catch wol f hunter s for 
feds while state in court trying to clear way for issuing 
aerial wolf hunting permits). 

c. Could Department pe rsom1el nc·t as enforcement a gen ts during 
hun ting season? Hunters seldom ever checked in field . En­
forcement people practically unknown in villages . (Except 
few where they arc stationed). 

. 
10. Department personne l moke no effort to le:.rn fro m history, know-



. ledgeable of . old~t'imer.s. There' is a lot . of worthwhile information 
in the writings of Allen, Leffinwell, Swatka, Dall and many others. 
(DEPARTMENT OPINION: None but a trained biologist has the ability 
to put observations into proper prospective). 

·11. ·under present system of submitting proposals for game law changes,. 
. the public does not.have any way of countering Department's pro-. 
·posals: (SOLUTION: Require Department to publish their proposals 
before public deadline). 

'I 
I • 

: 



IOAltD OF DlltECTOltS: 

Dr. P. I . Ha19lancf, Chalr111an 
H. C. "lud" WI ... , Trea1. 
Wlllla111 G. StrHc~•r 
aldiard A. lurley 
Wlllle111 I. Wauga111011 
Charle• l . Gray 

ALASKA D-2 CONGRESSIONAL HEARING 
Fairbanks. Alaska 

August 20, 1977 

Mr. Cheirmen. Mr. Udell, my name is Charles Gray end today I'm representing the Interior Wildlife Association. a group of 
600 conservationists, as a director and as its executive secretary. 

Wo resent the way the fedorel government Is attempting to beck out of the statehood contract, particularly In areas of lend 
evaileblUty for selection, duration of Sf!lection period. and state melll!.gement of fish and game. I won't belobor all these points be­
cause others ere sure to do so. Our concern in riainly with the latter. 

Our organization hoe o number of deep concerns over H.R. 39. Like many Alaskans. we find not oniy specific details of the 
bill objectionable. but we dislike most the general philosophy behind it. This Is o philosophy that the federal government is assumed 
to be the best manager of Aleelcn's lends. wildlife. economy end people. We see no reason why most of tho public domnin in Alaska 
should not remain. for the time being, under Bureau of Lend Menegemont control, especially et the BLM passes from e custodlel 
agency to one of mennger under the recently pa11sed Organic Act. 

In our experience with wildlife management in Alaska. the federal government hes not shown us it cares os much as we do 
for either tho wildlife or the sportsmen who live here. We've seen Congress pass tho Morine Mammals Act of 1972. in spite of oil 
professional testimony ot Congrescilonal hearings that it wos unnocossnry. This hureoucrotic blunder not only cost millions of un­
nocessory dollars. but loft Aloslcan Native hunters froo of limits which brought about an incroeso In tho harvest of tho vnry onimols 
Congress told us It wentod to protect. Did you know that the talcs of polar boars increosod under tho Act ond thnt formerly protuct­
od sows und cubs hove bocomo tho major portion of onimols token? And did you know thot tho fodorol government hod to contract 
with tho stoic fo r much of tho oxportiso to conduct tho studios required by tho Act? 

It took n low suit by our orRonimtion. ptiggl'd on n socrol £ocJornl 011rcomont to Rive nwuy 40 stoto-ownod muskoxen to tho 
Russians. In correct o long-stondln11 game mone11ement atrocity on Nunlvolc lslnnd. Fodornl inortlo nt high lovols In tho Interior Do­
pertmont wns holding up nocossary herd composition adjustment long rocommondod by Rloto nnd low-cscholon fodorn l m11111111ors. 
Our suit rurcod Interior oHiciols tG ogroo to o mnnogomont pion which ho11 rosultod in n more bolnncod hord. bolter wlnlor calf 
survlvnl, n now source of income for tho Notivo inhobltonts of tho islnnd. nnd n chnnco for sportRmon lo colloct n rnro trophy 
nnimnl. 

Moro rocontly wo'vo soon inoroosod fodornl effo rts to lntorforo with tho 11 tnto's 11tlumpt11 to corroct othor problems in tho 
wlldllfo community. Thoso toko tho form of withholdinl! wlldllfo fundH. und problems In forlorn! courts connected with such nowly 
pnssod fodornl logielntion n11 tho BLM Or11nnic Act und tho Notlonnl Envlronmontol Pollr.y Act. In ono of thoRo COllOR. 11 qunrtur 
million cnrlhuu in northwoetorn Alnskn hos boon reduced to 60.000 onlmnls und tho 11tnto hn11 boon thwnrtod 111 tholr ottompts lo 
mnnni.:o th lH h11rd upon whom 10.000 Notlvos dopoml hocnu110 of Hults po1oiod IHI fmlurnl loglalnllnn by prosnrvrillnn ~rnup11. 

Spoclflcnlly. 11 .R. 30 hothor11 uH for lhoeo ro11sons: 

Tho lllll Honornlly lncronsos tho authority of tho fodo.·nl Fish 111111 Wlldllfo Sorvlco In Alnskn. which will loud to lncru11 sln11 
cnnfllct11 with thn 11tn to ovnr Hllmu mnnogomont ond n rosulti1:g lowor offlcioncy of thnt m11111111omont. Fish uncl Wildlifo offlclnls tolcl 
Alnslcune horu Inst Mn rc:~ In n public mootin11 thnt they wore nlroudy go11rlng up lo tnko on tho ndcJltionnl rosponsibllltius thoy ox· 
puctud from lhiM CotlRto!l!I . • vu fool RlronRIY thnt no muttor whnt dJH1111sltlon 18 mndn of thu lonrl. nll fis!1 nncl 11111110 mnn1111orn11n1 
shoulcJ contlnuo to ho In tho hnnch1 of tho stole of Alnsku. oe It lms lrmllllonolly l>oon In nil tho othor slotos. 

C 11.R. 30 nlso nttomptli to nddross thu riuostion of suhi1istunco h1111til111 r i11h111. with prodir:tnbly di11mnl rmmlts. Wn 1mhmil thnt 
11hsistonco huntln11 111 not dofinoblo. Son. Slovens' bill doos not 11 ttompt to do so. oithor. Thuro nro fow. if nny. truo 11ub11istonco 
untor11 In tho stnto. A11y nltumpt lo nllocnto gumo use nlon11 otJmlc llnoii le Hurn In ond up in court. 

Suction 701 (u) sols up ro11 ionnl bonrds to mlvlso tho Socrotnry of lntorlor on s11h!li8lt co huntin11 In lho now fodornl wi th· 
drownle. Subelslonco hunting should not bo broken off from nny othor typu11 of huntln11 mnn1111um11nt. Tho lond nruos i;ovorud hy 
your proposnle nlroudy huvu udvlsory commlltooa to tho 111010 Oopnrtmont 11f Fish nntl Gnmo. nnd It woulcJ bo foolish to cronto 
morn bo11rcl11 h11mllln11 n portion of tholr concoms on tho fodornl lnvol. 

Tho stnto hns hull! 11 sy!ltom of local ndvlsory fish ond gomo con1mlttooH working with tho Do1111rtmont of F1!1h nnd Cnmu. 
with tho commlttu1111 lorl!oly frou of polltlcnl intorforoncn. Whllo tho Dop11rtmo111'11 rocorcl hnR not honn 11ttrfoct, 111111 our or111111 iw· 
lion hn11 In tho pnst boon 11 hnrRh critic of lt11 lo11clorehlp ovor cortnln lt11111011. wo fool lhnt ovun If tho stntu m1111n11omont woru to drop 
to 11 smnll frn ctlon of it11 currant porform11nco. thoy would 111111 ho hollur thnn fo<lo r11l 11111 110 mnnn11omont. A dlvi· 00 11 of rn11punRI· 
hilltlu11 botwoun tho fodor11l nnd etnto doportmonlR would ho ovon wor110. 

Suction 70t(c) limits RUbHIHtoncu ri11h tR to thoi.o uxurcl!!in111mch rl11hts boforo p11111111go nf tho Aln11lcn Nntlvo Clolm11 Sottlti­
monl Act 11 lx yonrs 11110. nntl to their doscond11nl11. Wo cll~llkn thl11 provlHion 1111111, hm:nuso it eoom11nlmo<l111 phosln8 out ono of tho 
moro trndl tlonnl nnd row11rdln11 llfostylo11 In tho North. Wo cnll your nttontlon to thn Alnsku Nntlvu Clnlrns Act. Soctlnn 4. pnrn· 
11rn11h 11. which 11tuto11thnt11borl11onnl r i1.1hts to fish nml 11nmo nro oxll1111ulshod hy thu Act. 

Wo do not foul thle Is tho proper limo to 11dtl ros11 tho com11lox 11181111 of subsh1tonco huntln11 11nd fl11hlnt1 rl11ht11. lt'H 11 touchy 
q110Rtlon wo In AlnRlcu nro only l>0glnning to wrostlo with, 1111d II Hhould not ho lumpod In with 11 gljjnntlc wildur11011H ri ropoRn l with 
onough problum11 of llR own. 

(Ovur} 



Title Six of H.R. 39 puts 146 million ac1'811 of Alaska under the National Wildemat11 Preservation System, incltiding some of 
Alaska's favorite Brooks Range and Wransell Mountains huntins areas where aircreft provide the only practical acceu. We feel 
quite stronsly·that any wilderness deslpation In Alaska should suarantee continued use of aircraft and riverboats, and should 
allow construction of r.a~ by tho&e Alaskans who have traditionally had a very small impact on these area11. 

The wildemeu which surviV88 today has lived through decades of aircraft landings, .cabin building, motorboats and dos 
sleds. Indeed, you may fly for houra without locatiq acara from.the by11one mi.nina days. (It is eomewhat of a paradox that the 
willows on old dntd,e tailinss are often the beet winter mooee range around). Alaskans annually obtain ten to fifteen million 
poundi of hish 011&qty protein from moose, caribou, Dall Sheep. mountain eoat. deer. bison and elk. The ecolosical costs of this 
production. from a relatively undisturbed and often protected habitat are minuacule when compared to similar production of beef, 
pork and poultrv In tho contermlnus statn where extenalvA use of pesticides, herbicides and petrochemicals are standard proc• 
dures and necessary adjuncts to succeuful farmins. Tiiere is no reason why your so-called protection asalnst development should 
extend all the way down to our most basic pursuits. 

In closins. Mr. Chairman, let me say that asain we find this pro~l of yours mi9hty hard to take. lt eoes asainst the grain 
of everythlns which makM Alaska l.ome for us and our families. and It lea\188 a lot of questions unanswered about who Is 9oln9 to 
restrain your asants from their own envirorunental disaster&. Your withdrawals ere too large, they affect Alaskans too deeply, 
they slve land menasement to federal asencios with dismal track records and they lie Alaska forever to an outmodod land controls 
which we should be trying to scrap, not increase. 

Thank you for your time. 

• ••••• 

Rep. Seiberling's reply to this ond similnr requests from other sportsmen's groups con be summnrlzed ns follows: The 
Native's nborigonal subsistence rights to fish end gemo were oxtinsulshed by tho Native Claims Act. but roplocod by loglslallon in 
tho Act whereby Notlvos are gunrontood subslstonco privileges on federal lands. Whon oskod how Congress con justify this in tho 
foco of other recent nntl-dlscrimlnotion ond oqu11l rights lows, ho pulled out n copy of tho U.S. Constitution and road a section 
whoro tho Congross haR tho right to make treaties with Indians. This. ho sold, waH tho bosle for extending further 11ubttlstonco 
rights to Alaslm Nntivos under ANCA. ll!iido from thu 44 million acres they will privotoly hold. 

Sovorol limos during tho hoarinR Sioberllng lndlcatod there le o 11ood chance tho state will mnlntoln control of fish ond gnmo 
011 fodornl lands (to do othorwleo, Congress would raise tho lro of oil tho woRtom lltotos'. hut with strings ottnchod. Ono 11uch 
strln11. ho soid, would bo thot tho Nntivo subsistence rights ho protoctod. 

Soiborlin11 further indicated that trnpplng would foll into tho same cotogory ns huntln11 - Notivo subsietoncn rightt1 would 
be honored first. nnd only If thoro Is n surplus would non·nntlvos be nllowed to trap or hunt on fodornl lond. llo po111lstontly Ignored 
examples pointod out to him whoroby thoro nro some white roeidonts thut livo o more suhsh1tonco livolihoo<l thnn do 11omo nutlvo 
pooplo. Ho also snid ii wos not necessary to bo nblo to dofino "subsietonco" In ordor to loglslnto It. 

While ii wns obviuus thnt Soihorlln11 Wll!I openly hostile to wltnosso!I thut did nut fnvor ho Udnll um (llR :m). und Wll ll on 
loss of 11 fn ct.findlng mlsslun thon ho was o propngtrndo sproodlng mission, it romnlns to be 8000 If ho le on firm logo I ground In hi11 
r.ontontions about Nntivo subel11tonco right11. lntorior Wildlife will bo uctivo in this 11ro11 to I.ho limit of our (fl1111nci11l) uhiUty. Non· 
notivn hunting ond tr11ppi1111 in Ah1t1k11 i11 only o hnir's 1Jro11th from extinction! 

--~---
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SUBSISTENCE 'HUNTING AND FISHING 

Points to consider for Fish and Game Management: 

1. To perpetuate the resource is first priority. 

There simply is not enough fish and game for 
presen t and f uture needs. 

2. Subsistence is not definable. 

We believe your committee is wasting your time in 
attempting to come up with a defin ition that wlll 
hold up. 

3 . Subsistence wa s a Jjfcst)'le . 

This :i.s 11 past era :in Alaska. There are prob:tbly 
no true sub sistence resident s :in Alaska living u 
1 00% s ubsistence l :i festyle. " Subsistencc 11 j s being 
usc<l to mean " co111111c .rciaJ use" and/or "welforc". 

4 . " Subsiste nce " clcfinitlon s houl d not be attempted alo ng 
c t h n .i c l l n es . (Th c S t u t c Co 11 s t .i tu t :i o n pr c v en t s i t ! ) 

S • G :1 me 1 n w s 111 us t b c en fo r cc d . 

Enforcement e f fo rt s nrc weak . Public and t he 
courts clo not support cnro1·ccme nt efforts. 

"Concerned Spor tsmen" 



Doyon Building 
First and Hall Streets 

Fairbanks, Alaska 99701 
Phone (907) 452·825 1 

Ch a irman Ande r s on and Commit t ee Membe r s , my n ame i s Samuel S. 
Demi e nti e f f . I wa s bor n at Ho ly Cross , Alaska and raised in 
Fairb anks . 

I am employ ed pres ently wi th ·the Tana n a Chiefs Conference, Inc. 
I am a f orme r member of t he Ala s ka St ate Board of Fishe ries 
I onl y s ay thi s because I f u l l y re a li ze and do not envy you in 
your job on. hoping to de f ine subs i stence f or all that a re 
conce rned. 

When I fir s t heard the word ''s ubsistence " wh ich was many yea rs 
ag o, it wa s u s ed a long wi th the phrase ".living of f of the land". 
Durin g t hose years , wh ich was du ri ng the 1940 ' s , th e r e were no t 
as many peop l e as there a r e n ow. 

Duri ng those yeaTs , y our job i n defini ng subsis t e nce would have 
bee n a lot easie r because the pionee r s we r e t he remnants of 
early mi ners un d explorers of J\h1ska t hat stayed in J\laska . 
These ea r ly ne1\lcomers to Alaska found the natives, in t h e most 
part friendly a nd .. . subsLs t ing_ off of the land . 

Many pioneers living today al.l over the state would have t o 
test.i[y t o the fuct th at the na t ive people were the n sole 
subsis t e nce users of the land whe n they go t he r e . 

Th e n a t i ve people ar e a pass.ive type peopl e to a certaj n e x te n t , 
lrn v :ing t rust in o nes wo r d . Bu t t he naUve people now n re reuJ-
i.z:i. n g tha t nll wo rds, b 11Js o r jus t ilbout :in y d e a lings wit h 
r.l.Lmos t a nyo n e now ha s to be c ar e ful! )' sc ru t ini zed . Native 
people ·in Alns ku ' s bu s h a1·cns a r c at t hi s mome nt be in g t oJ cl of 
age n c j es , pro :i e c ts , s t n t c a nd fed or n 1 g 1· o ups , a s soc i flt j on s , 
b onn l s an d commit tees t hnt a r c trying to he l p t hem, o ne wa y or 
anot her , The subsjste ncc l .ife style is a constn n t t i me 
co ns um j n g a n d con t i 11 u i n g pro c: e s s , bu t th e 11 n t i v e p e op I e n 1· e 
f Lnclin g out t hnt in o rder to Jjve with i ncrcnscd populat i on s and 
reg ula t ed lifestyles , t hnt they h nvc t o l isten nnd try to 
coo pe r ate wjth al l the nge ncles, boardg, etc. 

T th i n k I c" n s n f e l y s :i y th n t t he n n t i v e p e o p J e :.1 r c mo r e t h n n 
w j 1 J .i n g t o 1 i v c 1-.i i t h c o o pc r a t i v c 111 n n :i g e 111 e n t o f r i s h :rn d G ;:1 m e , 
Wil d llfc, Renewa ble Hesou1·ccs, h u t a r c 11 01~ co n f used by so ma ny 
d i r f c re II l (I gen c i cs t 11:1 t t :J k e c n r c 0 f the~ c . T r s LI h s i s ten c e 
cou l d be u nde r on e age ncy, t lds wou!u he l p a g reat de a l . In 



Two 

defining subsistence itself, I know that anyone here that has 
lived f or some years in Alaska knows it is the natives that lived 
the true meaning of subsistence, hunting, trapp"ing, sn.aring, 
devising any. means to get food to live and using 100% of what he 
got . 

Subsistence is a way of life that is as much alive today as 
working for wages or going into business is a way of life for 
others . You cannot come out and say "we' re go~ng· to phase ·out 
business" because it is a thing that was born so many years ago. 
The same pertains. to subsistence. It must be. prote.cted. It is 
as natural as se lf-preservation or an animal's own . instincts. . ; 

Subsistence is a natural 'heritage of traditional lifestyles 
used by any native or a reg ion or country. Traditiona l life­
sty l es encompasses ' the use of fish, game , plants, just about 
anything tha t could be captured or harvested for personal need, 
or for Alaska .. . Survival. 

I am leaving with you copies of testimonies given to other 
agencies and boards by Al Ketzler, President of the Tanana 
Chiefs and others. 

Thank you. 



13, 1977 

Do)•on fluilding 
First and llall Str~els 

Fairbanks, Alas kn 9970 I 
Phone (907) 45 2-8 25 I 

The Honora~le John Seiberling 
Chairman, House Subcommittee 
on General Oversight and 
Alaska Lands 
1225 Longworth House Office Building 
Washington, D.C. 20515 

Dear C0ngressman Seiberling, 

To substantiate ond reaffirm my testimony before your subcommittee on 
August 20, 1977 here in Fairbanks, I respectfull y submit this statement 
for the record. 

Tanana Chiefs Conference is the reco9nized triba l governing body 
representing the Alaskan natives of the Tanana Chiefs Conference 
region of Alaska . Proposed fed eral legislation in reriai·d to section 
17-d2 of the Alaska Native Claims Settlement /\ct direct ly affects the 
land and life s ty le of the people in our region, particularl y in regard 
to provisions regu lating subsistence. It is principally in this re-
spect that I 11ish to comment. 

Alaskan Motives have developed culturill skills ilncl v;ilues ba sed upon 
subsistence l·1hich have contributed to the se lf-suffici ency, self-deter­
mination, and perpetuation as a ciiltural peopl e . The definiti on of 
subsi stence should emphas iz e "traditi onal use", si nce it is this concept 
that refers toil heritage v1here available n:sou rces provide all 
materials ne<:essa ry for sustenance as 1·1ell us ce1·e111ony. One can 
s_afely say thaL traditi onal use deals with hunting nnd fishinu ski lls or 
prOl·mess 1·1hi ch have evo lved to cope vlith Al aska' s 11ilrsh environment in 
order to rnai ntili n one' s life cultu re throu~ h subs i s tence. Thus , the 
definiti on of subsi s t ence mus t bear it's trne 111eanin9: That it is vital 
to 1 i f e as \•1e 11 il s il 1 i f e style. 

To ass ure t:h.1t csr~ntial lfot ivc ri~rhts to s uhs isl.ence 11re provided i.ltid 
protecl.r.d, C:~r l.ilfo provi s ion s or proposed lcu is l;i l:ion On "<l-2" 111l1St be 
adj us tcd. EI i !Jib i l i ty rcqu i 1·c111e11 t.s of s11b s i s Lr.nee users 1·1i I 1 r CflU ire 
<1d cquil l.c 9uidc'Ji11es . ror exi1111plc, t lH~ unity of tl11 Live villugcs r.o1dd 
be se ri ous ly U1rea tc 11 ed hy tlw brevity il 11d in r.omplct:r.ncss o r present: 
guide lines . In llR 39 , S0c:tio11 70l( c ), Lile proposed s ubs istence govern-
ing boa rds SP.t 11p t:o determine subs i stence users m.Jy interpre t 
"prinmril y i111d clirer. tly dependant for the mains tay of their li vc lillood11 

ovei·l y res tri ct ivel y , res ultin~J in a divi s ion of the villa9e into users 
and non-users , and co11l d conce i Vilb ly ci·eil Le di senchan tmen l: 11mong 
villa~1es , di :.; trust , and eventual dol'mfall of vi1111qe l ea dershi p. , A 
village unit mus t rr.111rii 11 a unifi ed village unit , and not be suhj ecled 
to str ingent inc.lividunl subsislence requirements. Jn section 70l(a) 
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of HR 39 , the 111·ovision that "Secretaries of Interior and Aririculture 
may publish regulations rioverni11g subsistence users" further threatens 
villages \'lith limitation or loss of a subsistence life style . Specific 
provisions regarding subs is tence should be decided and implemented in · 
the fina l bill. with llati ve interes t s assured, rather tha n the inclusion 
of vague generalities which leave Native subsistence rights on unsure 
ground. 

lt becomes especially si gnif i cant to protect lfative culture through 
current "d-2" nroposals in light of certain policies in the State of 
Alas ka Constitution , specifically: 

f\rticle VIII, Section 3, prov ides , "Whenever occur ing i n their 
natural ~tate , fish, viildlife am' \'Jaters afe reserved to the 
peopl e for commo n use . 11 

Article 'l l J, Section 17: "Lavis and re9ulations gove rning the 
u~e vf or d isposal of natural resources shall apply equally to 
all persons . . . " 

I t \•1o uld appear that under Lhe /\ la ska n co 11st it11Li o11, t he State of /\laska 
is pm·1er less to set uD specit1 l subs i s Lence ri9hls for /\ la s lrnn ~latives. 

In r egard Lo proposed l imila lion of subsistence in r.ertain areas, 
particular ly under lhe Wildernes s /\cl classif icaLion, I would like lo 
quo te,, statement murlc by Ste\'lll l'd L. Udall in "rhe /\laskan rlativcs and 
the i r Subs istence Rights : I\ Discuss i on o f Lhe CoriSLitution Ques lions11 
1 n Ju l y- f97T:-

I L i s bPyond ii r 911111cn t t. ha L the U. S. CorHJ res c; hil s t he po\'1e r to 
set up,, resoul'ces lllil naqc111enl r erii men for thr. /\l askun Nat ives, 
and r.onfirm Lhe ir ri ght Lo subs isl on I.he p11b l ic lands of f\1askc1 
O\'lllf!d hy lhe r corle o f Lhe lln i ted Slalr.s . Conqress clerivrs ils 
a11thorily to re911 l ate "ro1m1er ce \oJi l.h thr lndi cl n tribes,'' .ind Lile 
t r~aly "'u l: inq pm·ie r nf the Pres iden t confer s s i111ilil r au thority . 
rhc feclcr.11 trus t rer.pons ibil ily over a l 1 /\111cri cilll l ncliar~s has 
evu lved out. of the exerc ise of these ConsLILutionil l 1>0\•1ers . .. 

!> ince I.he Con.1rr>ss has plpnary ,111 1. hori ty Lo r eriu lc1 Lc "co111111c r cr. with " 
Lhe Indi an t r ibes . il shoul d have pl e11i11·y 11uLlioriLy Lo prnLec L Lhc 
/\la ska 1111.i l ivr C11 lt11rcs , whi c: h re ly so hl'!11v i ly on c:.11hc; i str.nce for 
r111lur,, l c; 111 v iv.11. l h<!l'c l ot·rJ , ~ ut)c; ic;t p 11rr "ihoul d llP IH' r111ittcd 011 ill l 
nJ Li 0 1i.11 1 c111ds , i ITl' ~pcc Li vc of 11a Li 011il 1 des i y11i1t. i011 or c: 1 ass i r i tel Li 011 . 

/\"surilnr l' th.ii rP i.0111-rr pnp111.1lion c; wi 11 ntiL hi' drplf'lrd i!i cs,. ential. 
/\ rcd11r t io11 111 .w.1il.1hi l i1 y o l ,, s11bsi 'll1Jncf.' rC' ) nur c:<' Lo a /l;i tivc vi ll l1qc 
would se ri ous ly l imit 1111' i; l' lf- s11ff ic icncv of ,, IH>OP lt• \·1ho depend on 
l it.LlC' Pl Se . lhP. o ld ploy of 111ovi11q the vi l l i'lCJI" lo tdl C? cldVilll l M}C nf 
suffi c ir nL qa111e nop11l a Lit1 11c-. l e; 110 lon91• r poss ih lc rlur Lo s11rro11nclinq 
ho1111Cla r1 r e; of t1 cl .i ;i cc11 1 1 ,111dcl\'111e re; inc I ud i ng n11 t i ono I , c; 1. ,1 L'-' , rC'CJ i onil I 
1'l 11d nr.i ~ hbori rHl vi ll .it1 t1 m•mr r ship. lhc vi lli19e must rrmain \'Ii thin iLs 

--- -------
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afforded boundaries and harvest resource!; in a limited area. The taking 
of game and fish by outside interests in adja~ent public land could 

· seriously deplete the reserve of animal resources; especially in reali­
zation of additional loss due to extreme climatic conditions which 
periodically cause population declines. Harvest of wild game by sport 
hunters in lands adjacent to vi l lage selection must be closely suoer­
vised and limited. Sport hunting on Mative lands must be orohibited to 
non-owners. 

To assure equitability and continuity of regulations governing wildlife 
populations and harvests, a single agency should be resoonsible for all 
phases of \'lildlife management. It is preferable this agency be at the 
federal l eve l , or at the least , be a joint federa l-s tate organization, 
t1nd nrovide full control over all Alaskan l ands. This would assure 
consideration of all interests. 

Finally, Mr. Chairman, I would like to ilddress the economic vi ev1pi.;i11t 
toward subsistence. For most llative Alaskans, subsistence hunti.1g and 
fishing i s a vital source of livelihood Economic analysis shows that 
in most s11111l l Alilskan villages, there · re limited sources of cash income 
and there is li ttle foreseeab le prosoec l that this situation will change 
significan t ly according Lo the Federal-Stale I.and Use Planning Comm ission. 

Uesides r.conom ic conside ra t ions, food ga lhcr ing, i . e. huntinri, fi shing, 
picking greens or berries involves Li rnc and work. If subsistence is 
les sened, i t will increase idl eness and depending on other sources 
(nolubly sta te ilnd federal progril111s). This defcaLs the federal policy 
of sclf- deLerrnination and contr ibutes to creat ing a \·lclfare state. 

I s ince1-e ly hnpc you will Lilkc cons idera lio11 of my comments in the firrnl 
subs i stenc0. provision in the ''cl- 2" iss ue . I ilpprcc iate thi s opno rtunily 
or rerresenLing the llalivc /\ laskiln s in t.hc lanana Chiefs Conference 
Hc!]i0 11 . 

RcspecLful ly , 

11\111\lll\ Cllt [FS co11rrnEllCE, l llC. 

/\1 f r~d IL t:clz lcr 
Jlrc~ i clc nl 

/\IH~/ s l'h 

cc: Senat or Mi kc ll1·,wc I 
Scn.1 Ln r I eel ~ Le v e n s 
Congrcs sn11111 Don Yo 11rHJ 



~XOPo3al Concerns: 
GAME DIVI.SIOM I 

SPORT F~SH DI'IISION 
COHl-IERCIAL FISH DIVISIOH 

ReguJ.ation book page No. 

S·-AAC (Alaska Administrative Code) No. : 

Objective: Ad'1 new requlation ,, c 

Delete regulation.- Y -----·----
Amend exi~Unq regulation 

J\rea(s) affected• Y b {!_, ----

Suggested wordin9 (append if lengthy) 

S~mitted by: 

.1'4<.1~$ ~$tt . .L1 Ir P./&;4/ , 
/a3J 4~C/;; · "sr,: · ~ 
fJ/rc./;l7ltfs: ;JM~t ·77; 0'/ 
Ren re sen tir.q: I 
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Proposal Concerns: · 
GAME DIVISION 
SPORT FISH ,DIVISION· 
COMMERCIAL FISH DIVISION --

5-AAC (Alaska Administrative Code) No . : 

Objective: A~d new regulation ----­
Delete regulation 
Amend existing re-g-ul-a-tio-n--7--.,.--

Submitted by: ,·.,,, .. ,,,..k"'" 

}ltJ.s 1 S& . .11/v e lro ,J 

t,3 I tJD '{~ S:f · 
/:itiib:tl (~ /f L,tS/(',f- · 

Representir/g,: . 

/Jzr&£ S&i1vef£c,J 
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ENVlRONMENT /'\L CENTER 
J 1-i!>;j 1'11 •llccr Way 

Fairlia11k'>, :\l.1~k11 !J!JiOI 
(!107) liH .. ) (SStl 

Hearing on 

International Whaling Commission ' s Deletion of Native Exemption 
for the Subsistence Harvest of Bowhead Wha l es . 

September 12 , 1977 Barrow, Al aska 

Testimony by 

George J'l.n tz 

I ntroduct i on 

~y nnmo is Oeorao Motz . I am tho executive director fo r the Foi r­
bonl< s Environmc ntA l Center. Tho Center is a non-profit orgonizotion 
dcd lcnted to tho orotection of the Alos kr n environment and treditionnl 
lifo~t,yles through education nnd ectlon. \lie havo about 250 mCJ111 bers , 
most who roside in the into:•ior of J\loslrn . 

Canto r Pollcios 

noforo commenting on the DEHi , I woul d lil<e to describe o few Center 
volicies relevant to this i ssue. 

The Canter helioves thn t protection of Alo3ke ' s treditioncl lifestyles , 
b'oth Nativ e nn d non -Nntive, con be cons i stent with pro tecting /\loslw ' s 
mu gnificont., onvironmont. Alt.hough there a1•0 numerous li fe~ tyles which 
ma y bo c ons .1 dcro d u1·nd:1tlo11al t o J\l11sl<H1 Notl ve ~ubsiJtoncc cultu1•os 
C\1"0 cortnlnly !1orno or tho mo ro .l:npci r tn nt ( /\ttO(!!Jmont r I HUl"Al NO'l.S -

l o t Co1• ) • Suh a Is t: o n~o 1~ v j. tu 11 y do µond o n t 011 v j u ble und r>roduc ti vo 
e cos yotems. 11' sut.i r; l s tcn ce pr act ic es llbuoo thoso ocosyscc:rn:; , tho 
viub111ty of uubs i stonco is 0 1110 ubunocl . 'rhose who l~ !'e c o:nmittod to a 
subuiatonco ll.fo2t~· l~ know tliis . 

' (foli'·wu11 l u Ill<' tl n :lit:' 



Regarding the taking of fish and wildlife, the Center supports giving 
the s~bsistence user preference over other consumptive users. Other 
consumptive users, such es sport hunters Rnd commercial whalers, have 
more options available for an economic livelihood. Also, they tend 
not to have cultural bonds to hunting or fishing and to be more re­
source-intensive in their pursuits. 

Our Position 

We have carefully read the draf t EIS, several other documents, talked 
to a number of agency people, and I have come to Barrow a few days be­
fore the hearing in order to get a firet hand account of the Inupiat 
attitudes. Our conclusion is that, although we agree with the concerns 
for the bowhead whale as expressed by the IWC, we cannot accept t heir 
resolution to prohibit subsistence taking by Alaska's Eskimos. In 
fa.ct, we consider their resolution to be c ounter-productive to their 
goals to protect the bowheed. Also, we view the resolution as being 
capricious and excessive. 

Since we have only two options to consider in this i ssue , to object or 
not to object, the Center has no alternative but to urge our delegate 
to tha IWC to object to their resolution to delete the Native exemp tion 
for the subsistence harvest oi' bowhead whales. But tal<ing this position 
mandatos that the federal government seriously and effectively r•es pond 
to I'!'.'C question~ r•p !?'.nrdirt: the st~t:..:.: ~f th.:; t,.:; ·,·,· ~;,.;,o.J wiic..1l1~ . J\l:50 1 ~ne 

Inupiat must ~~1·iously and effectively impose self-regulation to insure 
that their harvest allows for a sustained r ecruitment of bowhced whales. 
These two act ions are conditional to our position. We are confident, 
however, thot each can be a chie ved expeditiously. After many talks 
with whalers during the past few days, I am especia lly confident thet 
tho Inupint arc very concerned~ have a good understanding of the issue, 
and will effectively respond. 

Reasons 

We would like to present smne detailod reasons which support the po­
sit ion just sta tod. Theso a re as follows: 

1. Tho IWC resolu tion to prohibit a subslstonce horvost of the bowhead 
whalo elitninc t;es n number of intermodla te and log ica l optionn . It 
npponrs a!.l if tho IWC is s nying t r.at protoction of the bowhood stock 
nnd sulrnlstence cultlll"o is mutually exc lus lve. VJo find this copriclous 
und canno t. uccept thHt a choico must be me.de between tho two. Only n 
precursory or one - sided vi ow of' tho situotion could leod to such e con ­
clusion. If anything , the wholo and subslstenr.e o.re mutuolly dopenden t. 

2 . 'l'he intent oi' Lho I nternu tlonul Convon ti on for the ne gula ti on 01' 
Whaling 1 s to l'eg11 lv to com mo i•cl al wh3 l ing . . In nddres sing sub~ is ton co 
whalinrr , tho I 'i'.1C ha ::i oxcoo dod thoil• nu thurlt.y. N : ~ vnly is t, r~lu exccsslve 
but it l! onflicts with tht' u.s. Const ltu·tion. our Contt t itu tl on provides 
llnt: . o Amorlcnns ( lncludlng Eukimon ) with n fode:-nl tru n t respon -
tJ~blllty. 'l'his.tru~t ?:"esoon" ~Q.ilit'V orot- 'lcH.R Hllbuistence rights. 



Since no valid treaty can contradict or compromise the U.S. Constitution, 
on this basis a lone, the ·u.s. delegate has no alternative but object 
their resolution. Attachment II, pR'rt of a study entitled 11 Legel 
Issues in Federal Protection for Subsistence on the Proposed National 
Interest Lands '', authored by Dennis Kelso a~d assisted by both the 
Fairbanks Environmental Center and Friends of the Earth, supports this 
s ta temen t. 

) •• The crux of the issue is whether or not the recovery of the bowhead 
popule ti on is endangered. Informs tion in the DEIS, and opinions of' t.he 
whalers, in dice te tho t for many years the bowhead stock has been s :l r1 r1 l y 
recovering from earlier commercial exploitation. However, a recent 
increase in the number of whaling crews, with a greater number of whales 
struck and killed but lost, may jeopordize the recruitment of the bow­
heed. 9ut the solution to such a problem is not to set a zero quota. 
Not only is this an excessive and ur.preccdented action, but it is 
counter-productive. 

A zero quotR forecloses a much needed opportunity to develop a bowl1ead 
whale mano qement plan which will insure that the stock r ecovers, that 
the habitat is protected, and that a rescnable subsistence harvest 
continues. 

Without a subsistence harvest, tncre will be insuffecient iacentives to 
obtain baseline data regarding the bowhend and its habitat. Then, we 
sub~it, the gtea te st threat to the bowhead wi~l be oil and gas explor­
~ti c~ en~ tl.::·.;.:il.vr,iiltinL lrl Li1t .Jn·ctio Oceen. ~.' hen, p.~. with the ca:'ibou , 
we will one day find that despite the assurances of the oil companies, 
that the in tegrity of the bowhend habitot has been severely damaged 
and its populat ions headed in to a long-term decline. 

In regards to developing o sophisticated management plan for the bow­
head whale, I have had an opportunity this weekend to review on ex­
cellent proposal written by tho Inupiat which would provide much of the 
baseline data that is needed to pro te ct the bowhe8d. This proposal re ­
lies on a mix of whalers knowled ge and soohisticoted technology for 
data ga thering. The Inupiat are so committed to this gool that the 
Arctic Slope Re rri onnl Corporation stockholdors have agreed to have 
their 1976 dividends , which exceeds $300 ,000 , devoted entirely to help 
pay for this study . To me, this indica tes t.ho t the Inupiot are very 
sincere in ottemptlng to find rosonable onswers to problems that do 
exist. 

4. Tho Center contends thot the IWC resolution contradicts the carter 
Adml nistrotlon's National EnerBY Plan. Subsis~enco lifes tyl es, as ony 
life ~ t.vlc, :-squires the co11:uinption of energy to 2urvive. Howevor, 
subsintenco i ~ a low - cntropy ~ Ufestyle ond more consistent with the 
HO~lu of tho Nationa l !-;nergy Plon then any other t hnt ls occoptable 
to tho3c wh o live 1t. If subolstcnce activit i es urc prohlblted, more 
onergy - intensivo substitutes must be provided. Food which is procos~ e d, 
pacl<ofrnd, and s~: ip pcd to /\retie v ilh1gc consumtH'S require~ much more 
energy thun village efforts Lo bo solf-nufticient vla,subslstonce. 

~·o bo consi s tent. with tho Natlonfll Enorr~ Y Plnri, it seems thnt tho U.S. 
should be oncourogin , not restricting , s ubsl:;t enco. Of tho 10 principles 
tif tho Nat ! onu~ Enor.ry PJon , tho followl11g ere rolovont to protecti ng 
nubsistonco cu~turo s: 



• The U.S. must reduce 1tn vulnerability to potentially devastating 
~upply interruptions { self-suff1i1 ency _). 

• The c orners tone of the Nat i ona l Energy Policy is tha t the growth of 
energy demand must be refrained through conservation and improved 
energy efficiency { lbw-entropy lifestyle ). 

• Both energy producers and consumers are entitled t o reasonable 
certainty es to government policy ( IWC re solution is especinll' 
pertinent to this principle ). 

• The u se of nonconventi onal sources of energy must be vigorously 
expanded ( decentralized~ self- sufficient lifestyles such as sub­
s ts tence ) • 

It . ~ould be contradicting the National Energy Policy for the U.S. 
not to object to the IWC decision. 

Recommendations 

In addition to object ing to the IWC resolution , we urge the federal 
government to provide funds for the propos al bei ng submitted by the 
Inup1at. 

Also, we encourarze t:hfl state of l\1P. s k~ to devctc ~ pc:·t!..::;;i vf LlJ1:1 
Por:nnncnt Pu::1C t o 'uu·u i1ead wha l e s tud!ies. The J>ennanent l"ur1d i s to 
be used f or the development of rcneweble resource s which of~er an 
acceptable return. \Ve tLink both Cl'i t erio can be met whor. use d for· 
bowhead whol e studies, particularily whe n social costs Are factored 
in to the return equation . 

We tha nk you for this opportunity. We are appreciative that you 
have come to Alosk ~ to ~oceive publ ic input to th is decision which 
is so very 1mportont to the Arctic and its people. 
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A PROPOSAL FOR THE REGULATION OF FI~HING, HUNTING AND TRAPPING 
AND IM?ROVED COOPERAT.ION AMONG L..\ND MANAGu·tI;NT GROUPS IN ALASKA 
WITH FEDERALt STATE AND PRIV..\TE PARTICIPAT~ON 

INTRODUCTIO?l 

b7 

~ nerb~t R, Melchior 
SR Box 20140 
Fairbanks, AlaGka 99701 ·-·· 

The ma~or goals or this proposal are: (l) to deYelop a mechanism 

that assures State man~gcment ot 1te fish and wildlife resources 

( except tor migratory birds, etc. already under federal regulation) 

while (2) proTiding !or a balance of Federal, State and private 

interests in the regulation or fishing, hunting and trapping so that 

indiYidual, State, and national intcrcot6 arc taken into account 

in·;the decision nsaking procoss that allocatco these re sources and 

(3) provide a mechanism to incroaso tho level of cooperation among 

land ( habitnt ) management groups without eroding the basic manage­

ment xeeponeibilitics of the groupuo ( i . c o, agcncioe, native cor­

porntione and priYatc l and owners will ~anage their l and but under 

scrutiny and suh joct to puhlio prcosure to do eo in a manner that 

does not do violence to fioh and wildlife habitat. Since, in gen­

eral, healthy hnbitato caacntially eq,al healthy environmental con­

ditions • tho procoos, if it worko, will help keep all of AlaGka 

· in an environmentally healthy .condition.) 

THE PROPOSAL 
(i\\ 

I The State will designate up to 12 FiGht Wildlife nnd Hubitnt 
,\ 

Regiono. The goographic boundarioo of cnch r egion will bo hosed 

upon ecological criteria that may include but are not limited to 

the following: climatic pattcrno. natural lundco apo fe ntureo nucb 

ae d~ninugoo, nhorelinco, and mounlnin divideu; natural veget ation 

t1pos; 'patterno of nnimul speciou diotribution and movemento; ~ypoe 

and patterns of humun r enewable rooource uoe. 

Tho State urn1 ohunge tho boundnrieo of tho Fioh, Wildlife and 

Habitat R~gion3 r~om timo to timo no conditions chungft providud 
I 't • 

that eoologicul critoriu aro uoed to juotify tho changoo und p1•oyidod 

.. ·-. 



REGIONAL 
BOA HD 
FUNCTIONS 

t • 

that the with the Seoretar1 and bold · public mefttinge 

in the areao atrected b1 the propoead cha.ngen to adviee the public 

on the reaeono tor the chango and receive public comment on the 

propoeod chnnges. · 
(l) . . 

(b) A Fiah, Wildlife- and Habitat Board will bo cGtabliuned tor .. 
each Region. Each Regional Finh, \'/ildlite and llabitat Board will be 

comprioed ot representntiTf190f Federal and State Agencies, Native 

"Village and Regional Corporations and private citizens who are per-. . . . 
manent residents of the regions as follows: one representative !rom 

each Federal land management agency that manages land within the 

Region, appointt: (i by the Secretary of the appropriate departz:icnt or 

hie designeei one reproaenta.tive from the Alaolta Department of Fitsh 

and Grune and one rcprcr;entative from the Alaska Departm1?nt o! Natural 

Resources, each appointed by the appropriate Commiseiont~r or his 

deoignec; one rcpreGent ntive from each Native Regional Gorpor11tion 

with:..fi2~B8J&l~nland within the region, appointed byotho ?resident of 

the corporation or hio deigncc; two rcpro sontatiYoa from Native Village 

Corportltiono with corporation land within the Hogion elected by the 

Presldcnto of tho VillaGe Coporntions;nnd four citiz~no-at-largc who 

are permanent r'!cidento of the Region and who are not er:1ployed by 

a Federal or Stntc land mnnur,cment agency or by a Villngc or Re~ionnl 

Corporation, dppointod by tho Governor of tho Gtato ouch that two 

of tho oitize~-at-lurge reprcoontntiYco shall bo from a city, village 

or other political oubdividion whooe total population iR lcoo than 

ono half of that of the largoGt city or villugc within the Rogion 

and tho other two citizon- at- lur~c roprcoentativeo ohull be from 

a city, villn~o , or politic al oub<livioion \th one totnl population io 

greater than one hult that ot tho lurgeot city or •illnee within the 

Region. 

(COMMi::NT: Tho rationale for thio oompooition iG to inGure input from ) 
[and huvu tho pcropcctive ot different oectoru of ,;oc~y without ) 
[eotnbliohing a bourd thnt could bo oouily dominatnd by an7 ono ~ootor.) 

(2)(A) Rcgionnl Fi.oh, Wildlife crntl Hnuitnt Boardv uhnll rcTicw 

hunting, finhing, and trapping rogulntiono recommended !or their Region 

by tho Aluokn DoP,.~rtmcnt o! Fioh and Oruno i make modificntiono or thcne , 
recoDUDendutiono ou docmod ncoououry1 adopt regulutiono and trnnomit 

thono odopt1d rogulutiono to tho fitut• Jo'ioh 1 Wildli!o ond Jlubitl,t Bonrd • 

... .... . -
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. 
(B) Regional Boards shall reTiew land managoment policioa 

and practices within thoir region as these relate to fish and wild· 
shall lite habit~t. Regional Boards ••1 recommend changes in these policieo 

or practices it the Board tinde that continuation ot these pol.icioa 

or practives aro likely to jeopardize ~ildlife habitat or po~ulations. 

Furthermore, Regional Boards may recommend the establishment of 

cooperative agreements between land management agenciec, corporations 

or private landowners it the Board finds that such agreements are 

likely to protoct or enhance wildlito habitat or populations. Regional 

Boards shall transmit their recommendations on land management policies 

and practices and cooperative agreements to the State Fish, Wildlife 

and Habitat Board and to the appropriate agencies . ._ corporations and 

landownera that might bo nf fected by the recommendationo. 

(O) Regional Doo.rdB, or authorized subcommittees or membcero, 

may bold hearings, take testimony, receive evidence, or seek information 

needed to carry out the functiono of this scctiono 

(D) Each depa~tment or agency of the State or Federal GoTern­

mentn having juriod~ction over lando within ~K Region arc authorizod 

and directed to !urniah to the nccional Board , upon requcot, such 

information as the Bonrd docmo neccsoary to carry out its func tion9. 

(3) Ea.ch Regional Fish, Vlildlifc and H£\bit.at Board 1shnll elect 

from among ito mcmbcro, a rcprenontutive to the State Fiah, Wildlife 

and Habitat Board. 
t\) 

(c) 'l'hc Stntc Fiuh, Wildlife, und Habitat Board will he com­
/\ 

priiaod of one rcprcoontntivc from each Regional Fioh, Wildlife o.nd 

Hubitut Bonrd. 

(2) Tho State Dourd 6hull haYc the power to -

(A) uppoint and fix compcnnation of uuch ntaff uo it dooms 

noconoary to carry out ito funotiono 

(D) procure temporary and into rmi t tent oorviccu 

(C) hold hearinrro, toJco tc atj mony, or rccei vo c·vidence 

nooded to carry out ito functions 

(3) Each Aophrtmont or ngoncy,of tho Stato or FedcrBl Oovorn-
' 

mento huving j~rindiction oyer lando within tho Sta.to or hoYing munuuo• 

mont oYe r fioh • wil'dli!o populut iono nro 1t\hurizod und directed to 

. turnich to tho ::aute Donrd, upon roqueut, ouch information no tho 

. . - .--
. . -- ... . 



Board deoms necessary to carrJ out ita functions. 

(lt) Tbe State Fish, \'lildlite and Habit!lt Board ohall -

(A) reTiew the hunting, fi~hing and trapping rcgulationa 

recommended by ,each -~egional Board and shall udopt and Rrom-

ulgate theeo rgulatione unleso. atter review, the State Boord finds 

that such adoption might lead to unacceptable depletion or degradation a 
of a reeoureo within ~ks: Region, within ndjnce~t R!!_gions or in 

the State as a whole. It regulations recommended by a Regional Board 

are not adopted as presented to the State Board, it may mako ch3_ngee 

in the regualtione before adopting and promulgating such regulationo. 

(B) review tho recommendations of Regional Boards rel~ting 

to land management policies and practices affecting fiGh and wildlife 

habitat, may make recommendations of their own, and shall transmit, 

at least once a year, all recommcndationo , inculding oeriou~ly 

considered nlternatiYes, to the hoads or the appropriate land manage­

ment aGencieo,mz copporatione or private landownerG as appropriate, 

to other authorities ae they deem ncoess~ry anrl ta and mako/n~hi~ablc 
to the public in the form of an Annual Report. 

GENERAL COMMENTS 

(1) Thia proposal is based upon the following asGuaptiono: 

(a) }~sh and ~ildlife populationn are inGcparablc fr ee their 

h.:ibitnto, the refore honlthy habitats arc eoocntiul f or healthy 

populations. ( Thio is oo obviouo thnt it ohouldn't ha ve to bo 

mentioned, yet evidence from hcaringu, newopapor nrticlos etc. 

indicat e many people still don •t undcrot und or wioh to ackno·:1ledete 

thio printiplo). 

(b) Healthy habitato alone do not insure honllhy populutions, 

no carefully conoi<lored control ot harvcoting io ncccosary. 

(a) Healthy habitato und caroful r egulation of hnrveotn aloo 

do not inoure healthy populntione but theso arc tho two major 

tactoro umcnablo to human influence. 

,..., 

. ,,...,.._ .. . .... _.,.,._ ....., ___ . ,,..,..,,. - · . ..,, . 



. Oeaeral Comments 

(2) It this basic concept_ is round acceptable, a number ot 

details need to be added to insure it works. ~hese include: 

(a) Length ot appointments - perhaps 5 years ? 

(b) Method ot tillin& Yacanciea - perhaps oamc as original 1 

(c) Compenoation & reimbursement tor Board Member£ 

(d) Basic funding tor the whole system - 50:50 State & Fcdoral 

would seem tair; ullocation or funds to State vs Regional Boards 

needo to bo considered 

(e) Selection o! Chairmen of Boards - election by Board membcro 1 

or appointment by outside authority ? 

(t) Guidelines tor conducting the buoineee ot the Boards 

(}) Because this plan calls for participation by both federal 

and State GoYerm:lonts, I nosume that if the plan were included in 

a Federal lav1, tha"t the State LeE;islo.ture · would have to pass concurring . 

legislation and mo.ke changes in existing State Statutes that goTern 

and provide authority for our preoent syot em of fioh and gruce r egulat ion, 

i.e. Fic;h and Game Boardso Since Federal legisl a t o rs will want to 

COYer the situation that could arise of the State~~gt pana±ng appropriate 

legislation in a timely fashion, the Fodernl l aw may need Gomething 

akin to a revertment clo.une, ::;uch as " It the :itato Legislature ! a ils 

to paeo concurring legiolo.tion r.ithin --- yeo.ra, management and 

·regualtion of fish and wildlife population on Federal lunds will be 

accompliohcd by the u. s. FiGh und Wlldli.fo SerYice." 

(4) Finally, the propooal ao preucnted here ncedo conoidcrnblo 

poliohing to re ach final ·rarm. However, I ! e lt it wuo more in:portant 

to get the concept out and circulating to oec it it r cpreeent•d (n) 

an• improvement in tho exiotin~ oyvtem which separ3te3 fish and go~e 

regulation from any oeaningful concern for habitat and l und manngem~nt, 

and (h) rcpreoenta an Acceptublo comprocino bctwocn tho cxioting 

eystom, which muny people !ind objectionable, and the other oxtrome 

that io propoood in HR 39, which I pcroono.lly !eol will lead to dio­

aeter, i! pneood. ~ • 

\ 

. . 
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I ntroduc tion 

Subs istence to the Al askan Native is vitally important to 

his culture , hi s way ' of life and to his sense of well being . 

This statement is repeated so often that it can lose content 

and/or meaning . To the Alaskan Native , subsistence is part 

of life. To many Eskimos, Indians and Aleuts, the thought 

of not being able to hunt or fish is very threatening, for 

that ' s the only way of life many know how to live. The 

Alaskan Natives have developed cultural skills and values 

based upon subsistence which have contributed to the self­

sufficiency, self-determination, and perpetuation as a 

cultural people. Subsistence must be maintained at present 

levels (for Alaskan Natives) to preserve and nourish the 

unique spirit of the Alaskan Native cultures . 

Definitions 

To define subsistence in narrow terms would defeat the 

purpose of ma intaining subsistence by creating inflexible 

regulations or standards based on that possible legal definition. 

Section 70l(c) of H. R. 39 basically states that '' people who 

continue to exercise customary, consistent and traditional 

use of subsistence resources in the nationa l interest lands ... and 

their direct descendants, shall be permitted to continue 

subsistence activities .. . if they are primarily and directly 



speci:f ic 

" l cus om.:iry, ~onsi sten t · or c~ntinu~l ~se, " the attempte~ 

def·inition r f "traditional use" may l:~1cr.1 light on •the 

in which these terms are used. De~nis Kelso's, Legal Issues 

. >~ d· 1 . . f . • J • in 1 ie era Protection or Subsistence on the' Proposed National - - ·, ' 

' J 
Interest Lands , December, 1976, at page 136 sta~~s: 

traditional use suggests a link to c~ltural 
heritage which goes farthe r toward limiting 
such use s t o Natives than any of the present 
national interest lands proposals. 

Moreover, " 'traditional' presumably bears some relationship 

to historical. and cultural use patterns ... " One can safely 

infer that "customary" or "traditional use" deal with hunting 

and fishing skills or prowess, which have evolved to cope 

with Alaska's harsh environment in order to maintain one's 

life, culture, etc., through subsistence. 

The closest lega l dc f init~on of 11 dircct descenda n ts" is 

conti'.li nc(l in 25 U. S . C. S . § 371, whi c h dc.:i l s with the descent 

of land . Basica lly t ltc section (a long with s ect ion 348) 

s tates : 

for purpose o f dete rm i ning the descent of 
land to the he irs of any deceased Indian ... , 
whenever a ny male or fe mal e IndiJn shall have 
co-habited together as hu s band and wife 
nccording to custom and manner of I ndian life, 
the is s ue .. . sh~l l be a legit i mate issue ... 

"Issue" in the layman's language , generically, is offspring 

or children. So "d i rec t descendants" would be equated to 

offspring or children of those "people who continue to 

exercise customary, consistent and traditional uses o f 

subsistence resources ... " • 
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r~search ,hal no~ ~evealed 
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definition · ~~ "traditional tise" may shed light on the FOntext _, ~ 
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in which these terms · are ·used. o.e~nfs Ke ls~' s ., Legal Issues 

in Federal Pro~ection for Subsistente on the Pr~posed National 
, 

Interest Lands, December, 1976, ·at page 136 states: 

traditional use suggests a link to cultural 
heritage which goes farther toward limiting 
such uses to Natives than any of the present 
national interest lands proposals. · 

Moreover, 11 'traditional' presumably bears some relationship 

to historica~ and cultural use patterns ... " One can safely 

infer that "customary" or "traditional use" deal with hunting 

and fishing skills or prowess, which have evolved to cope 

with Alaska ' s harsh environment in order to maintain one 's 

life, culture, etc., through subsistence. 

'rhe closest legal definition of "direct descendants" is 

contained in 25 U.S.C.S. § 371, which deals wi th the descent 

of land. Basically the section (along with section 348) 

states: 

For purpose of determining the descent of 
land to the heirs of any deceased Indian ... , 
whenever any male or female Indian shall have 
co-habited together as husband and wife 
according to custom and manner of Indian life, 
the issue . .. sha.11 be a legitimate issue ... 

"Issue" in the layman's language, generically, is offspring 

or childre n. So "direc t descendants" would be equated to 

off. spring o r children o f those 11 people who continue to 

exer c i se cus t omary , consis t ent and tradi tional uses of 

subs istence resources ... " 



fle~ible definition or m~aninq for subsistence : 

is too rigid will undoubtedly influence the r~gulations 

created to maintain subsistence. Furthermor e , in ANCSA, 

Sect ion 4( b) states: 

All aboriginal titles ... based on use and 
occupancy . .. and including any aborigina l hunt ing 
or. fishing rights that may exist, are hereby 
e>: tinguished. 

This action will be discussed further, infra; however , with 

respect to subsistence on nationa l interest lands , the ter m 

subsistence should be given a flexib l e content to meet§ 4(b). 

Various definitions have been given along policy guidelines 

by differen t age ncies. In Repor t of Conference on Subsistence 

Us e of Fi sh and Game, Federal - State Land Use Planning Conunission , 

dated l /11/7 4, page 6, 

The consensus was tha t no sing l e defini t ion 
co uld be achieved , but t hat by viewing subsis­
tence use on a continuum, first priority should 
be given to "subsistence uses"; listing t he 
species and its abundance area by area as 
governing supply, nnd the need mP.asured by 
(a) degree of dependence, (b} r c uidency, and 
(c) means of taking. 

Mo reover, consensuo was also apparently reached that (1) to 

sustain life was highest priority followed by (2) to sustain 

n lifestyle . 

Furthermore, in Conunisnion Pol icy on Subsistence, attached 

to a la tter dated 2/2/ 77 to Cecil Andrus , Secretary oC 

I nterior from W.:ilLer D. Parker, the Commissio l ' s pol icy 

regording wildlife mnna goment and s ubsistonco is st~ted as 

follows : 
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·~'J 11Ht. ' prir.a:r~ object·ive in fish and 
wildlife managem~nt should remain the 
preservation of healthy populations of wild 
life species; (b) State and Federal policy ••• 
should recognize subsistence taking as a 
preferred beneficial use ... (c) definition of 
subs~stence based on local residency and (d) 
subsistence ~hould be controlled through 
State game regulations, utilizing a permit 
system when necessary. 

Furthermore. the General Policy Statement from the ~laska 

Game Management Policies has stated: 

The Department recognizes that some of the 
people of the state are substantially 
dependent on wildlife for sustenance. In 
areas where people are primarily dependent o~ 
game for sustenance the Department will 
provide for libera l seasons and bag limits 
within the limitation of maximum sustained' 
yield. 

Furthermore, at page 4, "direct domestic utilization of fish 

and game is still vital to the existence of many rural 

some urban citizens . .. home consumption of fish and game 

tends to preserve cultures ... Accordingly, it is assigned the 

highest priority among beneficial uses ... " 

'l'he State of Alilska, through Sec . 16 . 05 .257 Subsistence 

ll un t ing Regulati ons o f t he /\lasku Statutes ha s s tated : 

4 (b} ( l) ";. ubs is t cncc hunting" menns Lhe taking 
o f qnmc nni md l s by a slate r es ident fo r food 
o r clo thing for personul or immediate family use. 

llowcver , with r espect t o the Corcgoing, a note of caution is 

advised. State Senator John Sackett from the Tanan;i Chiefs 

Reg ion has come up against this "outward s uppor t" for 

subs i s tence uses which seems to be a reluctance to lake the 

necessa ry steps to really protect these activities. tie said 

he had heard all kinds of conunents of concern about t he 



problem and was a priority need and they 

had the support of all the administration in this area. He 

termed this "a lot of lip service." State Land Use Planning 

Responsibilities, Does One Way of Life Have to Die So Another 

~Ive? By Yupiktak Bista, page 31 . 

In Draft Policy Guidelines, Subsistence Uses of New National 

Park Service Areas in Alaska, dated 4/12/77, by Robert 

Belous, Park Planner and T. Stell Newman.· Ph.D. , at page 8, 

For the purposes of these policy guidelines, 
"subsistence" is comprised of the taking of 
customary and traditional wild foods and 
other renewable biological resources from 
the lands and waters for personal or fami ly 
consumption. Customary trade or barter ... 
is consistent with the intent of this 
policy. 

At page 6, "Qualification for various subsistence activities 

will be on the basis of local residency and customary and 

consistent past useage as determined by a Subsistence Res ource 

Council comprised of local subsistence users. Such qualifica-

tion will not be depende nt upon ..• role or ethnic origins. 

Note that this is a preliminary draft subject to change. 

J\FN's "tentative" posit-o n may he: 

~FN believes subsistence administration shou ld 
be cond •cted at a local/regional level by 
subsistence users, assjstcd by knowledgeabl e 
gove rnmental agenc ies providing management 
datn. Ultimate authori t y over s ubsistence 
1na nagement would be vested with the a ppropriate 
F'c nc r a l Co bi nc t of f i ce1: . (P .:igc 2 , untitled 
d r iJft ). 

No l e Lha L he de fi nit ion of s ubsistence i s intticately 

intertwine~ with some o f th e µo licy guidelines adopted for 

subsistence purposes. 



Equal Protection Clause. 

The State of Alaska is using the Equal Protection Clause 

against federal legislation which would classify Alaskan 

Natives as the sole beneficiaries of the proposed d-2 

subsistence legislation. The Alaska Constitution provides: 

(a) 

(b) 

( c) 

Article VIII, . Section 3, provides, "Whenever 
occuring in their natural state, fish, 
wildlife and waters are reserved to the 
people for common use." 
Article VII, Section 17: "Laws and regu­
lations governing the use of or disposal of 
natural resources shall apply equally to all 
persons . .. " 
Article I Section 1: "that all persons 
are equal and are entitled to equal rights ... " 

Letter to Byron Mallet, AFN President, dated May 26, 1977 

from Herb Cavallera. Under the Alaskan Constitution, the 

State of Alaska is powerless to set up special subsistence 

rights for Alaskan Natives. 

Basically, the Equal Protection Doctrine has two sets of 

standards: 1) a rational basis (for the classification) 

relating to a reasonable governmental 

objective nnd, 

2) if it is a suspect classification or a 

fundamental interest is involved , then the 

court uses the strict scrutiny test: here 

there is a heavy burden on the one proposing 

the classification to show a compelling 

stu te interest. 

The State of Alaska is usi ng the s us pect c lussif ica tion i.e . 

if the Ccdcrul government p ~ sscs (d -2) lcgjslnti on favoring 



Alaskan Natives, then it can be inferred tha t it is based on 

race, which is a suspect classification . However, there i s 

a fallacy in this argument , which will be discussed, infra. 

Nevertheless, the State of Alaska is also using Section 2 of 

ANCSA to buttress its argument, i.e. 

the settlement should be accomplished 
without establishing any permanent racially 
defined institu t ions, rights, privil eges or 
obl i gations without creating a lengthy 
wardship or trus teeship. 

The State of Alaska in us ing the Equal Protect ion Doctrine 

with respect to the natural resources of wildlife and fish 

and game, i s concerned with maintaining "equality" between 

subs istence users, sports hunters or commercial users: 

unless, subsistence use by Native peoples (or other state 

residents) is give11 top priority on <l-2 or state lands . 

Al th oug h J\NCSA ext inguishes 11 any aborig i nal hunting or 

fishing rights that may have existed", the conference committee 

report directs the Secretary and the Stnte to tnke any 

action necessary to protect the subsistence nee<ls. /\s a 

result, Interior formulated n policy covering the lnn<ls it 

administers allowing traditiona l sub sis tence uses of the 

r esources until it is s hown it is no longer necessary for 

human surv iva l. Tl1c policy pe rmits upp r opriate ngc ncios to 

limi t subsistence nctivities when there is a progres s ive 

reduction i n nnimal or pl ant ecosystems ... rurthe r , this 

policy provides a bas i s for the d-2 proposals relatJng to 

subsistence . Summary o( the Conference on Taking r:is h nnd 



Game Resources to Mee t Subsistence Needs, page 9, Federal­

Sta t e Land Use Planning Commiss ion for Alaska, Juneau 2/ 5-

6/74. 

Furthermore, in The Alaska Natives and The ir Subs istence 

Rights: A Discussio~ of the Constitution Quest~ons, 

prepared by Siewar~ L. Udall, 7/77, at page 9: 

It is beyond arg~ment that the U. S. Conrres s 
has the power to set up a r esource manag ement 
regimen for the Alaskan Natives and confirm 
their right to subsis t on the publ ic lands of 
Ala s ka owned by the people of the United 
Sta tes . Congress derives i ts authority over 
Natives from two sources. Article I, ~ ~ , 
clause 3 of the U.S. Constitution gives ;ongress 
p le:na ry au th or i ty to regulate "commPrr" ·vi th 
the I nd ian tribes," and the trevt/ making power 
of the Presid ent confers sjmi la r nuthority. 
The federal trust responsibility over all 
American Indians ha s evolved out of the exercise 
of these Constitutional powers ... 

Since the Congress has pJenary authority to regulate "commerce 

with" the Indian tribes, it should have plenary authori ty to 

protect the Alaskan Native Cultures , which t·ely so he avily 

on subsistence for cultural su rvi val . 

Wi th respect to the State ' s Equal Pr otection argument, ca s e 

law stutes: 

As Jong as t he speci al treatme11t c :1n be tied 
rationally to the fu l fiJlme nt of Co ngres s' unique 
ob ligation toward the Indians, such legis l ative 
judgments will not be disturbed. 
Morton v Moncari, 417 U. S. 52 5 (1974) 

~lo r co v c r , i n U . S . v An t e l ope , 

court said: 

U.S. (1977) t he ----



The decisions of the court leave no doubt: t li'l t 
federal legislation with respect to Indian 
tribes, although relating to Indians as such, 
is not based upon impermissible racial classi-
fication . Classification expressly singling 
out I ndians, as such, as sub j ects of legislation 
is provided for in the Const itution and 
supported by the ensuing history of the Federal 
Government's relations with Indians. 

So the State ' s Equal Pro tect ion argument based upon "race" 

cannot s tand. 

AFN' s position wit~ respect to the Amendments Proposed by 

the AFN in Section 703 (c)(l) is probably the most practical 

approach to take. Section 703(c)(l) states: 

.. • the ri gh t 
is given a) 

b) 

to engage in subsistence uses 
on Nat i ve lands and on subsistence 
lands to Alnska Natives and their 
direct descendants; and 
on subsistence lands to any 
non-Nntive permanent resident 
of a Sub~;istence M:1nngement Zone, 
:rnd their direct descendants . 

Tlds upprooch se rv es u duaJ purpose : i) it uccomocla tcs the 

pos.iLion take n by the St ate or t\lask:i as r equi red b)' the 

Alaskan Co nst itut ion and, ii) it cl:ispels the argument of the 

State bused on ANCSA , Section 2, 

the set tl ement should be accomplished ... 
without establishing any permanent racially 
defined institutions, rights, privileges, 
or obligations . .. 

un<l the State of Alaska's Equal Protection argument bnsccl 

upon "race." 

With re spect to t he d- 2 issue of subsistence on public 

ln nds, the court jn Kleppe v New Mex ico , 96 § ct. 2285 

(19 76) stnte s: 



•' . 
Complete po,wer tJhit Congress 'h~ s over pub:. ic 
lands urider property clause necessarily i nc ludes 
power to regul~te and protect wildlife li\ing 
there, state law notwithstanding. 

Although federal jurisdiction or authority is paramount 

public lanis like d-2, case l aw doe s not seem to reveal 

whether this same (federal) authority can be exercised on 

s t a te owned wil<lerness areas. The AFN's approach (in section 

703(d) ) seems to be the most :;ensible way of coping wit h 

possible splits of au thority on the Federal-State leve l, by 

creat ing Cooperative Management Board(s) . Instead of having 

the fede r al age nc ie s managing public d-2 lands and t·he State 

of Alaska managing its own wilde rne ss nreas, a single age ncy 

is t he most practical s ol ution. AFN seems to ado pt t lds 

position. 

Fundamental Rights 

Aside from this (Equa l Protection) argume11t, one can look at 

the Alaskan Native cultural lifestyles as granting to Alas kan 

Natives a fundamental right to live their l i ves as they hnv e 

nlwnys done. Thi s Cunda111entnl l'ight should be protected 

und e r the c 1 nu sc , 11 Lo r cg ulf1 te co111mc1·ce with the Ind inn 

t ribes"; t his in j t~ l· lf wi ll f urther the f cdcrul poUcy of 

Tnd i un s el f-dctcrnd1wtion nncl meet one of t he requirement~ 

of Sec tion 2 n f ANCSA: 

wi l hout crcrn ting n l cnq t hy war1l s hip or 
trustees hi p . 
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intertwined wi. th pr~.ser:ving the · 
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C I :r.,. v 
Alaskan Native Cultures is subsistence and the right t d 

continue to use subsistence as b~fore. However, the courts 

have held that the taking of fish and' wildlife resources is 

not an inherent right of individuals. Geer v State of 

Connecticut 161 U.S. 519 (1896), stated in Legal Issues in 

Federal Protection for SuLsistence on the Proposed National 

Interest Lands, page 78, Dennis Kelso, 12/76. Note the 

reasoning, . it's not "an inherent right of individuals", but 

it may be an inherent rig~t of a culture, where the right to 

live within the culture is a fundamental right. This argument 

is further buttressed by: 

It was a similar need to live the way the y 
wanted to live that brought some of the 
first pilgrims to North America . The colonists 
founded the U.S. on the prinbiple of a person's 
right to maintain his identity; his freedom 
of speech and religion; his life , liberty 
and pursuit of happiness in his own ways. 

Relating this principle to the subsistence way of life, 

Attorney nobert Goldberg once said: 

It s eems to me that through the years, i( 
the U.S. ha s stood for any thing, it is the 
right of culture s to express themse lves as 
they wish, absent some compelling state interest 
to the contrary. My own v.lew is th.:i t far from 
being a melting pot, the u.s .... has allowed 
many diverse cultures to maintain their cultural 
identity. 

It seems to me that this is a right that is 
· fundamental, ~o fundamental that it was one 
that was not enumerated in the Constitution, 
but reserved to the people . 

Does One Way of Life Have to Die so Another Can Live? By 

Yupiktak Dista, page 7. 



,. I • 

Very brief~y, " .•• the economic value of subsistence to 

Ala:;kans ) ivi.ng near the proposed national interest lands 

proviric~ another basis for concluding that Congress' grant 

of subsistence preference is an appropriate step 

the government's special trust obligations. For thousands 

of years, Alaska Natives have achieved economic. self-sufficiency 

through subsistence .. . Co~gress could certainly conclude that 

proper exercise of trust responsibility requires preferential 

treatment of Native subsistence users whose economic self-

sufficiency will be thereby enhanced. Legal Issues, by 

Dennis Kelso, 12/76, page 105 . 

Moreover, for many Alaskans, particularly, . .. Native Alas kans, 

subsistence hunti ng and fishing is a v i tal source of livelihood. 

Economic analysis shows that in most small Alaskan villages, 

there are limited s ources of cash income and there is little 

foreseeable prospect that this situation will change signi-

ficantly ... Issues of Land Use and Management, Recommendations 

for a (d) (2) Division Jo i nt Fede r al-State Land Use Planning 

r.ommi ss ion for Alaska, May, 1977. 

Dcsidcs economic considerations , food gathe ring i.e. hunting, 

fis hing, picking greens or berries involves time and work. 

If subsistence is lessened it will increase idleness and 

dependency on other sources (notably state or federal). 

This will defeat the federal policy of Indian self-determination 



and contribute to creating the situation of a welfare state. 

Dennis Kelso, Legal Issues, page 88, stated: 

Congress might conclude that avoiding 
economic and cultural disruption by allowing 
continued subsistence could prevent added 
burdens to state and federal social 
assistance programs. 

. 
The Federal-State jurisdicti9n issue has been considered 

very briefly, supra, supporting the establishment of a single 

agency to regulate "subsistence." 
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JUNEAU AL.AeKA INTER!!v\ COM 'dTTcE 0 J SUBSISTENCE 
Nels A . .L,nd ·r~on, Jr, Choli rman 

H 10 

P. 0 . Box . : J4 
'Dillir iJ;.am, AK ?9576 Tel · 8 4? .'iQ70 

NOVEMBER 21, 1977 - GALENA PUBLIC HEARING 

Representative Nels Anderson: · Introduction of Panel. To my left is Re­

presentative Steve Cowper from Fairbanks, and to my i1m1ediate left is Re­

presentative Samuel Cotten from Eagle River, and our Staff Assistant is 

Dorothy Larson from Dillingham. The purpose of our Co111T1ittee is to, as you 

know already is to try to find out what you people think about subsistence, 

how you feel about subsistence, whether or not the State of Alaska should 

try to define what subsistence is and also to get your views on what the State 

of Alaska should do about protecting subsistence and the reason why we're here 

is that we decided earlier or right after the legislative session adjourned 

is that we would try to get to as many places as we could in Alaska and to find 

out what the people feel about the subsistence issue. We've been traveling 

throughout the State we have about 8 to 10 hearings so far. We've got about 

two more to go, we're going to be meeting in Juneau next month and also up 

in Barrow and that will conclude our hearings for this year. But we are look­

ing for co111T1ents from you people on the issues of subsistence and we would in­

vite anyone that would like to give their views to come up forward and go ahead 

and give your comments for the purpose of the con1nittee using those COfmlents 

as we take a look at the State of Alaska ought to treat the issue of subs i stence. 

So if you would like, anyone, would like to come forward and start it going 

there we could begin at any time. l~e don't need anything written, just your 

verbal conm1ents would be enough, and what we will do is transcribe them and 

have them put into the record. 



Page 2 - Galena Publ,c Hearing 

Roger Huntington: One of the things as a citizen of Galena, also the natives 

in the area, even myself on being informed my capacity with the native group 

find it hard to define subsistence. And alot of times here at Galena and 

the surrounding villages when you talk about subsistence, 1nmediately 

moose come to mind, thats most valuable to us, and thats what we're 

threatend with and the continuence to hunt moose and we feel that we are 

being attacked by non-natives, and comi~g in like they are taking our 

moose so maybe what we might be looking for is rules or laws stating 

only us can hunt you know they have for us and what not. You got a 

community like say Fairbanks they have their meat supply there. We have 

ours up here in our woods. Thank you. 

Representative Steve Cowper: Mr. Chainnam one of the things that I 

might try to clarify a couple of things here. I am the Chairman of the 

0-2 Council and I'm running back and forth to Washington on the 0-2 

Legislation now pending there . Now one of the things that Congress is 

going to do Oh the Federal Lands, they are going to create a preference 

for subsistence use on these lands. In order to do that they are going to 

have to define it some way . Now maybe they can leave the definition loose and 

open and let it be set by some ki nd subsistence board that's something they 

S\lggested, but ~ '1at's one of the things that you might address in Washington. 

If the Congress should define subsistence, it's quite (inaudible) as to whether 

or not we should adop t it here in the State and what kind of preferences ounht 

to be created for subsistence ff any. You know with game getting scarce, some­

body ha s to quite hunting . It 's getting to be just about that simple and so 

what we're trying to do is fi gure whether we shou ld create classes of users 

and make preferences, in other words for different types of people. So this 

is one of the things WJl: need to get into here. r think we are talking about 



c 
Federal Legislation which it applies to Federal Lands State Legislation which 

applies to State lands. 

Ronald Sam: Yes, I would like to have the area cormtittee to state, Mr. 

Steven, whether you are making it for State purposes in subsistince. 

Representative Nels Anderson : Yes this is for the State of Alaska. What is 

your name please? Do you have any conments to make the subsistence issue at 

all? 

Ronald Sam: Yes, one that the State like the 50 states, each and everyone is 

different. We have in our State lots of natural resources and renewable 

resources. 

Representative Nels Anderson: What do you feel should be done about protect­

ing subsistence, do you have any ideas on that and what the State of Alaska 

should be doing? 

Ronald Sam: ~ow I think that y0u are looking for a definition of subsistence 

and I don't think you will find the definition. There is about three to four 

hundred (inaudi ble) in the State, there i s no way that you can define one to 

satisfy better laws, State law and be right, there's no way. Everyone of our 

areas are different. 

Representative Nels Anderson: I'll go along with that, I'll agree with that. 

We are finding it really, really difficult to, or I'm finding it extremely 

difficult to. 



Ronald Sam: I don't think this is a time and place to define subsistence. 

Representative Nels Anderson: What about describing subsistence activitities? 

Like what people do describe what people do. 

Ronal Sam: No use telling that either, people know what we are doing already. 

Representative Steve Cowper: I'd like to ask you a question, when you get 

into a chore affair somebody has to work on it . If you don't define subsis­

tence user what do you think about creating a preference from the people 

that live in the area. You wouldn't have to define subsistence, just anybody 

who lives in the area gets first crack at it, gets it's limit, and then if 

there is e11ough resources to go around for the people in the area, then you can . 

Ronald Sam: Yes I go along with that, but at the same time you are opening 

it up to wide open. There (inaudible ) and the resources won't make it around. 

~~tion from Audience: What do you use for subsistence hunting? Do you just 

walk out do you use planes, what do you use? 

Boat , snowgo and dog teams . 

Alfred Attla: Yes, you were talking about breaking things into catagories. 

I think we the people are already broken into catagories . And I think it 

should be broken into that. But people up river they got place to hunt, we 

got place to hunt, even if it's they're area we got a place to hunt. They 

got their play if they want to play. My father worked for a living since 

he was born, he didn't work for anybody. He worked for a living, he raised 



11 of us, some of us kids are out hunting , hunting and trapping. He went 

all the way from Allakaket, he came down to Hughes, he tried that area. And 

finally he found hunting grounds. He found hunting grounds, but that was not 

good e~ough yet, that was this (inaubilbe) he had to come all the way down 

to Titook all the way down to the Yukon to go fishing, in order to get fish 

and things like that for the family . But you can't do that no more . We can't 

come down here and say well we havt to take them home by comnercial license. 

My old man went down Yukon River and fished there all his life, and if I come 

down here and try to buy a comnercial license I couldn't do it. I think we 

woucl be broken i~to catagories, make our own adivisory corrmittee. 

Question from Audience : Vil l age of (inaudible). Can I ask you a question there, 

you are saying these catagories for subsistence, what are you trying to tell 

us? Are you trying to break us into catagories, for subs istence hunting or 

for sports hunting? 

Representative Nels Anderson: This is an idea Steve has been asking various 

people on, Steve would be a better one to ask on that. 

Representative Steve Cowper: It's just an idea, I'm just trying to see what 

the peop le think of it. We haven't gotten any pl ace with it. 

Ronald Sam: I think that sooner or later maybe catagories is not the right 

term, but I believe sooner or later you have to look into what is a village 

and what is a city. Lot of our villages are second class cities, as such, 

under the State Law , but there still not urban type l ike Galena and Anchorage. 

you have to make the decision on what the people think, these are what you 

have to look for not what they use, because I seen to many gU)(s come up and 



Nonn Yaeger: I'm in air taxi business here, and it's my thought that you are 

trying to protect the subsistence hunting here and in order to do so you have 

to know what you have available for game out there to begin with. Number one, 

you have five thousand moose in a certain area, how many can you harvest out of 

that five thousand, before you start to decline. And in the present system 

you can get 3 thousand hunter5 come in here in a season, they can be local they 

can hunt with boats, snow machines, airplanes, they can be from foreign 

countries, Anchorage and Fairbanks . But you got no control on how many game 

is being taken per season. You have no idea what is taken out of this area, 

so all of suddend, three years later all your moose are gone and everybody 

is up in anns and screaming at each other. They are condeming the airplane, 

or condeming everybody, snow machi nes, but you have no control over it. So 

in order to protect the subsistence hunting for the local people here, which 

is the name of the game, you have to keep some of the outsiders out if you do 

not have enough game to sustain an acceptable level so there is enough here for 

everybody to get the game that they want. And at this time the State has no 

system accept for filling out that little tag and that's voluntary more or less. 

In Hawaii for instance it's very controlled, people check into a certai n area, 

they shoot their game and they check out in that area. The State knows exactly 

what's being harvested. The game is a natural resource, some should be har­

ves ted by some means, but i f too much is harvested , the local people can't get 

their game that's not right. But there is no protection at this time, like if 

a lo t of hunter5 come up here next year, and they all get a moose, bang they're 

all gone. There is no protection at this time. 

Representative Steve Cowper: That's exactly what we are talking about in other 



when we talk about creating a local preference it means it is not enough to 

go around to people from outside, from other countries and even from Anchorage 

and Fairbanks they don't get to shoot them. That's what we are talking about. 

Ronald Sam: Okay how big is Hawaii? Yeah, in Hawaii you ca~ say 20 acres 

for pinapple and 20 acres for tourists. Okay up here we got more than that. 

You better know that. You can bring (inaudible) up here, right that's alright 

(inaudible) down there, you got to shoot them again the thing, you got to draw 

a ticket for that, we don't want that up here. We damn sure don't want that 

up here. Right now there doing that on the Delta area, it's not right. You 

do that and the caribou and moose sooner or later we got another area, Hawaiian 

area. We would like to keep it that way. We don't want to see that around 

here. Down there you can say, okay you have 20 acres of game area. 

David Kwanberg : My interest in the discussion is building a place in the bush 

down the South of Kaltag. I first became aware of the pressure of hunting down 

there when people in the area would stop by my place and talk about their ex­

perience with plane hunters and some of them told me that there were alot of 

abuses from airplane hunters and down where they are used to hunting, and there 

were people coming in from other areas, hunting in the areas where they had been 

accustomed to hunting. Well I have friends in Kaltag and I like being in the 

area and I wouldn't like seeing it turn in a dessert, so I tried to work it 

out in n~ own head. The thing that finally made sense to me was that to make 

two restrictions in say for Kaltag in the flats area . One was to outlaw all 

the aero ' hunting, airplan~s were spotting for pursuit or for carrying out any 

of these outlawed periods. People who have boats simply can't compete with 

th~n . The other would be to limit hunting rights in the area on residence 

basis. The flats area is used by people from Grayling all the way into 



(inaudible) and some people from Galena go down there too. It's a huge area 

and it seems to be able to support quite a few ~lllages, but it can't do it 

when people are coming in from citites and far away places. Those two things 

make sense to me, outlaw the areo hunting from the area, and restrict hunting 

right on the residents basis. So I started to do the same thing that Steve 

is doing and that was to talk to people about ft and I've heard the same 

stories, Galena, Hughes, and up in Kfana. There are people who are accus­

tomed to taking their life off the land and the animals that they are ac­

customed to taking are being, sometimes they are slaughtered and left and other 

times they are being killed and taken out, by people who may have a freezer 

full of beef back in the city. It doesn't make sense to me. I don't pre­

tend that an increase in the population in the villages are not going to do 

anything to the ga1r1e eventually, it seems to me that there is a much better 

chance for people living here to have some control over their future, given 

a break by those kind of restrictions to begin with. 

Charlie Rhea: Mr. Chairman, I'm Charlie Rhea from Galena. I think that the 

problem here is the people are mixing subsistence with long tradition. These 

guys have been here for years and years and have done what they had to do to 

surive and have supported their families and I have to go along with the 

gentlemen just said about outside people coming in here with airplanes, this 

one of the big problems in this area is they got rules against flying planes 

and shooting i n the same day and all this, but it still happens. And it needs 

a little control. But if you start talking about who is going to be able to 

hunt these animals, if it's just a person who lives off the land or just goes 

out and works 6 months out of the year he still has the same right its his 

tradition that they are fightin~ for also, and they should be included in the 

same light as the subsistence fella. The big problem that they have right now 



in this area 

the way I personnaly see it. Thank you. 

Alfred Attla: Yeati, 11ke the guy that was speaking before that, 1ike (inaudible) 

folk what it is, is the lack of control. Lack of Fish and Game control, just 

like right now you can fly down from Youth and you can find a dead moose about 

nine miles below Youth. You can find a dead moose, and you can be sure that 

the game that no native would leave right there. You go about 18 miles below 

there and there is moose hanging up right now, right today, there is moose 

hanging up right there. Moose be hanging up, maybe the airplane hunters 

didn't have enough gas to come back and get it, and maybe they have another 

one some place else. That's i total waste, but that is the lack of State con­

trol . Us income tax people, that pay income tax, we should get better rights 

than that. 

Ivan Sipary : Yes I would like co111T1ent going back on what some of these people 

say, like the gentlemen down there. When some of us only work six months of 

the year, maybe some of the local people prefer working si x months out of the 

year, but out in those smaller villages out of the Galena area, I bet you find 

that the majority of the people barely work 3 months out of the year, be­

cause some of them have a good year, so when everyone went firehunting at 

least 40 days. But that's just one good year . That's suppose to be a good 

year for us , and then the rest of the yea r we have to make it on subsistence. 

It's not only moose it's trapping beaver and 1unting, trapping fishing is 

the same thing . 

Representative Steve Cowper: Mr. Chairman, let me toss something ovt, you 

know, it can reply to if they want . What if you created subsistence zones 



d 

say,' and what you did was you sa1d, tha t anybody that came into 

take game or fish or whatever ,and use the same way people in 

the area did. In other words you, if your hunting moose with an airplane, 

then they could do it, but if you didn't do it, and you hunted them in a boat 

then that's the way, that's the only way they can do it, what if you did that? 

Male in Audience: Th~n you would find that there would be a hell of alot more 

people that can afford boats then the rest of the village people, that would 

use planes. Same way .. . 

Norm Yeager : The issue seems to be betwaen airplanes and boats. I fly around 

myself and ther~ is not that many airplanes taking people hunting. I'm not say­

ing it's not, I fly hunters out and drop them off, I don't spot any game 

they hunt on foot and all the meat we get, we give to the people in town here . 

Now I'm not saying that's right all the time, but I didn't kill the moose my­

self, because somebody else shot it, because they wanted the cottenpicken 

horns, and I'm not saying that's right. But the moose did not get wasted, it 

got harvested, if there is not enough of them out there, that's not right. But 

these people were dropped off where people with boats cannot hunt . Now there 

is alot of hunting pressure going up river by boats it's not all airplanes in 

thi s area and there not all resident people hunting by boats. They are kill­

ing the moose on the rivers by folks that are not residents and they do not 

subsistence hunting for the local people who are shut off by boats, snow ma­

chines, or airplanes, you have the same problems. The airplane is not really 

the key issue here, you are trying to protect subsi stence hunting and some 

local people here, Native people and they have an airplane and they hunt 

with an airplane or have hunted with an airplane and some use boats . 



I want to respond to t~is There was a fella I Heard 

ab9ut in Fairbanks who took ' his boat down the mouth of the Yukon River and 
' 

driftnetted down there and made $25,000 on fish in just a couple of weeks. 

Now that's no limitation if you've got enough .money, you can boat ·right into 

an area and take it all out with you. It just wouldn't work that way. 

Ronald Sam: What I'm trying to say is these guys that take people out to 

lakes in acceptance to moose, you are right, but by the time you are hunting 

for trophy animals, trophy moose, you damn right, then travel through the 

country . They stop and catch one and go by it, you know? Sooner or later 

they will go where they are accessable to ·~ us, and because he land to where 

we can't get to him, doesn't mean the animals won't stay in one place when 

they are running. And the ones he take out are the trophy hunters . We'll 

find them travelling pretty soon, they don't stay one place. 

Roger Huntington: First of all, I want to ask : remember the legislation 

back and forward the 50 mile radius zone or whatever it was. What is the 

legality on this as far as what it constitutes now? 

Representative Nels Anderson: I don't know how that turned out, this was 72 

or '73 I think. 

Question: What was the proposition? 

Roger Huntington: The proposition was there was a radium around eac h village, 

50 miles. Under that context maybe expand the area a little more and local 

residents especially . 



Representative Nels Anderson: in the other places we've been most of 

the" pe~ple have said basically what you ar~ saying already from all over the 

State. Jhey are saying that there is not enough Fish and Game control, not 
I . . 

enoug~ protection. Not enough enforceme~t. Okay, that's one thing. They 

want us to stop foreign people from coming in to the State and taking out 

just the horns and leaving the meat, wasting the meat. They want not only 

to curtail areo hunting, but there is some areas thinking about stopoing 

snow machine hunting. I don't know how people are going to take to that, but 

you know that is going to be kind of a drastic measure to take. The thing 

that is happening in the State of Alaska now, and I think most of you know 

this, is the people have access to high speed boats now, they've got better 

rifles, they have a growing population and you got the declining in the game 

population. And what we're trying to figure out is trying to decide how in 

the world are we going to handle th~ situation, okay. We know we can get 

rid of the foreigns', I don't think there would be any problem concerni ng 

the local residents, and I think what we are dealing with, as far as my 

particular goal is at that if the game population gets down to a point we 

have to make a decision, the person that has the number one preferential rights 

to that game should be people that live in the area. That's n~ particular 

feeling but not only mine it's being born out by peopie who are testifying 

throughout the State of Alaska. 

Alfred Attla: Yeah, in my own opinion I think the biggest problem is to 

try and get control, just like we might have a lot of hunters from each vil­

lage, well those people hunt everywhere and every year, during the time of 

harvest every one hunt in the village. You don't have to worry about control­

ling us, we are out there to get our moose or whatever, but outside hunters, 

theres no way, so far the State hasn't done a darn thing as far as I'm < , , , , . 



concer:-ned as far as controlling th'em. 

about. They're not contrqlled, they are simply .out of control. Say just like 

me if I had a hundred 'thousand doll~rs, you couldn't control my hundred· 

thousand dollars no way. I'll just go out and get a moose, even behind your 

back I'll get a moose. The State got to put up more money or something like 

that and put or hire somebody in the village,' hire two or three people in the 

village to control the area. Control the a.rea with boats, if they do that 

and they get paid, that's just like subsistence hunting for them or for myself 

or for anybody. Otherwise there is going to be control. 

Roger Huntington: You know there seems to be a lot of laws on the books right 

now that are supposedly there to prevent people getting moose to easily with 

an airplane, but if we were to put another law that says you couldn't hunt 

with an airplane within a 50 mile radius of the villages, would that be ef­

fective, would the State be able to regulate that without having, certainly 

if you put enough people out here to enforce, if you put a small army out here 

to enforce you could stop them from airplane hunting, but is it possible to put 

another law, and say no hunting with airplanes. 

Repres _ntative Sam Cotten: Let them airplane hunt, but put more enforcement? 

Representative Nels Anderson: Sir could you say that again, did you say let 

them airplane hunt? 

Member of Committee: Let them airplane hunt, but what's more important? 

Dave Kwanberg: It seems to me that not very long ago the people up Koyukuk 

thought of maybe a simple solution of alot of airplane hunters, and that was 



' . ' 
to ·shoot the planes down. ·what .is buing said here is the .people in the villages , ' II . , . 
are ulti~atley responsible f~r the fdod resources,and it seems to me that if 

ti 

you say to them, look airplane hunters are not allowed in ·here and you have 
I 

I \ the power of enforcement, one way or another that enforc~ent • will be carried 

out. I would just spell that out. 

Norm Yaeberg: I'd like to say is you're going back to Kaltag tomorrow on a 

plane and someone shoots you down, how are they going to know that if you are 

htJters or just going ho~e . 

Dave Kwanberg: No, I'm not sayi ng that everyone go out and shoot them. The 

other things that come to mind . The second thing, is to underline what this 

fella said over here and that is the argument that hunters were let down in 

areas that are inaccessable to airplanes (inaudible) because the animals in 

that area are part of total game population that's available to people in the 

area, and sooner or later like the ma n said they are going to be available. 

They're going to come around. And beside that people who hunt in boats do 

get out of the obats and go inland a long ways, and alot of the hunters, for 

instance down in the Kwiou area get put down right near the slough where boats 

can get +oo if you were hunting right in there . The third thing is if it is 

decided that there are to be subsistence areas, or subsistence villages it 

seems to me important too that the Fish and Game consult with the villages as 

to where the area should be, and not simply say a 50 mile radius. For ex­

ample, up there at Kiana, the people are being faced with the prospect of 

some kind of National Park going on both sides of the river for many miles 

up river and they're trying to get one mile on each side of the river so they 

continue to fish and hunting up there. They are having a hell of a time with 

the Federal Government, but they don't nned a 50 mile radius as much as they 



one mile cooridor on both sides of the river. If subsistence zoning is the 

way to go, check with the villages as to where the zone is going to be, don't 

just plop a circle around it. 

Representative Nels Anderson.: Five petitions, since we got the law passed, 

I think it was 1975 to create subsistence zones there have been five petitions 

for five subsistence zones and there have been turned down by the Department 

of Fish and Game for some reason. I've got a letter in here somewhere where 

they sites some kind of reason why they are not going to enfore those. One 

of the things that we're suppose to be doing is to get the answer from the 

Department of Fish and GAme and see why they can't do it, because the law is 

there, and by the way that' s the law that JilllTly Huntington put it and got pas­

sed when he was down there and that was hi s work and we expanded on i t after 

he left . I t hink that that's moving in the right direction, somehow we can't 

get the thing in operation for some reason the Department of Fish and Game 

are dragging their heels. 

Ronald Sam: I would like to say that airplane game hunting do with out, drop 

it seriously, at this time there is no way you can enforce it and there is no 

more than I can, and you know it and I know it, no matter which way we go there 

is no way we can eforce it at all. I'd like to see that, you understand it 

right now, no matter which way you go, subsistence hunting you never satisfy 

everybody, what I'd like to see is that subsistence be defined for certain 

areas, and you'd have to go to each and every village and define them if they 

arey urban before you do anything, you know that you can't enforce this no 

more that I can. 

Gerald Walker : It seems to be a serious doubt i n everybodies mind, which will 



exist you know for the next couple of years. 

Not much moose ·here, not much moose there, not much fish here, and not much 

fish there. The way of life is changing all the time, for instance the food 

in the stores, you can go and get a T.V. dinner anytime you want (inaudible) 

Now everybody is fighting over this and that, can I take this or can I take 

that. (inaudible) I cannot get a moose anymore and there's no more of that 

and as a matter of fact over the years(inaudible). There is no more moose 

in the area no more moose in that area, the population is growing every area 

and the means of transportation is getting better . 

Alfred Attla: Up in our area this is (enaudible) Moose season for us use 

to be as big as our subsistence, use to be from August 20th to September 30th. 

Lately, we been talking aboutit, and somehow we got it to where we want it . 

From September 10th to September 30th, which gives us 20 days that's all. Then 

somebody came up with the idea to open up the season again from November 1s t 

to November 31st. And in the home area we don't want no bull moose from 

November 1st to November 31st. Heck they're so damn dried up now, they're 

so damn dried tip like me, you wouldn't want to eat me? But sti ll there are 

hunters out there right now, they're not out there for the meatn, there out 

there for the antlers. If the antlers didn't fall off yet. That's not our 

season, I though that was hell, just like they say in unit 24, unit 24 would 

cover a lot of area, probably cover alot of villages too . Maybe each village 

can have they're own unit. In fact, like they're own season. They shorten 

it as much as they can , cause heck I can catch them without a season anytime 

I want too, and you guys wouldn't know the difference . That's n1y subsistence 

hunting, but I won't waste it . 

Norm Yaeger: I would like to add a word on that. He is absolutely ri ght on 



) . 

on that. Right now if you want to .go out and get a .. moose for meat, .. YOU have 

to shoot a cow, so if that cow is pregnant you are shooting ·more calve~ for 

next year. You are not properly harvesting the g·a~e as solitary. I have a 
' " party now, I don't make it a habit to haul hunters out, it's not my business 

but occasionally I get a request for it. And there is some people that want 

to go out tomorrow or today and I won't agree with them, they are going to 

shoot a raunchy old bull just for the horns, it's not right. If they want 

meant, which they don't even want, they just want to go hunting, they would 

have to shoot a cow ther1 you have two less calves to hunting ~ext year. 

Roger Huntington: One of the things that I t~ink that we ought to dwell on, 

as {inaudible) made a good point as far as inventory of what we got. Utili­

zation, every year the State gets a permit and if you get one of these permits 

I don't understand what they put on them, the white people or non-residents 

are trained to use these permits, as where the local native people are not 

using permits. (inaudible) It could be up 50% or more pennit hunters are 

non-local people, so then you can't corrment on as to how many moose are killed 

on the State count, you will find out as a result of my theory, that most 

of these killed were from non-local people. When you go out hunting you don't 

take envelopes pensils. 

Ronald Sam: I, for one, will not stand for inventory. Can you control your 

wild fires? Apparently BLM cannot. Can you control your wildlife? Apparently 

we cannot, cause when there is wild fire around that can burn 250,000 acres, 

if you think that does leave anything in one certain area, you're wrong. We 

up at Allakaket area didn't see to many moose for a good many years, cause 

we had 700,000 acres burned. You cannot control the elements no more than you 

can enforce the laws. And they will go where they can eat and survive, just 



as you and I do. They go where t he soil is good, they'll wind up there. Sure 

there is some area that can stand it you know, that can take care of a good herd 

of moose year around. There is alot of area that cannot, you have to take that 

into consideration,, Where there is wild fires you have to take that into con­

sideration, you have to think about that it would take 5 to 6 maybe 7 years 

to get the moose back. Lot of places are left, but who's to measure? Your not 

~easureing from one day to the next. The animals move as we move, where we 

can sustain ourselves. Okay, area is burned out they moved out of there, and 

YJU know it, or you should know it. They will move where the going is food. 

I cannot believe in inventory, simply becau~c there is alot of areas that you 

can harvest, about two or three hundred bulls . Theis area won't be that way 

this area won't see about 20, 30 moose, you got to know that animals like our­

selves go where we can sustain outselves . 

Representative Nels Anderson: We have already drafted a proposed piece of 

legislation that would regionalize the Fish and Game Board, so that there 

would not be, if its successful, and if it goes through the State of Alaska 

will have several regionalized boards instead of one State-wide Board. I 

don't know how that's going to apply in the Legislature, but it seems like 

about everybody is througjh (inaudible) people are saying that they want more 

control they would have a better handle on what's happening to them, rather 

than having outsiders outside of your area controlling what you do. 

Question from Audi.~: Are you in the Legislature able to regionalize boards 

are you putting in that that the regional boards will have direct power to adapt 

a board . 

Representative Nels Anderson : Right, the Regional Boards have the management, 
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regulatory power. 

Question from the Audience: Can the Board veto the Regional Board? 

Representative Nels Anderson: No. 

Ronald Sam: Mr . Chainnan, I for one am for the Regional Board, simple be­

cause the people in the Region knows better than anybody else. But what I 

want understood clearly at this time i s that within the regions there are 

differences, look at Galena, look at Barrow there the only places with air 

bases and with guides and with authorization to take people out with airplanes. 

What about us in the middle? We see them airplanes flying around everyday. 

There are differences in the regions, but i back up the regional board all 

the way. With the understanding that they know that we're there, besides 

the placed that we can fly out, charter out, there are differences, way 

different. They've got the money I've seen to many foreign hunters and the 

ones that can affort it. 

Alfred Attla: I'd like to testify that j ust like you look at the map and 

Unit 24, well the laws are made for us already in that area. They tell us well 

you can hunt this time and you can hunt that time. Laws are already made. 

(inaudible) no matter what, if we have a say in that law, we have any say 

in that, j ust like that area, about saying that, instead of moose hunting sea­

son at a certain time they say that it is good for our area. And just like 

I said somebody came up with the idea of opening the season from November 

1st to November 31st, that wasn't our idea, and I think I 1111 talking for the 

total of the whole people in the area. 



Nonn Yaeger: If you want to eliminate non-residents and foreigners and I'm 

sure any of the whites (inaudible) about 10,000 dollars, its the cheapest place 

in the world if you want to hunt . In Africa there is some people in (inaudible) 

sporting goods they paid $10,000 or something to go down there and hunt, and 

they quit that and they are outlawing them to hunt, so apparently there is a 

way to regulate people from coming in. 

Harvey Stranberg: As the law stands now Alaska residents do not need a quide 

to get thehi- monthlygame, why not do away with the Alaska guiding, which is 

90% of your area hunting and all hunters. 

Representative Nels Anderson: That would make some fur fly. We will definitely 

look into that one . 

Harvey Stranberq: I can say that everybody is concerned about control, and 

with these bills you say they're going to declare regional boards to govern 

those areas. What is in there about control, who is going to be doing the 

contiol, the Fi sh and Game or detective people are \.hey going to be the ones 

to control this area and oft1~ourse the regional rules . Also what is sub­

sistence? 

Roger Huntington: Mr. Chainnan, that's the question I was going to corm1ent 

on. Subsis tence are at different levels . You know it , and ma ny are aware of 

it, as does many of the body here. Subsistence is more than just eat ing, 

putting food on the table. Subsistence to me, is kind of the way of life and 

I also in some cases find that the way of life al so applie~ to non-natives. 

And also goes reverse where some natives don' t apply to that. But you know 

a lot of people make more money than other people and are in low income 



brackets, you know I 

and that means a hell of a lot to me . I prefer that lifestyle. 

hand out in Fairbanks or Anchorage and make a hell of a lot more, 

pr.efer this lifestyle. 

Na"" Yaeger: How come the State can't control our subsistence lifestyle 

with moose you know? Where the State can control the fish that come up 

(inaudible) River and Yukon that you have to so many years or something like 

that in order to buy commercial license, if the State can control that, I 

don't think it took money to do that. I think tt took money from individuals 

to keep it like that for the money in order to control that. I ts seems to 

me that we are just going in a merry-go-around, pretty soon they'll be 

hunting moose with a satallite. 

Representative Nels Anderson: I wanted to answer or try to answer some of 

those questions that were asked in the back there. What is subsistence? That 

is primarily why we are hol ding h 1 ~arings, we are trying to find out how people 

feel about the term subsistence and it should be defined, and whether or not it 

should be defined, r don't know, that's why we are holding hearings throughout 

the State. I'm trying to find out in my own mind just exactly how we ought to 

approach this, and getting recorrmendations directly from you people is what I 

want. 

Who is going to control? The way I envision this game board, this Fish 

and Gawe Board on the local level, and I do believe , since other suggestions 

in other parts of the State have been made, that th~ local people be given the 

author, ty to control, so that they know who is hunting, and where and what is 

being taken out and so forth, that idea is probably going to carry a lot more 



weight than it has in the past. Because people weren't 
~ 

'I I 

cause we believe that that is the way it should be done. I heard it again 
. . 

tonight it's been stated over and over again to .other hearings throughout 

the State. I think that idea is going to catch on. But as far as defining 

subsistence, like I said before, it's extremely difficutl, it's not an easy 

job, the more I get into it, and we've been working with it, and the staff 

has been working with it on a daily basis now since almost si nce the session 

adjourned the first part of June and the more we get into it the more complex 

it becomes. The harder it gets to deal with the issue, because the thing 

that we are ginding out that these gentlemen have pointed out and other people 

have stated that every area is so different that there is no way that you can 

define subsistence to fit the people in Bristol Bay and it's not going to fit 

in the Yukon area. You're not going to be able to define subsistence up in 

Barrow that's going to fit Cook Inlet and Kodiak . So it's going to have to be 

flexible, it's going to have to be regionalized and how it' s defined, I think 

is going to have to be left to the people to define it for themselves, so that 

they are satisified . 

Believe it or not the rat race down in Juneau comes up with the strangest 

ideas even after they have heard the people speak . They still seem that they 

can't get the message right ~ nd do the right kind of job that you want them 

to do . I think the more that ~ 1e get down to the local level and get people 

involved with this particular definition and enforcement and soforth, I think 

more people are going to be happy that way . 

Ronald Sam: Thi s is the first that we have ever been invited to any meeting 

of any sort, I mean we've been invited before, but they knew damn well we 

couldn't affort it . Thi s i s the first time that we have be~n invited, and I'd 



hear what you have to say on regionalization, I 

~ut I never see it in my letters or correspondence where we w111 soon be · in 

the Northwest District but even if we are in the Northwest District from 

Yukon on up, or Fairbanks on up that still doesn't cover us. Like 1 say 

subsistence is different in every village. You cannot do it by regionaliza­

tion alone, but thats a start. I just like to hear more on your creating 

board districts. Because if there is a new district created in Northwest, 

say from Yukon on uo, or Fairbanks on up, we're in there, but we're totally 

different from them. Most of the people that will be representating us. 

Representative Nels Anderson: Well, the proposed bill that we had the leg­

islative Affairs draft for us has not been formally presented to the Legis­

lature yet. We have to make, we have to present that to the Legislative 

Council and I think they will take it from there I suppose to be introduced 

by the Rules Conmittee to the Legislative Council on behalf of the Sub­

sistence COfTlllittee. The details of it have not really been worked out yet. 

All we are talking about is the concept, we're talking about getting more con­

trol into your hands . How the region is going to handle you problem, 

talking about your differences from various parts, you know within the 

region. I don't know how that is going to be dwelt with, hopefully your 

problem is going to be satisfied. That's the best I can give you right now. 

Alfred Attla: Mr. Chairman, I think we're all here for a reason, and that once 

you leave here, then you go to a meeting to another to collect our testimonies 

and try to find a way of the best subsistence living for us, is that so? Well, 

I think each and everyone of us here,right now, we all have a little area, we 

all have a small area. We all have a small village where we come from. I 

think the way I'm hearing ti, should be not the way each Fish and Game put it, 



just like each unit, but hearing from each village of which way the lifestyle 

might be. Each and everyone of our lifestyles might be different than other 

villages. Although we always take each others right sides. But just like 

what I said before, and hopefully you wrote it down, that is our life~tyle 

in our own area . And I think each other villages have they're own lifestyle. 

And I think that's the way it should be heard . Just like maybe they might 

be units, just like the Fish and Game put us, units of certain, certain and 

so and so, maybe a certain village can't stick in that unit. 

Representative Steve Cowper: Mr. Chairman, you know when you get right down 

to it, I think what we're talking about is the local people versus people 

that come in from oucside the region, is what we're talking about. You know, 

the one thing that people don't alot of the people in the cities don't under­

stand is that alot of the villages, there is no such thing as a cash economy 

or really what's going on there. And most of the villages came into being 

because of this subsistence lifestyle, that's the reason the villages came 

into being, because of this subsistence lifestyle, that's the reason the 

vill ages were there to sta rt with, and it's still the reason they're there, 

you have to recognize that. People in Anchorage, Fairbanks and Juneau have 

to recognize that fact, that if you take away the, if you don't make a 

special allowance for subsistence living that style of life is going to have 

to vanish. And I think you have to do it, you have to make allowances for 

subsistence hunting, and fishing and make a preference for it. I think you 

do. The questi on that we have to decide I think, pretty quick is how are we 

goi ng to do it, and do it fairly to everybody concerned. 

Ronald Sam: I agree with you, so far, but you cannot fight progress. Maybe 

you can stall it, but you cannot fi ght it. Maybe everyone of us in this house 



will be in the grave· and it will be sta1l:led that far, but you cannot fight .' 

progress. One day, we'll be sitting like you, and my friends in my conmunity 
I 

say there's progress and ther.e is sentiment and our Government is represented. 

Okay, I know ·for a fact that reapportinn1T1°'1t of our certain districts, governtng· 

districts is coming up, and you know that 65 our of maybe 100 representatives 

will come out of Anchorage. Now does this area have any bearing on that? 

They can vote it down anytime they want. 

Representative Nels Anderson: Does what now? 

Ronald Sam: This reapportionment thing. 

Representative Nels Anderson: Have anything to do with what we're doing? No 

I wouldn't say so. You're right though, reapportionment is going to mean 

more urban Legislators, you are going to have more, the majority of the House 

and Senate will come from Anchorage alone. 

Representative Sam Cotten : That doesn't, of course I'm from Anchorage, I 

represent Northeast Anchorage, thdt's about as rural as Anchorage gets . Most 

of the people from Anchorage I think, at least the people from the legislature 

are considered to be reasonable people. The few of us that do get a chance 

to get out and talk to people that claim they have a subsistence way of life I 

think they ought to appreciate it, just because the population of Anchorage may 

turn out to be the greater half of the population of Alaska, well the constit­

ution requires that many Legislators come out of Anchorage that it's a one man 

vote deal . But it doesn't necessarily mean that they are going to vote you 

down. or vote against the subsistence way of life, and r think that even now , 

Nels will agree that many people from urban areas are very sympathetic towards 



the question. And as 

wri te down the ways that i t wi 11 

subsistence way of life. 

Representative Steve Cowper: Mr. Chainnan what you're saying is right, but 

there is a transition period too. Maybe what we're saying is that if you 

have to make a preference for subsistence hunting and fishing now and we have 

to decide amongst those people who get some rights, then maybe we ought to go 

in terms of economic and the person who needs it the most ought to have first 

crack at 1t, maybe that's the way you go. 

David Kwanberg: Mr. Chairman, I would say that that's not right because in 

Kaltag, going back to this fishing permit, there was a resident of Kaltak who 

wanted a permit and he worked on the Pipeline for a year or the year previous 

to that, he could not qualify for that permit, that seems to be the situation 

with the money the year before now he may be spending all his money building 

a new home or sending his kids to school or medical bills or what have you. 

But he wanted to live in Kaltag, that's his home and he wanted to fish but he 

could not qualify for a permit. And I don't think that's right either. You 

want to keep the outside hunters out of here, and protect a lifestyle for 

everybody in this room. (inaudible) that's how I'll enjoy it every year. 

Then you are going to have to set up a hundred mile limit around the area for 

the residents only, anybody in unit 21 can hunt unit 21, other people that come 

in here, perhaps sell them a pennit for a thousand dollars or some fee or some­

thing then chop it off if there's not enough game. Go at it at that approach 

if you want to protect a lifestyle. People around Bethel, Point Barrow, keep 

them cottenpicking people out of here, because I don't go to Fairbanks and 

go hunting, why do they come down here? They hunt all they're game out, and 



Representativ~J Steve Cowper; That wasn't really what I was· saying there . 

. 

1

was sa~in~ t·h~h if you had to choose among the people who would' qualify as 

residents. 

Male in Audience: But who is going to qualify, because alot of people here 

make $10,000 a year, $20,000 a year, they can afford the beef, but they like 

to go out and hunt, they enjoy it . 

Representative Steve Cowper : But you can't shoot 200 moose and you 400 people 

who qualify for subsistence users, whose going to get the 200 moose? People 

like me who work from a money standpoint? 

Nonn Yeager: Well if you keep the outsiders out and you shoot a few wolves 

here you'll have enough moose so we won't have that problem. We don't have 

that big a population at this time. 

Representative Nels Anderson: You know we have a Limited Entry Program for 

fishing. They used several critera's. They used economics. number of years 

they fished and soforth . That all weights into who gets a Limited Entry Per­

mit . It seems to be that there is a way that we can probably get it through 

with some kind of pennit process if we have to do that . That would probably 

be the way we'd do it. It works for the Limited Entry for fishing, it's 

good in court tests, it seems to be holding up. I don't know how much good 

its doing , but the law itself is sound. 

Gerald Walker: Was talking about a person who had been fishing for years but 



Representative Nels Anderson: The same thing in Oillin~ham. I don't have 

a Limited Entry Pennit, I've been fishing too, so · I ·know that the law .isn't 

perfect, and we're not here to talk about the Limited Entry anyway. · That's 

a whole new bag of won·11s. I can't answer that because I don't know. I wish 

he could have a Limited Entry Pennit. I wish I could have one too. 

Another conment on Limited Entry. No name mentioned 

Representative Nels Anderson: The Fish and Game doesn't have anything to do 

with it, it's the Limited Entry Conmission that administors that program. I 

don't know, I can't answer that. I don't know what the Limited Entry Com­

mission is going to do . 

Roger Huntington: Nels before we get away from limited entry, as related to 

the moose in particular, you go into the limited entry concept. What he is 

saying could apply though. Where if you shot a moose 1977 this year and maybe 

you were gone for the past five years, maybe I was out somewhere, and I came 

back and I want to shoot a moose. I would still want that license, but under 

the present theory I'd be refused one under the present limited entry theory. 

Representative Sam Cotten: Another thing on the limited entry they have a 

way, they can prove whether or not you fished, but because you sold fish 

tickets or had conmercial gear license, whereas with subsistence, as you said 

people don't go out and write it down so it would be hard to prove i f you did 

or did not . 



Alfred Attla: I was born 1939 and I stated remembering maybe when I was three 

or four years old. May old many brought us down from all the way down the 

Yukon. Up until 1937 to 1958 he brought us down to go fishing. I can't 

get no co111nercial license right now. I'm not qualified, I'm not a qualifed 

fisherman and my old man use to get more fish down here below (inaudibleO 

I think than anybody else that use to get fish . And I'm not a fisherman, 

I couldn't get a commercial license. 

Representative Nels Anderson: Yes, I was born in 1939, and I fished with my 

Dad all my younger years before I went into the service I don't have a Limited 

Entry Permit either. So I don't know what the answer is . But I would like 

to have one. Buy one I guess. 

Male in Audience: I'll give you the answer for that, all you have to know 

is the right people. 

Representative Nels Anderson: When I was in legislature I should have know the 

right people. 

Male in Audience: Getting away from fishing the regionalized concept, is that 

pretty much favored by the other testimonies in the other areas. 

Representative Nel s Anderson: Yes. 

Male in Audience: What about the urban areas? 

Representative Nels Anderson: I don't know what they feel on that. 
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Representative Sam Cotten: I know, we had a meeting in Anchorage. Couple of 

the people have testified. They got into some of the details on some of it. 

They talked about some things like Caribou and soforth. Right in between 

areas, or fish down stream you know like down stream on the Yukon and say 

you can do all the fishing you want, then cut the fishing off to people up 

stream. Sometimes you run into problems like that where you can't give 

total control to the individual districts. Which is pretty obvious once 

yoy start thinking about it. On mibrating animals. Also alot of people 

feel that we 'd like to have the State (i naudible) and if you just completely 

shu t off al l the outsiders say Washington or other States, the Federal Govern­

ment might enfringe upon the States ability to manage. So most people from 

the urban areas I'll say that have testified, they favor even the Sportsman 

Association. Those in Anchorage that testified, they favored the concept 

but felt that there was going to be some problems on the total regulatory 

powers that might be given to the districts. 

Male in Audience: There was a meeting last week in which people from the 

Governor's office which tried to explain Regionalizati on . It seemed to me 

that there was something said at that meeting one of the things that most 

of the people agreed to. Was that the regions were too big and that it might 

be necessary to scale them down to the village size. You know it didn't 

make any sense out of regionalization. I think they pointed out like there 

were three different lifestyles in one region. There was a coastal, inland 

and a urban and there just doesn't seem to be any point. 

Male in Audience: It wa s about three weeks back I got a letter back home about 

stopping mink and otters, because they were becoming non-existent. Mink 

was non-existent a long time ago. We see on mink track maybe about one every 



three years. But maybe we see one to three, maybe they-re exisiting now. 

We got to quit trapping I though that was kind of crazy. And on otter, they 

eat up all our beaver and things like that . They were trying to outlaw that 

too. I think that was kind of crazy. somebody had an idea, it had nothing 

to do with our area it was some different area. 

Representative Nels Anderson: I think it was Washington State, Oregon down 

in the wood area. All concerned, I don't think it's going to apply to Alaska 

it's not going to apply to us up here. 

Charlie Rhea: Mr . Cha irman, I'd like to make an announcement before you 

adjourn the meeting. And that is that there is a Galena Advisory Board 

meeti ng right after you get through. We can stay right here and have it . 

Representative Nels Anderson: Are there any other comments on subsistence 

from the public? And if there aren't any comments then, what I'd like to 

do, if you think of anything else between now and January, Dorothy Larson 

will give you our address and we'd appreciate any letters or telegrams or 

anything else that you would like to share with us so we can use it as we 

try to approach this problem. And I would like to thank all of you for 

coming to the meeting here tonight. We really appreciate your statements and 

thank you very much for comi ng to the meeting. 
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(The entire first portion of this is recorded at such a low volume level that 
'none of it is distinguishable. Occasional words indicate that this is an 
introduction to the subjecbs to be dealt with.) 

Female: 

Male: 

Male: 

For the purposes of the tape, this i s the subsistence work­
shop in Galena, and we would ask-uh--I think I'll just go 
around the room, and a sk each table to come up and just stand 
here and ta l k to the crowd and the tape should cover. Would 
this t able like to start? 

Okay, on the first question on which system we think would give 
the most opportunity for subsistence, we feel that regional 
boards with regulatory powers . But we feel they s~ould be 
possibly twelve boards, based on the regional corporation 
lines for the simple r eason that most of the regional corpora­
tion areas cover a particular lifestyle. 7\nd this area you 
get really three different lifestyles involved. 7\nd, of 
course , we feel that subsistence you should have priority over 
non-consumptive uses. 

7\nd on 2, on the second question, it ' s No . 2 in the \vu.rkbook, 
on (a), some of the statements we got to thfl question, "What 
do you mean when you use the term 'subsiYtencc ' ?" 7\nd there's 
one that said , "being able to go out and shoot a nything I want 
when I want to." 7\nd fishing ancl hunting whenever t hey need it-­
I mean the people that do subsist !.n the areD. Or another is 
n person who lives partly or enl:irely by hunting and fishing. 

7\nd on the question ( ,) , which··- - "thc State policy recognizes 
subsistence use of f i s h ar~d wildlife as priority over conunercinl 
use--conune:r.cial and recreation use ," and it a s ks : "Do you agree 
with that or not?" J\nd, uh, I missccl getting one. '!'hero were 
s ix of us at the tabla , and we had f.lvo "yes"--that we think 
that subsistence use ohould have priority. 

We brought four pointu up in our discusoion . The first oric is-­
and these are po in ts of consensus--wo ta) ked Lhem around ancl 
said , "Yeah, we more or less agree on thio thing." 'l'he fir at is 
thnt we ' re skeptical nbout new government en tities . J\11d a lot of 
timen , as one of them pointed out, thlngs cn:c ~1oing so we J l so 
we say, "Let ' s got il new agency," and, sure enough, things go 
worse . So we'd be vary hesltant to oncloroo th:ls more and more 
bureaucr.1cy. 

•rhe second thing is that we feel that rcgionalization would bo 
uoeful if it had final uny in the state. That ifi, if each region 
hnd tho finnl r;n y ao to how thing::; were going to be used j n its 
region and that could nr. t be ve toed by a higher bo;n:d. 

1rhe Lhird ono--and thir.; coincides with whul the firot table snicl--
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a few of the regions should be more adequately defined in terms 
of land and people. And that might mean twelve regions, it 
might mean fifty regions, or a hundred regions. And objections 
were raised that the more regions you get the more expensive 
it gets, but it might be just the reverse. Because it would 
be very, very expensive here if you wanted somebody f r om 
Fairbanks to make decisions about how game was being used 
down here, you'd have to fly them down because he'd never been 
there before and, you know, living there for a few months so 
he'd get used to it. This looks to us like a very , very 
expensive project, and if there were a lot of smaller regions, 
it might mean a lot less transportation, a lot less paperwork, 
and a lot more direut viewing(?) for the problem. 

The fourth point--I'm not quite sure if I can get this across 
but I'll t.ry--we kind of reached an agreement that chasing a 
definition of subsistence i s a red herring. It' s not the point 
in this way. Subsistence tends t o mean what we call sometimes 
the old way, when people were t aking everything off the l and , 
when there were no steel needles , there were no rifles. There 
wasn't any store-bought thread . It was all bone and wood and 
bark and skin . B~t nobody lives like that anymore. And, so, 
to put things in terms of subsistence vers us non- subsistence , 
in a way is to confuse the issue . J\nd for us the issue in just 
hunti ng, fishing, tr<>pping, mining, wa ter power--the use of the 
r !?sources as they arc by the people who Dre concerned with them. 
J\nd the question is, wha t ' s the best U!:ie? No t , should it be 
subsis tence, commer cial or recreational , and not who should use 
i t . ' The fii:s t question is what i o the bast use . 

Okay, t hen for 2 (b) nnd (c ) , our fceli nCJ wns t hnt these questions 
were simply misworded , because t hey're still pre tending t hat we 
can solve somethi.ng by throwing this word subsistence arouncl. 
J\nd sinco wo concluded thnt you can't , the question couldn 't: 
got any answer from uo . 

Okay, when we ta lked £\ bout whe t her o r not Lhere should he regi onal 
lldviRory councils or regional policy councils , the followi ng 
comments were made : One was thnt it migh t be hard to get coop­
eration throughout tho rcCJion ttnd t hat t:ho r egional boundadoo 
might l>e wrong sinc e it ' s on t ho Yukon Rivor. Upriver people 
might want to rogulnto jt in n11ch a wa y t ha t downriver people 
wouldn't take so much fis h, ancl downrlvor people would want to 
take moro fish. J\nd so it mi.ghL be IMrd to got l1<J rocment on n 
region of that size . 

J\not:hcr conunont w.:iu t ll:l t: o ne problem wJ t.11 tho J!COlic nt: sys tem i!l 
that these l ocal advJuory thlngn don ' t lwva monoy for travel or 
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training on how to make the polic ies; that possibly the 
problem could be solved by just making local things effective 
by providing that money and training. 

The third comment was that it might be possible if we did have 
regional councils, they would have more power than local ones. 
And there was some concern that if they took a region like this 
and elected the people to get on there, then Fairbanks might 
pull all the votes and put all their people on there. And so , 
if they do it that way, they should have either appointed by the 
GOvernor, or some way to district it out so that not all the 
people would get elected from the biggest city in each region. 

And then we addressed the question of would this--which manage­
ment system would be the most--of fer the most opportunities 
for subsistence users. And one comment was that it wouldn't 
make any difference . It' s just one more level of bureaucracy . 
And the other comment was that we really didn 't have enough 
information to decide b~cause the wuy--how loosely we t a l ked-­
what information we had wasn ' t enough to t ell whether i t would 
be any better. 

And then on the question of how we define subsistence, there 
were five or six at our table , but there was only two left by 
t he time we got to t hat. Some went home . So we only had two 
definitions. One definition of subsistence is use of fish and 
game resources for food and clothing, and the o t her definition 
of subsis tence is the taking of game by persons who do not have 
an:~ other visible means of support. 

J\nd on the ques tion do we agree with t he State's aubsistcnce 
priority , two votes "yes . " 

Do you have n comment in the back? Gary , do you wa~t to come up? 
Would you mind :oming up here that we could get it on t ho tape 
recorder? It might be yood . 

(mostly indistinguishublc-- too low) On this subsistence . • • . 
hunting and fishing ..•. when I go out on my s nowmachine . 

/\re you on the l ocal ndvisory council? 

Yes . 

Jlavc you met lately? 

No. 

nut you' re t hi nking about mooting now? Maybe talki11g about 
t his klncl of. a thing? Docs j t have t1ny conunents on t h ts. . 
(i ndis tinguishable) • . . 

Our udvit:Jory committoo cnn Git dnwn now. 
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To the question of which management constitutes the 
the subsistence is ·unanimous that regional, in that it wou·ld 
be closer to the people in the area and the availability of 
game and fish in the area. 

It was also kicked around that any action 
would have to be an improvement over what now. 

Uh, the region as it's marked, it was felt .that it would 
probably be better than breaking it up in that the fish of 
the Yukon River would all stay in the district until they 
went into Canada. And if you broke up the river into different 
sections, then each section would be controlling the fish as 
they would come into the section, and that's. the cause of one 
of the problems that the State has now. 

And to the council--to the advisory council--we have two opinions 
that were to be bigger than seven members in that to allow a 
vacancy for each village that would be affected by, say, the 
fish run up the river, so that each village would huve some 
input--some say--to the situation as it was affecting the 
village itself. The other was that if it was going to be a 
seven member council, then the region itself should be divided 
into seven segments and one member. elected from each segment. 
'l'hat would pr.event all of the members, say, from coming out of 
Fairbunks, and again having them make a decision on something 
that's going to happen down here and they ha.ve no idea what's 
going on down here. 

To the first question on what do you meun when you use the word 
0 subsistence ," we had two definitions . One, to hunt and fish 
to supplement store-bought items. The other would be to people 
who live in the area in the bush country relying on food--the 
fish and the game--for the major. part of their food items. 
That's all we had. 

(indlstinguishable--improperly reconled--apparently at one 
point someone tried to move the mike closer to the speaker. 
The speaker is a native ~~man if this will help someone to recall.) 
. . . . • Subsistence mel'n for tho se who need fis h and game for 
survival only, and not themselves. 1\nd then we have we should 
have more control over management of livestock . • . . . 

In answer to t ho first question it was decided amongst us that 
t he regional boar.cl concept should. . • (indistinguishable). Even 
realizing the expense of the r egional concept, we feel that 
greater public input would be realized i n this concept, ond 
regulation would be better suited to the nrea served ln dealing 
with local problems. 1\nd the region, we felt, s hould lmve 
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regulatory powers. And a portion of the group felt that the 
region should be broken into smailer parcels, part of the group 
did. And we felt that regulation differences throughout the 
larger regional area could be settled within the region without 
outside help from people who did not live •.• And subsistence 
should have priority and quotas set ·by the regional board. 

The best definition we could come up with for subsistence was 
that it was not final. Mayor Vinson said that he felt that no 
subsistence between fishing was starvation. And the answer 
to the seven of sitting there was "yes" to subsistence. 

I'd like to ask if anybody would like to come up and make a 
statement of any kind about subsistence that they didn't get 
to make at your small table. And we'll record that and then 
we'll move on to the other discussions. Is there anybody who 
would like to make any kind of comment about subsistence? 

Yeah, I want to make a comment. I've heard a lot about sub­
sistence and talked a lot about subsistence. 1\nd one thing 
you want to be sure, you know, that the Indians didn't invent 
the word "subsistence." The word was invented by somebody 
other than a native, and now he hates the word because you 
made it. And he hates the meaning of the word. Now, all of 
a sudden, he's highly educated and he's been through college, 
but he doesn't know the meaning of "subsistence ." He doesn't 
know what it means. This way--go back in history--as far as 
you want to go back. First of a ll, the black people from 
Africa. When they wanted to use them for trade, they did. 
Used them like dogs. Now tlmt' s turning back, that wheel is 
turning over. Getting more blacks than whites. They're getting 
to be less Indians. Dut why should we kill a culture, why 
should we kill a lifestyle of the na tive people for the life­
style of another person? There is a meaning for subsistence . 
'rhere is a way to define it, but the courts of the land will 
not let you de fine it because they want it to be done in the 
one cultural way. They want everybody to fall in the groove 
and l et the native die. Let his culture die; they care less. 
All we asking for all the time for is the continuing use of 
our culture--as long as we can continue to see our people have 
a culture ancl utilize that culture. l\nd it ' s the re to be 
util ized; it's here; it will be here; it has been here . nut 
I'm afraid by a lot of education, a lot of skullduggery with the 
Federal r- .vernment, we 're gonna lose. 

I got oue thing I want to repeat. I heard it at the 7\FN 
convention when they were talking about subsistence. And some 
of the nn t ivc people were saying it, and I feel it's true. 
That subsistence is not just a matter of taking food out of the 
streams or off the land. '1'0 the native it ' s a matter of religion, 
of culture. It's actually a spiritual thing to t hem in a lot 
of instances. J\nd this is somethi ng t hat, of course, you can 
put no valuation on. It exceeds t he dollar value t hey take out 
in ~1rs, or what have you. nut to some of them, no t necessaril~ 
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to all, it is a spiri~ual type of ~xperience and it 
necessity for them, reg~rdless of .what· they make in a cash 
economy. And it's something that has to be considered, and . 
yet I know of no way to figure it. Bu~ it's something that 

was--that I heard that I felt was so true. 

You're right. There's a story with every· move that's made. 
With ever: :illing of every animal, the skinning of every 
animal, .with the taking of birch bark, or willow bark, or 
anything from the land, there's a story goes with every bit 
of it and that part of the life. I wrote a little article 
whe~ I was in Juneau--32 things that are utilized every day 
in the life of a subsistence user. There's 32 things that's 
used every day, work of art, different things that's used. 
So it's not only fish and game, it's not only moose and the 
fish. There are other things to it. 

I think that no matter how much money a person had, if he's 
used to a certain lifestyle--like if a man makes a thousand 
dollars and he can't go out to hunt and fish whenever he needs 
to or wants to, he can't go down to the supermarket and buy 
that. I think if a person lives in a certain area and lives 
in a certain style, they should be left alone to do as they 
see. Because they're going to take care of themselves, and 
it' s been that way for years and years. More rules and regu­
lations just makes things unnatural. 

Well , thanks for talking about that. We would like now to 
ask you if you have any questions about State government or 
policies or some of t he other issues in the tabloid that you 
would like to t alk about. Or if you would like to talk about 
local things, if you would like to make comments about what ' s 
going on in Galena that we can record and talk about and get 
to the people that might affect some of the conditions in Galena. 
I'm just going t o turn this meeting over to you all and ask 
that you ask us what you would like to know. We can talk a little 
bit about the permanent fund money, if you're interested in hearing 
about that. I don't have a formal presentation, but I can answer 
some questions on it. If: you would just like kinda to talk about 
it. 

Whnt has become of Governor Hammond's proposal for 1\laska, Inc. 
in relation to the permanent fund? 

Governor Hammond ' s proposal i s still a proposal, uh, for. t ho 
earnings off of the permanent fund . 1\ lot of people arc confused 
about what the money is from the permanent fund. 'l'he bulk of 
the money is to be i.nvestcd and to make more money off of that. 
And the money that is made off of that investment , tho interest 
or the earnings , could bo divided into something like tho 
Alasku, Inc. concept. Uh, it's still a proposal. It has n't gone 
very for. I don' t know whether it ' s i n bill form or not. 
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No . It is uh--

--just interest money. 

It's just, it would just -be, I mean, not small because you're 
talking about several hundred tqousand' dollars growing all 
the time--but essentially what y·ou' re talking about would be 
something like the $6,000 here. 'l'his is just one example 
that could be divided among all the people in the state--sort 
of dividend concept like that, where everyone would become a 
stockholder in Alaska, and, you know, bo earning dividends off 
of that--you know, it's cut into a payrack plan for the earnings. 

Well, I thought that in the original concept of the presentation 
was the money was to be invested in somewhat like it was put 
forth in here, you know--small business loans, or bond, or 
however. And that through the profit-making corporation struc­
ture, but that's not the case. 

No, that is the case. I.et me back up. One thing nbout the 
permanent fund that you have to remember is that the money tha t•s 
in it nllocated by the statute must make more money. Okay? 
It can't be given away or anything like that--it's got to be 
income producing. First of all , the law right now reads that 
a minimum of 25% of certain oil anti gas monics --in other words, 
not taxes on the land that tl1e pipeline is on but the wellhead 
tax and things like that are going into the permanent fund. 
The majority of this money must be investedi it can't be spent. 
And by invcstment--it must produce an incomei it must make more 
money . '.1.'he income goes i n to the general fund and can be spen t . 
Now, some of that money could be divided out into things like 
Alaska , Inc. It could go out to community development loans i 
it could go out to economic development by conununiU.es. Dack 
to the public forum, people sa.ld they wanted economic development 
in renewable r.esou.r.ces :industries, which means things like 
agricultur.e, fis heries, t i mber, things like that. And they w«nted 
thnt money that was hear.nod to go into onhn11cing tho t. There arc 
several. r evolving loan funds in the state which could be inc.reased 
if there was mor e money available to be loaned out to communities-­
things like t hat. Hight now it's looking to us ns though most 
of the money will----( end of tape). 
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••• However, compoundi'ng the problems of providiqg 
that type of local input is a fact of course that 
the constitution speculates that those resources 
be~ong . tp all the citizens 'of the state and if we're 
to provide some sox·t of a lay-gut prerogative ·to 
the1 local·s to constrain participation and utilization 
of those resources by people who live elsewhere, we 
fly into direct conflict with that constitutional 
mandate. However, I have concluded after looking at 
the alternatives and discussing this matter with 
numbers of people throughout the state, that it is 
high time we took a more direct look at providing 
greater and more significant regional input. I was 
the instigator, if that's the appropriate word, of 
the advisory board concept some years ago, which 
was an effort to provide at the local level, some 
significant input and while that has provided son1-.! , 
tha lack of formal structure, the lack of funding, 
and the perception of many at the local level that 
the advisory boards have been ineffective , quite 
frankly, necessitates that we address this problem, 
look at something more formalized and more capable 
of directly providing that meaningful input. Now 
the old regional board concept that was mentioned 
that I had initi ally proposed works something like 
this . It would have said section the state off 
into say twelve districts in which there would be 
up to six advisory boards. Those advisory boards 
would be formed at the l ocal l evel, by the local 
people, not appointed by the Governor. They would 
in turn elect one of their people to serve on a 
so-called regional board. They in turn, would elect 
one of the regional board mE::mbership to serve on a 
master board. The local regional board would 
promulgate the regulations and they would then be 
conveyed to the master board which would be compelled 
to approve them unless they did one of two things : 
if they flew in the face of broad public interest 
or they abused sound conservation practice. Now one 
of the things that would have accomplished is 
permitted t he local people to determine what they 
wish in the way of regulations, to have a represen­
tative that they had in fact selected, take their 
case to the master board and sell it rather than 
have some political appoin tee serving as a board 
member. Another problem is that the constitution 
obliga tes that the board be s elected by the governor. 
There is some problems the n with tha t democratic 
process that I mentioned before . The other problem 
is there is a great fear and apprehension, particularly 
from some of the urban areas that if the local regional 
boards we re provided with that significantly upgraded 
authority to promulgate regulations, that somehow t hey 
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catch-all w~en we said that .:the master board 
review the reguiat·iohs propqsed by tile. area 
and veto them on tne ·bas·is of broad public interest 
was a suffic

1

ient safeguard, ·but there was appre­
hension, particularly from the urban areas that 
defeated this bill, that you .mentioned Governor 
Egan ultimately· vetoed. And incidentallYi, that 
bill simply h~d, on .. ,a trial basis, select;ed one 
area of the state in which to try this on fo~ size. 
But that's all water over the dam. In dusting off 
the regional board concept, I tried to key into 
the blueprint which is evolving, the input that 
I have heard from various interest groups and 
individuals throughout the state during the interim 
pe~iod and I want to make it clear that the proposal 
that you may see floated out is not structured in 
concrete. We have to come up with something for 
people either on one hand to look at as a target 
for today and start carving upon and adjusting 
rather than just talk in nebulous, esoteric terms 
as to what we're attempting to accomplish. But ..:: 
instructed my departments and agencies to take 
the regional board concept and instead of working 
excessively to tell us why it couldn't work to ·. 
provide me with a means and method as to how it could 
be made to work and that's what they're in the 
process of doing and have been for some time. 
The next step in that process is to take this 
proposal, float it out through public forums, 
various interest groups, respective native corporations 
in the case of those areas that are under native 
corporate -in large measure fall within the perview 
of native corporate entities and to solicite input 
to make the adjustments necessary. The pr oposal 
that has currently been worked on, and again I 
want to make it clear that it is not yet the Governor's 
proposal. It's simply a blueprint leading hopefully 
to a proposal that will e ither be submitted in the 
form of legislation or to the degree possible, 
implemented through regulations. And incidentally, 
the proposal that I'm going to discuss here this 
morning could in large measure be implemented 
through regulation. What it suggests doing is 
establishing something, I think six regional areas 
and these, you'll see depicted on the map, in those 
areas, there would then be a continuation of the 
advisory boards in the manner in which they are now 
structured, new boa rds could be created. Then a 
selection, probably the chairma n of perhaps seven 
of thos e advisory boards, because we don't want to 
have a top-heavy regional board, perhaps s even or 
that's not a fixed f igure, maybe every chairman of 
every advisory board ought to serve on the regional 
board. Those people would then get together and 
within the region themselves, come forth with a 
concensus opinion as how to trea t some of the conflicts 
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to how those fish should be distributed. I think 
appropriately those concerned should be worked out 
to th~ ma!dmwn· extent possible· within" that region. 
Hopefully, they t~eh would convey to the existing 
board st~uctur~ if we do -not 9hange that, their 
proposed regul~tions1 the ~eth9ds and means, seasoris 
apd bag limits an4 that ,type of considerat~on for 
proposed regulation. . The master, ~f you will·, or 
the exisitng, current Board .of Fish and Board of Game 
would then receive all those proposed regulations 
with the r~conunendations from the regional board. 
And, I think there would be an expressed mandate 
and appropriately should be an expressed mandate 
to those boards then to view those . proposals and 
those recommendations and act upon them within those 
two board criteria. Are the proposals emanating 
from the regions in the broad public interest and 
two, do they do violence to sound conservation 
practice or be in accordance with. But in addressing 
the subsistence issue, one of the things that we're 
looking at is a proposal, and. I think is mandated, 
is that the regional board, this collection of 
advisory board representation, come forth with a 
subsistence plan because we recognize that the 
subsistence needs and obligations in different areas 
and districts are quite different. We think it 
appropriate for those boards to determine then, 
the perameters of their region what that plan should 
be and to actually, formally structure such a plan 
with priorities and appropriate means of addressing 
subsistence needs. Now all this, obviously, is 
going to take additional funding. You can't have 
anything that suggests the formalization of the 
advisory board system which exists now, bringing 
them together into a regional board concept without 
providing at least some funding for transportation, 
operational expenses, per diem and so forth. That 
funding could be very significant and very substantial. 
Again, I'm not suggesting this is easily accomplished; 
I'm not suggesting that we have the funds available 
to fully implement this at this stage and time. I'll 
give you very briefly, a thumb-nail sketch of the 
prognosis of the state finances at the moment, 
simply this, we're looking at the revenue short-fall 
of roughly one hundred fifty to two hundred million 
over what we'd anticipated here six months ago. 
We're currently obligated to borrow two hundred 
million on future r evenues. We are, what I term, 
dangerously dependent upon one resource, that being 
oil to fund 60% of our cost of government right now. 
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future. I Now I 1'·m ·.nou preaclling. gloomi in· the !ong 
term we'l~ ~e~ a~ie to · impl~ent something of ·this 
nature qu~te ¥ell., 'but I think l:'le ·'shpuld · lodk to 
structuring somet.ning that .has accord: of most 
of · the peoP.le that significantly and adequately 
addresses· the pi'ol:>liem of subsistence needs .and .• 
pr9vides a m~aning~u·f and viable alternative to 
what we're looking at pr9pos~d in some of the congres­
sional legislation·, which, should we not adequately 
address the subsistence needs, aqequate~y provide 
for local, meaningful public input, we'~e . going to 
find imposed upon · u~ by congress, I ~eilr~ so· 
the specifics and . the particulars, again, \:•I'd like 
tb point out, ·are not structured in concrete. 
They're subject to cQange. I'm always increasingly 
reluctant . and gun-shy of floating anything out on 
an exploratory basis because when you explore some­
thing, too often it translates in the public minds as 
an endorsement. You know what this idiot is attempt­
ing to impose upon you. So, I want to make it clear 
that I'm soliciting input, that we're flexible in 
that regard. Mlybe there should be more regions, 
maybe there should be different methods of selecting 
the members of that regional board, maybe the 
regional board should have more authority,Cl'ld mind 
you the only way that greater authority could be 
provided would be through legislative mandat~. I 
can, through administrative fiat, through regulatory 
devices, do essentially all this right now. The 
only thing required then is the funding necessary 
to implement it. But we could consolidate and 
formalize the regional board concept among the advisory 
board, structure the regions themselves, convey to 
the exisitng Fish and Game Boards our desires that 
they promulgate regulations in accordance with the 
regional board input so long as they meet those 
criteria I mentioned earlier. And maybe that's a 
significant and appropriate first step before we 
perhaps, take a look at structuring . it into legislation. 
I know that many of the regions want greater authority 
when it comes to promulgating regulations. The 
concern and the difficulty of providinq that additional 
authority, I think to any who have been engaged 
in the legislative process, are apparent. Let's 
face it, under a current apportionment Anchorage 
virtually owns the legislature, both the house and 
senate. With an additional 40,000 people they'll 
have both of them. Anchorage is not going to permit 
their constituency to be screened out casually from 
engaging in hunting/sport fishing activity in areas 
of the state that they normally have recourse to unless 
there's a good, sound and solid reason for so doing. 
I ask in turn that the regions address the issues of 
subsistence, certainly we have structured into state 
policy. That obligation that where there are conflicts 
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paramount. I ttiin~ under tHat broad po~lcy statement, 
the r~gional ~oards haveJ ,every' right . and· just~f icat.ion 
to assure, ' under "their subsistence management plans ' 
that regulations comform to that. And I'm sure .that 
the master boards or the Board of ~ish and Game would 
recognize that and implement those regulations th~t 
met that criteria. Now I don't need to tell you in 
greater detail the mechani.cs and concepts embodi~d 

· in this than you ' perhaps wan-t to hear, I'd be 
pleased to respond to any questions you might ha!e 
but we have not publicized or made too much public 
noise on this because now we're at the stage of 
having something to draw in public input, consult 
with the various regional corporations, interest 
groups, Public Forums, and what have you as to what 
you think a better means of perhaps adjusting some 
of these particulars might be. So, with that I'll 
open up to any specifics you might have in the way 
of questions on that concept~ 

Yes. 

What would be the trade-offs of the state spending 
money for that type of authority as opposed to 
maybe on other government functions such as welfare 
communities or something like that? It seems to me 
there would be some trade-offs, not just to spend 
so many million on this ••••• unintelligible •.. 

Well, it would be pretty difficult to determine 
what those needs might be that could be reduced 
initially. There may be some spin-outs of that 
nature and I would hope there would be, but let 
me say that I suspect they would not occur. I don't 
think you'd suddenly say or find the legislature saying 
"alright now that this particular region of the state 
has greater capability of utilizing perhaps subsistence 
resource and assured perpetuation of that resource 
is suddenly that we can reduce this or that program~. 
I don't th i nk that there are such trade-offs,· politically. 

Is there any ball-park figure for the relationship 
between competition or Fish and Game between sub­
sistence demands and sports demands? 

What d i d you say? Is there any ... 

I'm wondering what the relationship is between sports 
demands and subsistence demands. 

Well, I th i nk they vary with the regions of the state. 
I think they vary with the abundance of the resource 
within those regions. Again, I think that's a deter­
mination better met by the local people who live within 
that region than, I think then it s hould be evaluated 
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Now that there is tremendous competition on the 
resources availabie by sport •.• 

In some areas there are, yes . 

. Yes. (acknowledging a question) 

Is there any way in which the proposed regional 
board concept would influence the interaction between 
the state and the federal government in •.• 

Yes , indeed there is. This is one of the things 
that, quite frankly, necessitated my view of us 
taking off the shelf, this proposal. I had a chance 
to meet with the Secretary of Interior and of course 
both Congressmen Udall and Siberly and then those 
dealing with the 02 legislation, Senator Jackson and 
frankly unless the state comes up with something that 
significantly addresses the whole question of sub­
sistence, quite frankly, the regional corporations 
and native groups are going to be a prime determinant 
of whether or not that issue is adequately addressed 
in state effort. I think you're going to find something 
structured into federal law that could splinter your 
management system as partially federal and partially 
state manageme~t. You could have some peculiar sit­
uations that permit, for example, subsistence activities 
on lands that normally, such activities are not per­
mitted . Now I've floated out this as a rather, I 
think, significant problem and one of concern if I 
were a native subsistence useir who was accommodated 
under federal law for th ·~ time being to perrni t sub­
sistence activities on park land. I suspect the first 
time you have a group of school teachers from Michigan 
touring that park land and they stumble across forty 
caribou gut piles, there are going to be pressures to 
remove that type of activ ity from the traditional park 
concept. 
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sUbs~steng_e an~ . ~~en prptect t.~.er other .na t~ral vallues 
~nd earl -ft '&Oil\~thing ~lse~ tniY I '.m an •advocate of 
this qooperat~iv~ · man~qement idea beca~s~, \ well nobody 
can· define4 subsistence., I have said 'subsisteriqe, the .' 

.. definition o~ it, is dj,fficult' to define as' the wora . 
porn9graphy. Ev~rybody knows ~t w~en you see it; but 
to put a de~inition on it is difficult. But we a11. 
know 'that we can't have sunsistence w~thout habitat. 
So the !one thing you coulq , structur~ into a cooperative 
management . system that had federal, state, native 
corporate lands and what have you embodied in it is 
that a prioritized prime usage that places habitat 
i.e. subsistence at the top of the heap. You're going 
to permit other activities but they're not going to 
do violence to habitat in those particular· cooperative 
management areas. But if we don't come up with a 
program, I think you're · going to f.ind some other 
alternatives that are g9ing to be far less acceptable 
to Alaskans in general. And I think those who have 
opted, and let me say just one more word, we've 
heard a lot of areas have speculated, well maybe 
federal management would be better than state manage­
ment, and I . suggest to you that I think there is a 
growing awareness, particularly in the north slope 
areas· that---what is suggested to be imposed upon 
them insofar as the bowhead whale constraints are far 
more stringent on the federal level than what we at 
the state level would impose. So there are trade-offs. 
Excuse me, go ahead . 

In a way, you answered my question . by stating that 
we haven't come up with a definition of subsistence 
as such. If we're going to try and determine these 
regional boundaries for subsistence purposes, who 
would be, has the state come up with a definition 
for a subsistence person? 

. ~:..:' 
• . , .. t 

No. Again, I say that the regJ.onal can better determine 
within their confines what qualifies as subsistence 
and what would be an appropriate subsistence user. I 
think that that can be done and should be done region­
ally. I don't think there is any sort of blanket 
definition. I think a subsistence user in Barrow may 
be something entirely different than a subsistence user 
in Rristol Bay or Anchorage and the question is, do 
we equate subsistence with monetary, spiritual, cultural 
considerations. I think those things vary throughout 
the state. The best definition that I have come up ~ith 
personally, in subsist~nce, is that which sustains 
body and soul. Because it may have nothing to do 
with monetary or actual physical dependency and yet be 
just as pertinent for some person to engage in something 
as it may be fo r those who are actually physically depen­
dent upon the resource . Yes Bob . 
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One of the problems, again suggest in the approach of 
this nature, let's take the cow-moose situation. You 
may have an area in which there are five or six advis­
ory boards and say 3 of them come out favoring the cow­
moose season, 2 against or vice versa. Then the board 
comes in with a proposal and those who are not accommo­
dated are furious with the board and pressuring either 
through the legislative process or what have you to 
make · adjustments. And quite frankly, if you think we've 
got problems with Fish and Game management now, you just 
let us politicians start managing Fish and Game from the 
legislative floor. Unless we address this better, 
provision of local input, meaningful perceptual, mean­
ingful local input, you're going to find increasingly 
these issues brought to the legislative floor and 
then on the base of who's got political muscle of the 
moment resolved. Let me suggest to you again with the 
urban areas acquiring greater and greater representation 
in both houses of the legislature under existing appor­
tionment plans, I don't think the rural areas are going 
to be as well accommodated as they would be under an 
approach of this nature. If we could do it, but I would 
far rather have that area say alright, we want your 
five or six boards to sit down together and give us one 
r e commendation to this master board as to whether you 
favor or disfavor a cow-moose season. And then, if 
that cow-moose season can be accommodated in the view 
of the Board of Game on a sound biological basis, fine. 
If the local people still don't want it, the board and 
the department should not impose upon them simply be­
cause it's biologically tolerable. It should be 
then imposed only if it's a biological necessity. 
Any other specific questions? 

I have one. And I'm quite naive in the issue of sub­
s i stence , I'll admit, but it would s eem to me that 
even under reapportionment, which I don't complete ly 
understand, that in terms of sport fishing and hunting 
that the cost of gasoline and that sort of thing, the 
sports fishermen are going to have to pay to get to the 
game maybe in another five or ten years is in the long 
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Yes. The pric ~ of gasoline, as I see it, has got to 
keep rising and it seems to me that in the length of 
time that I've been in Alaska, less and less of the 
people that I knew, like in Apchorage, are going out 
hunti~g because it's costing them m6re to do that. Do 
you think that's an issue that ••• 

I think the pressures, agai'n, I would defer to some of 
those from the region and let me say that the pressures 
in Bristol Bay area where I came from going like this 
astronomical increments, quantum leaps per year and I 
don't think that has been a deterrent in general but 
maybe it has been in some areas. I think a bigger 
deterrent has been the reduction of the resource and 
the fact that you can't go out as easily and qet moose 
no ·matter where you cjo. in the state as you could ten years 
ago. But I don't think that's an inhibiting factor, 
quite frankly" at this stage in time. It may become so. 
Any other ••• 

I'd like to ask you one. I just am curious as to what 
the difference is between an in-state consumption and 
out of state consumption of the resources is, and I've 
never quite understood. Would a regulation, if it were 
on a local level be able to restrict the use of the re­
source of that level to Alaskans? 

Only to this extent , only to this extent. Let's say, 
~gain, taking the Bristol Bay area, which is a prime 
sport fishing and hunting area that has numbers of people 
from outside the state visit it each year. I suspect if 
there were deemetl inadequate amount of whatever game, let ' s 
say moose, in this case , or caribou, to provide for the 
"subsistence needs" of the people, then lf:?t 1 s face it. 
Probably, the subsistence user, the guy who lives there, 
it's hard to make a case of the subsistence user who can 
hire an airplane and fly up from Montana or what have you 
to hunt in the Bristol Bay area. If there are inadequate 
game stock there through seasons and bag limits, you can't 
say "no non-resident can hunt or fish here". But you can 
say "we 're going to close the oeason at the time of the 
year that the primary trophy hunts occur". If you had 
closed during September and October or August, any take 
of caribou and moose, there would be virtually no sports­
men that would appear on th~ scene. Or if you were to 
screen out the transport of game by aircraft, that's 
the only way they can address it - through methods and 
means and bag limits, to treat everybody ali ke. You're 
not going to say the Anchorage-ite or the Fairbanks-ite 
cannot come to Bristol Bay. If he comes down there, he 
submits himself to the same constraints that just coin­
cidentally enable the local to utilize that resource tL, a 
much better degree than somebody else. That's the maximum 
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to !lsel'~ctively ~ocus the ··use· t~ tnbse t!lat ' Ii:ve .. ' 
in that 'area. · And, of· course, that 's· 'What scares 
the ~evil , out of a lot 'of people whe don~t want ' 
to be .obligated to do that. ·oRay, well I've talked 
too much. I would appreciate that, again,· that you 
would bear in mind that this isn't structured in · 
concrete. I~d like you to deal frankly. with the . 
method of whether or not you · think th'e 1 six regions 
is appropriate. or whether th~re should be more 
regions and the method cf determining who sits on 
those boards and whether the boards should have more 
a~thority instead of simply proposing, making r .ec­
ommendations and then also, one other consideration 
in our proposal would have an individual from the 
regional boards goes to the Fish and Game Board 
hearings, take their case in hand, present it to 
that board, then one thing it would do is assure 
the local people that they had their ·representative -
not somebody the governor had selected or imposed 
upon them. Their representative would go in and 
convey to them why their regulations were or were 
not accepted. The other presence on those boards 
would be frankly, a non-voting presence of the 
area Fish and Game and in the case of federal land 
holders, perhaps somebody from Fish and Wildlife 
Service and I'm not sure, there's a third. What's 
the other one? Public Safety. So that those people 
were able to sit in with the local regional boards 
and convey to them their concerns and to on the other 
hand, listen to the concerns of the people locally 
and try to adjust their views accordingly. 

Yes. (acknowledging a question) 

Some of us have input which we may provide which 
isn't exactly relevant to this structure of regions 
and so forth. This is still the time to do that? 

Oh sure, you bet! The next thing we're going to 
do, frankly, solicit and pull in some of the people 
who - representatives from various interest groups, 
to have them sit clown and go into an in-depth review 
of some of these proposals and I can assure you the 
end product will be quite different, I suspect from 
what we're talking about today. Go ahead (acknowled­
ing question) 

I was wondering if the state is looking for a defin­
ition of subsistence so it could use it in a regula­
tory manner, you know like ah ••. 

I think everybody's been looking for one for at least 
the last 15 years and if you have one, we'd be 
interested i n hear i ng wha t you propose. 
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be interested in using 

Again, I don't think you can come up with a defin­
ition that would apply in all regions, precisely 
the same. I think there has to be a flexibility 
whether you could come up with a broad statement 
that would be meaningful, I don't, I have not heard 
it and I have not - I don't have much faith that 
we're going to come up with one of that nature in · 
the immediate future. 

O.K. 

I might say that the cost of implementation, if we 
went with this program , first year costs would be 
$900,000, which suggests that if it's implemented 
it will be implemented late in the year, after 
(end of tape). 
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GLENNALLEN PUBL~C HEARING 

October 3, 1977 

Representative Nels Anderson - We'll call the meeting to order, those 

of you that don't know me, my name is Nels A. Anderson from the House 

of Representatives and the Chairman on the Interim Committee on Sub-

sistence. To my left is Representative Steve Cowper, Chairman of 

th~ State House Finance Committee and also a member of the Int cim 

Committee on Subsistence. Our Staff Assist a nt is Dorothy Larson. 

We came in from Anchorage today , and we did hopefully publicize the 

meeting. 

I would nust very briefly like to get into what the meeting is all 

about. Our goal our specific goal is to find our from the people how 

they feel about the term subsistence and how subsistence ought to be 

rcqulatcd in the Sta te of Alaska. We'd like to know how you feel 

about subsistence , wheth e r or not you feel subsistence ought to b e 

termed s ubsistence and how it ou~ht to be defined anJ what the State 

s hould do to protect subsistence . We fo rmed the Committee , the 

Legislative Council formed the Committee , and authorized us to travel 

throughout the various par ts of the Stato, we've ~lready held hearings 

in Dillin gham , Kipnuk, Nome and Kotzebue and aft e r this hearin q we will 

be hold i ng hearings tomorrow night in Ne nana and then we will be 

hold i ng other hearings in Anchorago during the AFN,INC. Convention 
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ana also Ba rrow in Decemb er. 

At this time I would like to ask Rep r esentative Steve~ c owper if he 

h a s a n y comments at this time . lNot audib l e) 

Representative Steve Cowper - Yes , I would like to add one thin g. 

I will have to go b a ck to Wash ington and tell the Congressmen what 

the people in Alaska want of the D- 2 hearings , of course there is a 

lot to that. But one of the things that Congress is going to take on , 

is the definition of subsistence . They said and made it clear they 

will make a subsistence preference on Federal Lands, so it's useful 

to me to find out what you think, people who are subsistence users 

or not. Where you hunt , how much you take, whether they are in con-

flict with sports huntin g and fishing so we can find out what kind of 

conflicts there are so we can try to iron thing s out . So I may fire 

a que stion or two from time to time aft er a t es timony wnich would 

relate to the D- 2 Bill. Thank you. 

Representative Nel s Anderson - At this time we 'd like to invite the 

peopl e , public to testify and qive your vi e ws o n the issue of sub -

sistence. Is there anyone at thi s time that would like to stand ul 

and te stify? " 

Christ in e Yazzie - "I would first like to thank the Committee and its 

membnrs f6r this opportunity to speak o n behalf of J\llTNA,INC. and also 

those of J\llTNJ\' s s har e hold e r s . My name i s ChristinE; Yazzie, Act ing 

Prenident of J\HTNA, Inc. In its o wn way, the question of subsistence 

and s ubsistence u sage will probably b e just as important an issue as 

tho Land Claims Set tlement Ac ; . First of all , we do s up port tho Alaska 



f ! . 

Christine ·Yazzie' s testimony cl 't. . 

Federation of Natives proposed / ammendments to H.R.39, more common ly 

known as the Udall Bill in reg ~ rds to subsistence and protection 
{ 

thereof. These ammendments, although still further subject to further 
l' 
lj 

modification when deemed necessary proposes to in essense that con-
~/ 

tinued subsistence usage be re1cognized and protected on Native Lands, 
I 

and on the Public Lands of Alctska by Alaskan Natives and other Alaska 

residents . 

We feel that subs i stence must be recognized as a major cog in the past , 

present, and future cycles of our heritage. Subsistence stands today 

as in the past, our way, our life and our culture. To view sub -

sistence as a commodity in light of the Land Claims Sett l emen t Act 

of 1971 to be alternately traded or devalued as one would common shares 

of stock, is to our way ot thinking and particularly those of our 

e l ders almost uncomrrehensible. Subsistence is anchored in our lifestyle. 

It is rooted in our traditions and our communities. Many people, I am sure, 

would like t o take the at titude that wh en the Settlement Act was 

passed on Decemb er 18, 19 71, subsistence was su r gically removed from 

our way of life, cleanly, effortlessly and painlessly , this was not 

the case. 

In a memorandum prepared by Stewart L. Udall in July 1977 e ntitl ed , 

11 The J\laska Native s and Th ei r Subsistence Rights: A discussion of 

th e constitutional q uest ions." Mr. Udall quite a ptly ma de t h e f.ol -

lowing points: and I q uote, "Wh e n Conqress passed the Ala s ka Native 

Claims Settleme n t Act to settle the aboriginal la n d claims o f th e 

Alaska Natives, it dire cted th e Secretary of Interior to take affirma-

tiwe s t eps to protect the existing subsistence activities of t h e Alaska 



Natives on the federally owned lands of Alaska . The legislature 

history of Alaska Native Claims Settlement Ac t reveals that it was 

also anticipated that the St~~~ of Alaska could and would assist 

the Secretary in evolving policies which would likewise protect the 

subsistence activities of Natives on the lands granted to the State 

under the Alaska Statehood Act . " Unquote. 

While specific recommendations and/or legal analysis of the com­

plexities of the subsistence issue is beyond the scope of this 

statement of policy, AHTNA feels that several points should be com­

mented on .. 

(1) The question has been asked, should subsistence be taken into 

c0 ~s ideration when land and water use policies are developed? 

AHTNA. feels that the question of subsistence and the development of 

land and water use policies are on the whole, entirely dependent on 

sound management of environmental and other ecological considerationH: 

therefore, our response is Yes. 

(2) Should Subsistence be defined? 

AHTNA's position on this question is in th e words of AFN' s proposed 

ammendment to th e Udall Bill Sec. 702 (g) and (h). Sec. (g) "Sub­

sistence Uses" include . those customary and traditio nal uses made of 

renewable resources for food, shelter, material, fuel, clothing, 

tools, t r ansportation, and for th e production and selling of traditional 

articles of handcrafts and clothin g. Sec. (h) "Subsiste nce Lands" 

include all public lands the subject of subsistence uses prior to 

December 10, 1971. AHTNA fee l s that for the pu r poses of this state­

ment, furt h er comments on subsistence definitions would only serve to 

confuse and cloud the issue at hand . 
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(3) What should the State do about protecting subs istence uses? 

AHTNA feels that this question can best be met by referrin g to the 

recent caribou permit system introduced into our region this last 

hunting season . AHTNA feels that the mandate. provided by Congress 

in enacting the Land Claims Settlement Act prec ludes a permit drawing 

system whereby a sussistence user may or may not draw a permit to hunt 

for caribou. This system, we feel, is incompatible and conflicts 

with p r evious and contemporary discussions concerning subsistence 

interpretations . We feel that no basis can be found to include sub-

sistence uses on the same level an another person who may be utilizing 

all terrain vehicles or aircraft p lanes in the pursuit of their "u s e 

of natural subsi~tence resources." Therefore , AHTNA strongly objects 

to any permit sy~· tem introduced in our region without adequate pro ­

vision recognizin g subsistence and useage thereof. 

In conclusion , AHTNA feels that the repercussions arising from the 

mis placeme nt of subsistence values today will have its effect on many 

more generations than is comfortable to think about." 

Representative Nels Ande ~ son - I have a question in ref e rrenc e to all 

terrai n vehicles or aircraft planes. Could you be specific on how 

th at would be controlled : " 

(Not audible) 

Representative Steve Cowper - Well, yos I believe (not audible) 

launch ed a plan whether subsistence use or the taking of animals which 

eree not traditionally taken, or by subsistence users over a period of 

years. Specifically, I didn't know about caribou, how the caribou fit 



i~ this · ar~a (not audible} . And I don't know whether the people in 

this region for instance, shoot sheep traditionally for subsistence 

use or not. You feel that all animals should be included under the 

subsistence overall . 

Participant in Audience - I thi n k that you have to draw a line some­

where sooner or later. (not audible). 

Repre sen tat i ve Nels Ander son. - Is there anyone else at th is time that 

would like to give their comments on subsistence. 

to be in writing, it can be an oral presentat ion. 

Francis Hunt, Jr. - My name is Francis Hunt, Jr . 

It doesn't have 

I live in the Kenny 

Lake area and have lived in Alaska for most of my life. Work in this 

area is largely seasonal and many people depe nd on trapping for in-

come during the winter months. I derive a large portion of my income 

from trapping and have done so for over 12 years . I have p ut a lot of 

effort into cutting trails and building cabins and feel it i s unfiir 

that this land is now to be put into a 0-2 Classif ~ cation or turned 

over to Nat i ve Corporations who can keep me from using my trails. I 

feel the law should stipulate that valid prior users o f the land 

should be al low ed to continue without harrassment. 

Alaska's ga me laws adequately protect the animals agninst over 

trapping and it would be unwise for a number of re a~ ons to outlaw 

trapping - both subsistence and non-subsistence. In addition to losing 

an important eco nomic base, such a move would push more people toward 

a confirming, inactive dependent life s tyle . And it is bad for a ll of 

us when anyone is forc e d to give up independence and se lf-relianc e . 

Representative Nels Anderson - Can I have your name again, please? 



Francis Hunt, Jr. - Junior Hunt. 

Nels Anderson - Junior Hunt? 

Francis Hunt Jr . - Yes 

Representative Nels Anderson - Do you have any questions , Steve? 

Representative Steve Cowper - Well, yeah. Now you've been, you're 

like a lot of people in Alaska in that you work seasonally, and you 

come back in the winter and do some trapping, to try to make ends 

meet is that it? 

Franc i s Hunt, Jr . - Yes, that's what I do, yes. I do my trapping 

(inaudible) and it is a great portion of my income . 

Representative Steve Cowper - I tell you, I don't know what to do. 

(inaudible) Trapping, I haven't qiven it much thought. But I suspect 

that we will just move you int0 the same spot as other subsistence 

uses accordinq to the federal definition, I suspect that y o u will be i n-

eluded , and your trappinq would be allow e d. I would like to comment 

on one thing as far as the r egional corporations are concerned. You 

undc:rstand that 's, (inaudible), lnnd is really the corporations. It 

will b e when title is granted . When it finally goes down to them. 

That' s another thing we find i s , to get that land parcelled out to 

see if we can' t get some patents . IlLM has moved p r etty slow about 

it. You know that land is own ed financially , I suppose like any 

private owner, you would have to get permission of the land owner in 

order to uso the land . 

l~rancis llunt, Jr. - The va stness of the land is something else we 'v e 

be~n (inaudible) with. It' s unreal . 
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Representative Steve Cowper - Well, never the less, I do thing that 

something could be worked out after everybody knows who owns what. 

That's part of the problem right there. 

Francis Hunt, Jr . - (iniudible) all the cabins that I have, the work 

and the effort I have put in, cabins I have ... 

Wilson Justin - The Act does recognize pre-existing use. 

Francis Hunt, Jr. - It does. 

Wilson Justin - The Act in (inaudible) does recogni ze p rior usage. 

Also, the (inaudible) crossing Native o wn ed lands is one of the biggest 

fumblinq blocks (inaudibl e) Easements (inaudible). Defining easements 

has taken a lot (inaudible) if you thing everybody i n the country 

(inaudible) that cons t itutes o public caseme n t. Where your trap-

linc rund, I don't know. Wh ether it ' s on Nat ive lands or State 

selections or n- 2 lands. 

Francis Hunt, Jr. - Most of my trapli n e is on Native lands in this area . 

Wilson Justin.- I ' m not familiar with where your trapline is. As far 

as your cabin , and fishing sites, there are provisions protectinq them. 

As far as your traplin e , I couldn't ( i naudible) we ' d have to probably 

work it out on our own. As a private land owner and a person that wants 

to continue his subsistence (inaudible). 

Pa rt icipant in Audienc e - .... providin g it's regJstered . 

Wil so n Justin - Yes, that's · very tr.uo . 



Participant in Audience - I have one myself. It has to be registered 

you have to register it with the (inaudible), easements board (inaudible). 

Wilson Justin - ... trespass with the Bureau of Land Management. 
~ 

They 

don't have the personnel to check up on these. (inaudible) 

Francis Hunt, Jr. - What happens if we don't work something out? You 

know, if (inaudible) way over my head. What will I do? 

Wilson Justin - All I can say is, go see the Assistant Land Planner 

(inaudible) go to the Board. People that make the policy that we work 

by and that's for AHTNA, Inc. and also maybe you 're in the village 

corporations land, which means that you 'll have to appear before the 

appropriate village corporation . The dictate the policies and I and 

the rest of the staff have to carry them out . (inaudible) 

Representative N~ls Anderson - I really don't think that there is very 

much that we can do about this, what's going to be happening on 

regional corporation lands, What we're trying to find out is on 

the Committee is what kind of accomodations can be made taking into 

consideration some of the things that you are referring to, trapping 

on State lands. Wh e ther or not some type of an agreement could be reached 

with the federal government that wher e we can cooperatively manage land 

and also in cooperation with t h e regional corporations that hav e large 

tracts of lands that are going to be in their possession. Th ere is 

legislation that is already on the books that does allow the State 

of Alaska to get into cooperative land and wat e r use manageme nt needs, 

and, hopefully some of the questions that you have raised can b e 

satisfied through that legislation. What I'm trying to say is that 



some of the problems that you've identified tonight are out of the 

jurisdiction of the Committee. As a private land owner versus 

another individual, (inaudible), The State of Alaska will at 

some point in time is going to have some 103 million acres of land 

to manage and we want to know what the people of the Sta~e of Alaska 

and what their thought ~ and feelings are about the term subsistence 

on that land and whether or not we should exert out influence on 

federal (inaudible) in agreement with the regional corporation land 

owners who (inaudible) do have 40 million plus acres of land in their 

possession. We want to make sure that the conflicts that are going 

to arise and be (inaudible) as much as possible. And hopefully, at this 

time, the discussion we ca n prevent a lot of bruised feelings and 

pre vent a lot of hard feelings from developing and getting out of hand. 

I do know that th e re are (inaudible) getting tensed up now with a lot 

of the land now getting ready ~ o be transf e rred to regional corporations 

and people are won dering what the regional corporations well, what 

are the regional corporations going to be doing with their land? And 

have they d e veloped land use, wat e r use mana gement po l icy? To my 

knowl e dge, I don't think any reqional corporatio n has anything in black 

and white yet. And that doesn't say, also, (inaudibl e ) I think that 

th e r egional corporation s are very much concerned on the (inaudible) 

subsistence, goes without saying. Anoth er thin g is , I 'm sure that 

th ey don't want renewable resource s that are going to deve lop on their 

lands to be abus e d including themsel ves. Do you have any other comments 

that you'd lik e to mak e at this time ? Is there anyon e el se who would 

lik e to giv e th ei r comments on th e issue of subsistence? 

Hele n Geis e rt - I serve on AHTNA Regio nal Board . To me, I don ' t c all 



con't. 

it subsistence hunting, it's our way of life. Three fourths of our 

Native people cannot afford to go into a store and buy meat. When 

we go out hunting it is not just for our immediate families, 

,y 

we i nave 
I 

old people in our villages that we hunt for. Everybody shares the 

meat that we get. Not just ourselves. If we're not allowed to hunt, 

there's many people that are going to go to the welfare agencies. 

(inaudible) This year when we flew around we spotted three ca ribou 

in the whole Copper Valley, and that was it. (inaudible) If you 

don't know somebody in Fish and Game you didn't get a permit. There 

were a lot of people xhat didn't know that there was just 750 pe rmits 

given out, there is a lot of outside people that come in the~e that 

can afford to have guides to take them out and can afford to take 

planes to fly them around to find them, and they are just slowly 

disappearing. 

Representative Nels Anderson - The reason you said there was no publi~ity 

on permits being issued (inaudible). 

Helen Geisert - All the time that I talked to a girl at Fish & Game and 

she said there was a letter written and I asked wh ere the letter was 

written to and she didn't know. So, I don't know where the letter was 

written to. Like this 70 year old woman down th e re that does hunt for 

herself and she wasn't able to get one. 

Participant from Aud ience - It's the same way from wh e re I live, I 

haven't got a moose or caribou either on e this year. 

Representative Steve Cowper - For my information, where is the caribou 

migrate around here? 



Participant from Audience - They come right around Glennallen here years 

ago they would come right around the Kenny Lake area and three or four 

years ago I seen four of=five and I was out hunting this year I found 

some old horns right up on top of the hill. They migrated way up in 

(inaudible) • But they tell me that when they had a fire through here 

in '29 - '30 , the caribou quit migrating clear that way. (inaudible) 

Representative Steve Cowper - Traditionally what has been the sub­

sistence use of the animals here, caribou, you mentioned hasn't been 

seen for quite awhile, so what else? 

Participant from Audience - Moose, beaver trapping, muskrat, porcuping , 

squirre l s. 

Representative Steve Cowper - Has there been anybody to count the number 

of subsistence users or anything like that? I guess Fish & Game would 

probably keep count of the subsi s tence permits is there anybody that 

would know how many people who are in this village can 't get sub­

sistence permits. 

Participant from Audience - We had a study done by (inaudible) he came 

up with some fiqures . (inaudibl e ) . 

Representative Steve Cowper - This is a little off the subjec t, but J'd 

like to have a little information if you have it, what does AHTNA v iew 

th e proposals made by the Secretary of Interior o n t he D- 2? 

Wilson Justin - The Andrus Bill? So far we are mor e predisposed to 

llR-39 because th e proposed ammendmcnt n to that Bill. 'rh e one fact of 

Andrus looks kin d of good right n ow is that it will be less the total 

acreage about 91 million acres than the D-2, w~ich may be a factor 
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that's more wider accepted later on, but at this point we're still pro­

posed ammendments to HR-39. 

Representa tive Nels Anderson - Is there anyone else that would like to 

mak e a st a t ement at this time to the Committee on Subsistence? 

Maggie Oliver - I'm Maggie Oliver from ~ antwell, Yedatene Na Corporation. 

On behalf of the shareholders a nd also for mysel f . 

I cal) myself a subsistence hunter, not because I need it, but because my Mother 

and my Grandmother need it. My Mother is 63 years old and my Grandmother is 82. They 

no longer can go out and hunt like they used to, to take care of us until we arew up. 

So, now, I in turn t ake care of our families . 13ut, if my r,randmother aot a caribou 

pennit and she tried to shoot it , well, we might as well throw i t away. It's 9ot 

to be issued to a person that will go get it for her. This is one th ing on a pennit 

that bothers me. Now , at Cantwell , out of 64 Natives, we all live and apply because 

we ~ot to think that there i s onl y ac ing to be 750 of them given out and we can' t 

afford $5.00 to send it nff if we're not going to get ft. There wa s on ly two Natives 

that ')Ot it, but they had to '10 30 miles up the Denali, five or six miles off of the 

Denali lo a cabin to get it . 

I \'lent moose hunting thi s year as a spor tsman . I didn ' l qe t , fn fac t , I went campinq 

for five days and whil e I was out there I aot one down and had to 90 out and get 

hel p to brinn ft in . hiked ou t 2-1/2 miles to qe t help, came bac , qot my moose out. 

hung it up . and whfl e was ')One ilbou t a three hour perf od. there were ff ve carf bou 

hunters that had military t aos , from one of the bases here with c1 Texils plate. In 

the period I Wll S gone , t hey took nnc1 s tole all the tenderl oin r ig ht off the moose. 

Sportshuntinq i s j us t, well 1t ru i ns the subsi s tence hunting for your lower inconm 

people, not j us t the Natives, a ll the lower income peopl e. One' s thc1t live on retire­

ment. some on soc ial security, and with the prices of mea t , my Mother l i ves on Social 
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Security and welfare, she can't afford beef. I think it 's vitally important that 

we protect our subsistence hunting rights not just for ourselves , but for all those 

i ncome people that need it. 

There's got to be a way to get permits and stuff to the low income people, there's 

this guy that had a caribou permit out there and he had an al l terrain vehicle and 

trucking right by me, stopped and said, "I'm going caribou hunting. " I said, "Oh, 

you got a permit?" He sJid, "Yes, I got a permit. 11 I thought, well heck, he can 

afford a $6,000.00 vehicle, why don't he j ust go buy beef? And there are people 

up there that need the meat , and if there are 10,000 people and at $5.00, that's 

$50,000.00 that the people pay to try to get a permit. What happened to the rest 

of it , do they give the money back? 

Representative Nels Anderson: I think the State keeps it. 

Maggie Oliver: Yeh , to the people that need it, like our elderly people, that might 

even hold them over for the winter. I think our subsistence hunting (i naudible) is 

our cultural way of life. 

Representative Steve Cowper: What do you sungest we do about (inaudible), for the people 

that can't actually physically do the actual huntino, the elderly people, somebody has 

got to go out and do it for them. (Inaudible) I don't know where you draw the line, 

Maggie . 

Sam Agaier : My name is Sam Agaier , I'm from Gakona, I know that there is alot of 

bad probl ems that we are faced with the game . Some of them, I'm sure that I'm not 

knowledgeable with. Fish and Game people that work with them know some angles 

that we out in the street don't know. Out, there are some things about it that are 

stacked against it. For one thing, there is no question that subsistence hunting 
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improves the quality of life up here in the Valley. Most of us can survive without 

a moose or a caribou. We can get along without them, but there is no question, that we 

would live better if we could get our moose and our caribou and our sheep. And yet, in 

the effort to increase the game or preserve the game, or whatevever the philosophy 

that is being followed right now. The hunting seasons and bag hunters well, not so 

much bag hunters, but the seasons are kind of being stacked against the people in 

the Valley there who aren 1 t you might say (inaudible) most of the Natives and quite a 

few of us Whites, don 1 t have swamp buggies, track vehicles, airplanes, all the rest of 

the equipment, therefore, y0u give us a season three weeks long in the middle of 

September and you 1 ve done the minimum of two things. Stack the season against us, 

one. You give us a time of the year when the hunting grounds are almost impassable 

unless you have thousands and thousands of do llars worth of equipment, which means 

the stream of cars, trucks and tra i lers coming out of Anchorage and Fairbanks and 

this continual stream of airplanes overhead. All of which are representing thousands 

of dollars worth of investments of folks that are sports hunters, maybe not all are 

sports hunters, but anyone that can afford that kind of equipment obviously isn 1 t 

worrying about what he 1 s goi ng to roast fo r dinner or not. Now, you take the 

people out here, in September, most of us are trying to get ready for winter. Alot 

of us came out here in the woods because we don 1 t want the pressures of the city. 

And, therefore, we accept less services and some inconveniences and it also means we 

have to put in more time getting in our wood and getting things ready for winter 

time. September is the worst possible month to take a week off to swag through the 

swamps on foot looking for A moose that probably isn 1 t there anyhow. We need a 

season tha t gi ves us the same break as these people who have the thousands of dollars 

wor th of equipment have . I have a $200.00 snow machine, give me some snow on the 

ground, during the season and I 1 ve got just a good a chance as anyone else of getting 

back out there in 20 miles of brush, find a moose, packing it out the trail. I 1m not 
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saying I have to run around in 'the woods to find me a good trail , but let me get out in 

the woods, give me a chance. 

I can't walk 14 miles out in the woods, shoot a moose, and then pack it out. I 

can walk 14 miles, I can walk alot further than that, but packing the moose out is 

something else. I can find a very small area right along side of the roads and the 

very beginning of a trail and along side of the river. Now, I'm not sure that 

there's an answer to the problem. 

I don't know exactly why we have a season when we have it. I'm sure there are alot of 

factors that I'm not aware of, but it certainly weight sheavily against me and my 

neighbors both, Indian and White, who can't afford to compete with these hunters who 

have all of this equipment. I know several people in my neighborhood that do have 

equipment, most if not all of them did get a moose. I also know most of the ones that 

don't have all this equipment and of al l the ones in the Gakona area that don't 

possess all this equipment, only, I know of only one that got a moose, and that 

was Nick (inaudible), and you might say he got it through accident . There are a few 

who stro ll up the highway durin!) the season in September, there aren't very many, 

most of them are still on the high ground. I think the Fish and Game people here 

will agree with that, they're still coming down in the earlier part of September or 

middle part of September and there aren't too many who cross the road, except the 

one who lives by FAA. And he'll probably l ive forever. But the rest of them are 

out there quite a distance in. We can't compete with the people who have all the 

expen'jive equipment and if they have all this equipment they probably don't have the 

same subsitence situation we have. Thank you. 

Representative Nels Anderson: Is there a hunting and fishing Fish and Game Advi sory 

Board here? 
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Sam Agaier: Yes, there is. 

Representative Nels Anderson: Who's the Chairman of that? 

Sam Agaier: Which one? There are three of the here. (Inaudible) 

Representative Nels Anderson: The reason that I asked about the hunting and fishing 

Advisory Board is whether or not the problems that you identified have been brought 

to their attention, whether or not you made a recorrmendation to them to bring to the 

Game Board so that the seasons can be changed to acconunodate you. Have you done that? 

Sam Agaier: Firstly, no, the ideals which I have laid before did not meet with the 

ideas that have been discussed before here in the Valley among people and also 

some members of the Advisory Board. So, I'm sure that they have been brought up 

there also. The reason why they haven 't been acted upon or not, I have never been 

told just exactly why the season is what is is or why they chose those particular days. 

I imagine there is a reason for it, but I haven 't heard what they are, but the idea, 

but they are just not mine. They're ideas I'm sure that are in many of the minds 

right in this room right now, the things that I discussed among some of us continuously 

every year. For some of us several years. 

Representative Nels Anderson: You probably know that most of the information that 

we have gathered so far from the other places that we've held hearings, Dillingham, 

Kipnuk, Nome , Kotzebue that bas ically what you people have said are the very same 

things that have been said already to this Con~nittee so what we're hearina tonight is 

not new either. We have heard the same thing and what we're trying to figure out, 

it's quite possihle that some areas in the State will come with the solution that 

we're looking for. To be very honest I don't have an answer yet, I really don't know. 

All we know is that we've got an awful lot of problems and conflict. 
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Up in the Nome area, they have entire different geography, they have the coast line. 

(Mr. Anderson drew a diagram on the blackboard) Say, this is fifty miles here, and 

there is another 50 miles here and they in 30 miles like this. There is no hunting 

permitted here in this area. From this point, fifty miles up ·this way ar.d fifty miles 

up this way, 30 miles in there is no hun~ing. You can hunt out here . Okay, what 

that does to the local people is that they, the local people what you're talking 

about. They don't have equipment either. But the people that have the money now, 

they have a road system, you know from the old mining trails and people that can 

afford a $6 ,000, $7,000 four wheel drive vehicle, which you need to get out there to 

this mine over here are people that have the money, but really they can afford to go 

out and buy a roast at the grocery store. There is a small little village here where 

the people have moved from an island out there, Gambell. People who need that moose, 

but can 't get because they can't afford the vehicles. You know they are in the same 

rat hole as you people, too. I don't know what we're going to do about that. But, 

as we get this kind of information; we are going to have to bring it to the attention 

of the State Legislature and make very definite proposals on how we can change these 

things so that people who rely on the game resources for food will have a better 

opportunity of getting it. Now, I'm certainly all for that , and certainly in favor, 

but to be very blunt, we are going to be need ing some very specific recommendations 

from individuals and of course, your comnents are going to be useful to me. 

I honestly didn't know that there was a 750 permit quota establishe~ in this area. 

I really didn't know that. I am also very disturbed to hear that there was obviously 

not radio publicity centered around that activity either. I mean that is going to have 

to be corrected. But it seems to me there has got to be better ways of getting that 

information out. Is there anyone else at this time? 
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Sterling Eide: Sterling Eide, Glenallen, Alaska Department of Fish and Game. First, 

there is two press releases related to the (inaudible) system and the Anchorage office 

put in about four to five other. In addition to that a little over 1/3 was to local 

system in getting people also in the newspapers two different times. Messages for 

people who wish to come in and apply for their caribou permits. The number 750 is not 

(inaudible), there is an addftional 150 (inaudible). It brings up the question that 

I would lil' ~ to ask someone. If you have over 3,000 hunters and had 750 permits, a 

quota of 500 animals to kill, how does one go about stopping them? 

Maggie Olive:: I can see that side of it too, like I said earlier there are so many 

of ... s that didn't know about the pennits and alot of them didn't ~1et one . We were 

told later that they were given out in June. (Discussion by participants in audience 

that was not audible.) 

Representative Nels Anderson: How many are using only (i naudible) permits in this area. 

Are you the only person? 

Participant from Audience: No, I'm not the only person, there are two of us in 

this area. (Assume this person is a Fish and Game person) 

Representative Nels Anderson: And you monitor the activities of 3,000 hunters? 

his is a game biol ogist? 

Sterling Eide: This is a game management biologist, we also have 5-6 enforcement 

officers who would be in the same general area. 

Representative Nels Anderson: You asked me a question earlier, on how could you restate 

your question? 
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Sterling Eide: Sure, we have a usual 3,000 hunters that wish to obtain caribou (inaudible ) 

and we have an allowable harvest of 500 caribou. How do you go about limiting it 

without going through something like permits? The idea of allowing the caribou herd to 

grow, (inaudible). 

Representative Nels Anderson: You have to forgive me, I'm just totally ignorant, of 

asking you a question you can't give me the answer, okay, what I'm trying to find out, 

was there a healthy herd in this area at one time? And if there was, what happened to 

it? 

Sterl i ng Eide: At one time there was 60,000 caribou in th i s area. 

Represen tative Nels Anderson: What year are you talking about? 

Sterling Eide: 1963, after approximately about 1971 we had a fairly large movement 

of caribou from the area and a large winter harvest of caribou, and the next census, 

that was done, which was done in 1972, it said that in the neighborhood of perhaps 

10,000 caribou . That ' s when they did away with the late seasons, snowmachine use , 

to actually 15 days in the sunmer. Since that time, the caribou herd has teen build­

ing, and it might be 20 ,000 and it will probably be there in 2 or 3 years, if the 

things continue to go as they have been. If we do not keep the caribou herd on petinit 

or at least limit the harvest, pretty soon we will not see 20,000 caribou and the 

harvest per year will be much less than it is now. 

Representative Nels Anderson: What is the present estimate that is harvested? 

Sterling Eide: At the present rate, we are attemptinq to harvest no more than 500 

a year. 
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Representative Nels Anderson: What is the present state of the , your estimate of the 

numbers of th~ herds now? 

Sterling Eide: This spring we counted 14,000 animals and the bulls are not in that 

category. ( Inaudi b 1 e) 

Representative Nels Anderson.: In your opinion, do you think you have enough support 

in the administration. Do you think you have enough staff to do the work that you 

have to do. Or are you understaffed, are you presently adequately staffed? 

Sterling Eide: You're asking a bureaucratic question. 

Representative Steve Cowper: We're the only people that get to do that. 

Sterling Eide: In this area, we're really fortunate, in addition to myself and the other 

game managers, we have a considerable amc~nt of research going on and last year we were 

very lucky in getting the Enforcement Division to come in and help out and put in a 

heavy amount of effort in this area. So, I would say that last year, we received 

assistance from the administration way out of proportion of what any other area in 

the State had . 

Representative Nels Anderson: Steve, do you have any other co~nents ? 

Representative Steve Cowper: I would l ike to discern a couple of things that have 

remained (inaudible) ever since we started these hearings . One of them is that the 

subsi stence lifestyle i s a whole lot more than just a great big meat locker . Its in 

t he frame of mind that the people voluntarily got, and it involves a whole lot more 

than just an existence. (Inaudible) It's not a matter of putting a piece of meat 

on the table, it involves a lifestyle and it should be recognized. And, it also 

all boils down with the people, in sort of a contes. between the people with the 
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kind of 1 ifestyle and the urban hunters who have gotten a lot richer in the past few 

years on account of the pipeline and other thi ngs and alot of vehicles, air~l an~!; , 

and other sorts of things, too. I can tell you that there are fewer mo0se aro~n~ 

Fairbanks since '70's or so, I think that all the snow vehicles have pretty much 

wiped them all out, so, somewhere somebody i s going to have to make some policy 
. 

decisions as to who goes first. 

Portion of the tape inaudible at this point . 

Representative Steve Cowper : Certainly, the definition of subsistence is in dispute, 

but one thing is clear , (inaudible). It may depend on as much a location on where 

you live than anything else. Perhaps some economic factors will enter into it . 

Portion of tape inaudible. 

Joe Roach: I'm Joe Roach, and li ve about 30 miles south of here. One of the things 

that I would not like to see as a criteria for subsistence hunting is whether a person 

is on welfare or not. There are years when my tota 1 incrn1e doesn't exceed but ahout 

$4,000 .00. I've never been on welfa re in my life. I have seen some of them earn 

$11 , 000 to $12,000 then j ump on welfare and end up paying a subsistence permit and 

they denied me. (Inaudible) When I came to Alaska about 11 years ago, you were 

allowed to hunt up to 3 caribou. I remember right here in this room, approximately 

10 years ago, meetings that were held, where people tried to talk to the Fish and 

Game, the management people. It came to reduc ing that 3 limit to 2 limit. ( Inaudible ) 

Thank you. 

Representative Nels Anderson: Thank you . I really can't answer that on why the 

reduced caribou . But anyway, many realize throughout the State that there have been 

some deficiencies in ma nagement. But, there is one thing that I would like to point 
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out to the public. \ I've been one of those who have been ·extremely critical of the 

Department of Fish and Game, not because of their what appeared to be an · insensitive 

atti.tude toward their jobs, but I've stopped that now. Because I am beginning to 

realize that some of the problems that have occurred have been outside their domain 

of jurisdiction. These people that are managing our fish and game, for the most 

part are people who are extremely dedicated and they really do care. One of the 

things that I've found is that these people have not been given the proper financial 

suppport of the people in Alaska. Now, the Department of Fish and Game, in the Game 

Division, they ge~ their money from selling moose and caribou licenses to the 

ousiders, foreigners, and what is left that we give them from our hunting and fishing 

licenses, that money is put into a fund and then federal money is matched to it and 

that's where they get alot of their money to operate. As a matter of fact, that's 

where they get a 11 their money to operate. So, we got to take a 1 oak at that. I r1 

the past, although I may have offeneded a few people here, but in the past the game 

guides have a (inaudible) big game in the State of Alaska. They have a game advisory 

board right now up in the Nome, Kotzebue area. They segment certain hunting areas 

and they are exclusively one game guide's domain. No other game guide can go there 

and hunt. Okay, the Fish and Game can't do anything about that, now for some reason 

with the game guides , with their influence, they can be able to get laws passed 

effectively themselves. And, I don't think that they care that much about subsistence. 

Okay, that another thing . I want to share with you tonight, if there is no one 

else that cares to testify tonight. 

Ken Roberson: I just want to put one thing in here, you talked exclusively about 

game. I'm curious if anyone has any thoughts about fish. I'm in the fish business 

with Fish and Game, on the subsistence partof it and I'd just be curious in hearing 

them as I'm well sure you are. Just a thought. 
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Participant from Audience: I had a subsistence fish net this year, and I was only 

allowed 30 fish. I want to know why, when I have I'd say approximately 40 people in 

my family that would eat thirty fish and that's in just one setting. Why is it just 

30 fish? 

Ken Roberson: If your gross income is greater than $500 .00. 

Participant from Audience: Why do they take my husband's gross income, when I 

applied for the fish pennit? 

Ken Roberson: Okay, it would be joined as family and has been for some ti me. I 

hope you gentlemen are eware I specifi cally am putting together a report on the 

subsistence fishing to the Board of Fisheries in December with a management option 

and they will alter with present circumstances. We recognize that there are some 

weaknesses based on income status, use style and I'm sure you gentlemen have read 

all that in the Department of Fish and Game Board of subsistence policies. It has 

all the options how they're used is something else . And we have been directed by 

the Board to prepare a document and hopefully, they will respond to these specifically. 

(Inaudible) (A question was asked to Mr . Roberson that was concerning sports fishing, 

mos t of it was inaudible) If we define a certain unit as subsistence and it raises 

less question and co11111ents here as a resul t. But, we 've got things to do, and a ways 

to go in defining who is a subsistence user and when they can and where. The answer 

is not easy. I hope you fellas, I 'm sure you are aware at this point and hope we 

can get as many answers as we have questions. 

Representative Nels Anderson: Well, 1 tell you, I had alot of bright ideas when I 

start€d out on this thing and they have rapidly disappeared. Okay, on the fishing 

(inaudible) on trying to evaluate the capability of present projected subsistence 

needs, past subsistence needs as well . And one thing that we know, okay, you take 
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a look at the fish regulations, in the herring fishery all it says is one sentence 

referring to the fishing, the fishing of herri'ng, and right now there is going to 

be a massive co11111ercial effort being organized now (inaudible) to Western Alaska 

herring fishery. I att~nded a Fish and Game Advisory Board meeting, two meetings, 

two nights ·in a row and stayed up until 2:00 in the morning; trying to decide how 

in the world we were going to 1·egulate the commercial take. And, one of the things 

I kind of fished for awhile if the understanding is going to be a commercial harvest, 

but what about the subsistence? You know they just couldn't get it into their heads 

when (inaudible). Well , take a look at the salmon eggs, there are very definite 

provisions of taking salmon for subsistence purposes on certain conditions. And, 

I said, why don't we start to develop some method of taking of herring for subsistence 

because the figures that we have indicated that about 600 t on of herring are taken a 

year by residents of Alaska along the ~Jest Coast. That's from Bristol Bay along up 

to Norton SounL, all the way up to Kotzebue, and passed beyond that. So, what we 

fi r.ally decided to do, the Department of Fish and Game is going to submit a proposal 

to the Board of Fisheries and say 6,000 ton of herring are going to be allowed to be 

caught, and the first 1,000 will be allocated for subsistence purposes. And like you 

say, you don't look at grayling as a spo rt fish, you look at it as something to eat 

and its meat for the table. Well, that's one of the things that we are going to be 

mak ing proposals, legislatively or through the Board of Fish to get some of these 

definitions redefined so that there is some all oca tion made for subsistence purposes. 

We have to do that. And \'le have to (i naudible) your confidence and I know you said it very 

seriously, but there are alot of people that feel about it the same way you do. I know 

you get al ot of sports fi shennen really upset, and we have al ot of sports fi shennen 

in this State. I don't know how many we've got now, but about 4 or 5 years ago, we had 

85,0000 of those people running around. And they contributed an awful lot of money 



into the State treasury and they feel as though they have alot of say about what 

happens to them in developing the rules and regulations and how certain fish are 

taken. But it isn't their exclusive right and I think that you people who have a 

subsistence requirement ought to be provided a legitimate access to that resource 

as well. That's one of our goals we want to take a very good close look at that, 

not only at grayling but other resources that may be used for sports purposes that 

we should make allocations for subsistence purposes. I just want to make a very 

brief conment about a Fish and Game policy that I received in Dillingham on the 9th 

of August, the new Commissioner of Fish and GamP. , Mr. Ron Skoog attended that meeting 

and gave to me a policy statement that the Department of Fish and Game has devised. 

And, I don't believe has been implemented and I wanted to share it with you, read it 

to you. This is a Fish and Game paper and it was prepared about 1973 but it was 

signed by Mr. Skoog about the 9th of August and the title on top of the page is 

entitled "Subsistence". (Attached to this testimony is a copy of that paper) 

Representative Nels Anderson: But, John Schaeffer, up in Kotzebue, who was the 

Executive Vice President for the NANA Corporation doesn't (inaudible) that, because 

of pressure that he's got from his people, because he is getting a large salary, he 

just doesn't know what to do. He doesn't want to be hassled by them all. So, there 

are people that are responding alot of different ways, but there are alot of people, 

too, that have made money that still want to go out and hunt and fish and there is 

no way that we can replace the taste of moose or caribou or any of the Native foods 

that you've grown up with that you just have to have. 

And one of the problems that we're having right now is that we're going to be wrestling 

with in the Legislature is how we are going to define that feeling you know, how do 
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you legislate prejudice, you know that's· not going to go away. People have made 

penalties and rules on discrimination, but you can't (inaudible) and our attitudes 

and when I say our attitudes, I speak of us, Native persons, the attitudes of 

Native people t oward s Native foods is a pretty strong feeling. How do you 

legislate that? I know that there are alot of non-Native people who have come up 

to this country and have become accustomed to Native food and learned to like it and 

are living a very harsh life, that is their privilege of taking of that subsistence 

resources. I just thought it was interesting and I think what I'll do is have 

Dorothy Larson make a copy of this and send it to the Ahtna Corporation if you 

don't have it you could study it and perhaps make modifica tions to it or come up 

with you r own definitions of subsistence, but I am asking people at this point in 

time to give us your ideas specific ideas of what you would like to see us do . 

Even the Department of Fish and Game personnel would have alot of valuable infonnation 

that they could sha re with us. I know that there are some very strict rules, 

bureaucratic rules on (inaudible} of what you can or annot say, I've got a good 

area biologist in Bristol Bay, a guy by the name of Mike Nelson. But he won't come 

to me ~ven if his life depended upon it for any help from the Legisla ture. He goes 

through the chain of command. It's real unfortunate th~t it works that way , but I 

guess that' s how you keep the boys in line. ls there anyone else? 

A portion of the tape inaudible . 

Representative Nels Anderson: just learned of this at a meetin!J in Dillingham. 

Fish and Game Advisory Board made a report to a group that ca ll ed otter and lynx 

and there was one other are being considered on being put on the endangered list. 

They are apparently endangered in the Lower 48, now I don't know about Alaska, but. 
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Participant in Audience: There is no way in the world that they are on the endangered 

species up here . 

Representative Nels Anderson: I really don't know, I certainly don't approve of the 

Lower 48, if there, if it's their desire to put that animal on the endangered list 

let them go ahead, but leave us alone. I think we're okay. Are we okay with the 

mink and the lynx in this country. 

Fish and Game Participant: We are by our law here in Alaska. (Some discussion 

by the participants in the audience. ) 

John Goertz: John Goertz, Kenny Lake. I would like to say a few words about sub-

sistence fishing. Salmon Fishing. I fished a river every year up there, in fact, 

I've got the same spot for the last five years. I think its real good and I'd like 

to see it stay, but they sure need more enforcement out there, the people are allowed 

permits so many fish, which is good, need alot more enforcement out there, infact, 

I know some of you and three ~1ears ago they had some 1 ittle girl out there that was 

real good. It kept everybody in line. But, this year and last year, both there wa s 

nobody, they had a few enforcement officers. Sure, but they need more help, and 

that subsistence fishing is a real good thing. But they need a little more help out 

there to keep them in line. 

Participant in Audience: It is not the quality of the folks, it is the number. 

(Inaudible) 

Representative Nels Anderson: Do these people have the enforcement au thority? 

Fish and Game Participant: Yes, there most in the past, it was handed out automatically. 

Now it is where they have to go through an eight hour course . (Inaudible} 
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Representative Nels Anderson: Are there any other corrments on hunting and fishing? 

Birds, migratory birds, anything else? 

Participant in Audience: With the 500 caribou to be taken this year, why couldn't 

half of them ue given to subsistence hunters, whether they live on social security 

or whether they be Native, White or whatever? So that it would give each person a 

chance? 

Representative Nels Anderson: Well, l certainly don't have any objections to suggestions 

just that I told you earlier that I attended Fish and Game Advisory Board meeting, they 

were taking up suggestions (inaudible). It seems to me that that would be a legitimate 

proposa l to make for their cons ideration . I don't know what the deadline that's being 

establi shed nor whether its being passed or not. 

Fish and Game Participant: Usually the deadline is about February 10 or soml?thing like 

that. 

Representative Nel s Anderson: My suggestion when the time comes when they make the 

announcement asking for suggestions on how to allocate the 500 allowable take then 

your suggestion was that 250 be allocated to certain groups then the other 250 for 

sports. And I think its something that the Boa rd wil 1 consider. J, .d those of you 

should make an effort to put in a suggestion in that nature. Then, if you could get 

your advi sory bo~rd to make a similar suggestion you would probably have a little bit 

more power. YJu ought to try that. Did you have something e lse, I think I cut you 

off or I recognized somebody else. 

Parti cipant in Audi ence : Earlier, I wa s going to ask Mr. Cowper if the Federa l 

government with the 0-2 legisl ation where they made certain areas subsistence 
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(inaudible) and where they directed that certain types of access would be better 

along rivers for subsistence use than other . Whether or not they defined in anyway 

what subsistence was and who these users would be and is anybody here taken a look 

at this at all? 

Representative Steve Cowper: The original proposa1 set up the articles of subsistence 

board polici~s on subsistence users who would say, or try to establish the use. T~e 

answer to that is that they don't know what they're doing and they're waiting for 

peopl e in Alaska to get together on some kind of acceptable plan. (Inaudible ) the 

Alaska Coalition, whi ch you know , they do have an awful lot of information, they didn't 

have much on subsistence. So we could use alot of improvement . So whatever is in 

HR-39 (i naudible) I might add to that Regional Fi sh and Game Boards , that concept is 

going to be s trengthened I think just by virtua lly every piece of legislation, every 

regional fish and game board is going to be very powerful in this State , at least that's 

the way I see it. Hopefu lly, if we have cooperative fish and game management we could 

(inaudible) into subsis ctnce purposes those regional fish and game boards would name not 

only the Sta te and privately owned lands, but al so the federal lands . 

Representative Nels Anderson: If there any other questions or co111T1ents or statements 

that you would like to make at this time? I would just l ike to take you r attention 

Steve, and I'm sure that you already know that that Governor Hanmond has made it 

known that he is pushing very strongly I guess for the Department of Fish and Game 

Boards be broken down into regiona l areas for this coming legislature. At least he 

has let this be known to severa l legisla tors that this is his intent. And, that he 

ts actively looking for support from tne Legislature to accompl ish thi s. In other 

worcls , there would not be stateHide Fish and Game Boards, or sta tewide game boards 
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or statewide fish boards, it would be broken down into regions. Like the Bristol 

Bay area would have their own Fish.~nd Game Board and they would elect or would 

have appointed their own board members, in the Kotzebue areas, same thing, the 

Arctic Slope, Northwest, the Interior, this area, we would have regional boards, 

that's the concept the Governor Hanwnond had brought to my attenti on. Of course, 

we have planned to ask to have such legislation asked wasn't successful because 

Governor Hanmond was opposed to it, but now I think he has a little change of 

heart and D-2 I think has (inaudible) into it and the election year is coming up, 

so you might as 11el1 take that into consideration. Is there anything else? 

Participant in Audience: I'd just l ike to mention this area 1·1ould fall under 

(inaudible) million acres , (inaudible) so we not only want locally, but (inaudible) 

so we may not benefit from this five sections or (inaudible) 

Representati ve Nels Anderson: Well, if there is nothing else, I would like to thank 

the people t hat showed up to the meeting tonight, I really appreciate it. And, I am 

hoping that we will be able to do something positive with the infonnation that we 

received tonight and in December we will be taking all the accounts tha t we rec2ived 

throughout the State, analyze those and we will be making included maki ng all this 

informati on avai lable to the Legislative Council for introduction to the next 

Legislature, proposals and that you people feel strongly about and we share this 

infom1ation wi t h you and hopefully to have the final report drafted sometime in 

January and as soon as this is completed by the Legislative Council will have shared 

with people t hat, at least with regional representatives and the Depar tment of Fish 

and Game, I'm sure will get copies of what we have co111c up with, and agai n thank you 

very much and if there is nothing else, I will adjourn the meeting with your 

conmunity on subsistence. Thank you very much. 
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l'C'.il (<:s c.,:·.-.J-,,1 to i -:~irN!) µnbl .... · <,1HJ 1·1[: a1 ·.-:· 1·:i1 ~ ing t o 
St1;>; ·:.i r i n .>·:.1 , :.le r~~:.: L ~il.;~:; lhcd. '. .i ll rl?ducc this conflict. 

:L \!1! 1 .: ({Jsni ·:, . 1.:1i' nilt; '.' I: r i '. !1 t~. as ri .. i '.'c'.l te l c:1nd o.-111crs ; h0\'1cvcr , 
w· 1:: " t i1r~1.i 1 :' :·.i1c:-1 t l1d '' :- ::•: l11s i v ~ 11 ~.:: · 1·!i 11 £til I 'it:. ~u!Jj~ct 
1'(, ~·t;l. "• r 0!ju·:ttit'l! i:1 1Lc'" 1 ~O r, ,-o·:jd~ for ?11 01·c!erl :: h '.! 1W:S t 
l.111". ;.cl2q u~: tc 1·c.11 r ocl1 •c t·i v, ·~ u~;~ ;. . 

~ . [ ;.c. li.:s i\'r.! 11se for aclc,se:r' t !l t o!q -1 ,.i.ui-1i :.·,- for th ~ 11ati \•es to use 
l i:''- (: l'~ ... Oll!"1 . • •• in r c ve l i ' lr' t'~ l1 . 1 1.oi'. i1lU !J:'O (J:"'dHI~. 

1: ... 1;:.~1 ;10c1. ;· i: r1 the e r, :\.• 1,1 t io11:1 11ld l h t'! 1• ···q t:1ci r 1•ns it.i o11 . Uc 
shr.•J ld :.Ll' I \ '(• lil 1: · ·. :.. tli ~fl l dv: it :C l c9 i t i :,·t.~- Sl·~;i~1.(:1".,"t! l l 3C . 

~ ;, ·:. ')· ' +. 'f• "" 

1
:11· , •• i :-.. • .r.~· :: l1:1 1j

1' 1 ·~ .. n~ ti::: L:.!: i ·:·· , f i. '. i •.:J irw , OI' 1 •o~~i'~.::. i on 
fl l I ~~ .. . ·· ' "Vi1,·i1 rw ot': •" 1: :;. 1111/ : ... ., . ~ :., 10 1· j 1 t t'~Oi 1 J l llJl' 11 11 d 
1 . n~ :1 -; .. !1: •• · I. 1 , 1 ~ r , \,i i1 q i Ii 111 · t.. 11 •· 1 1 i ~.11 i·:l, .,1•1, l Oll !J 1 in c: , 
(t,• Cid .· ;,,. 1! 1 . ~ ; .. d Ii , l1,• 1i1••1·d " . 
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